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Financial Highlights
MBEE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AR

Revenue increased by approximately 105.2% to RMB564.0 million (2022:
RMB274.9 million).

Gross profit increased by approximately 137.3% to RMB379.7 million
(2022: RMB160.0 million).

Profit for the Year of RMB52.6 million (2022: Loss of RMB14.2 million).

Profit per share was RMB5.56 cents (2022: Loss per share RMB1.51 cents).

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the Year (2022: Nil) or any special dividend (2022: Nil).
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Chairman’s
Statement
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To the Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited*

(the "Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYF

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

In 2023, being the first year after the pandemic, the market faced numerous
challenges including global inflation, the Russia-Ukraine war, escalating
geopolitical conflicts, and continuing China-US trade competition which
brought uncertainties to the stability in the global economic growth. Despite
these challenges, China maintained stable economic growth, with the
domestic consumer market gradually recovering, foreign trade steadily
increasing, and increase in investment growth rate. On the other hand, the
government continued to implement proactive fiscal policies and prudent
monetary policies, which are aimed at promoting economic structural reforms,
optimising industrial structure, enhancing technological innovation
capabilities, and strengthening environmental protection efforts.

Benefiting from our well-defined strategic objectives and the management’s
implementation of these objectives, the Group focused on the supply chain
management and continued to put various sales and promotion strategies to
test, thereby enhancing the influence of the Good Health brand. In 2023, the
Group achieved good operating and financial results, evidenced by the rapid
development in sales revenue from both of its key business segments, namely,
the cross-border e-commerce platform and distribution channels for infant and
child products. Furthermore, the Group's profitability also improved steadily,
achieving the target set at the beginning of the year.

Looking into 2024, it is expected that the global economic development will
continue to be affected by numerous challenges, including the ongoing
Russia-Ukraine war and global geopolitical conflicts, and the upcoming US
presidential election which brings about political uncertainties. In addition, the
domestic economic recovery and the introduction of policies may not live up
to market expectation. In 2024, China will be stabilising its economy in the
midst of a market correction. Consumption and services are expected to
continue in its post-pandemic recovery. The government has reiterated its
support for the development of private enterprises, by fostering a fair
competitive environment. In addition, the government will strengthen the
policy-driven coordination and collaboration effort, enhance communications
with the market and enterprises, and timely adjust and optimise relevant
policies.

In 2024, the Group will continue to implement its established strategic
objectives, whereby amassing resources to push forward with the following
development: (1) the Group's cross-border e-commerce platforms will continue
to try and optimise marketing and promotional strategies in live streaming,
new media, and digital marketing, with a view to enhancing the influence of
the Good Health brand and its key products; (2) the Group will continue to
strengthen the research and development effort in new products, minimize
the research and development cycle, and launch more new products to meet
target customers’ demands; (3) the Group will continue to strengthen the
supply chain management, by enhancing production capacity, in order to
meet customers demand in time, and reducing the production and
procurement cycles; and (4) the Group will expand the sales revenue scale,
while optimising the cost-income output of marketing and promotional
expenses, thereby improving overall profitability.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express that the Group would grip the
opportunity to promote Good Health series as well as expand its health
products in several sales channels of food business in the PRC, New Zealand
and Australia in order to improve the health conditions of people.

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman
26 March 2024
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Propolis Capsules
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Hi Cal™ Liquid Calcium & Vitamin D
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y \J i goodhealth
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Grape Seed 55,000 Capsules
BEE*55,000B %

GOOD HEALTH
RERI

Oyster Plus Capsules
HERBE

Coenzyme Q10 Capsules
HWBQIOBE

1-a-day Glucosamine Capsules
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EinCardio-Concentrated Fish Oil Capsules
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Omega 3 Fish Oil Capsules
RBMBE

Bilberry & Lutein Capsules
BREEEEBR
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Milk Thistle 35,000 Capsules
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Cranberry Plus EPO Capsules
EHEARERE

Joint Active with UC-Il Capsules
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Product Information
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GOOD HEALTH
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Red Super Krill soft Capsules Viralex Attack Capsules
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Viralex Revive Drink Viralex Soothe Throat Lozenges

BRLRER TR A

Modified Milk Powder with Lactoferrin Vira-Complex Powder
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Product Information
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GOOD HEALTH
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Modified Milk Powder with Lactase Calcium Iron and Zinc Nutrient Sprinkles
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Probiotic Powder Solid Beverage Lactoferrin PLUS milk Powder
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Kids Magnesium Chews Kids Immune Chews
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Product Information
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Alage Oil DHA Kids Capsules Kids Growth Chews
SREEADHARE SERRERA
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Kids Vision Chews Gummy Candy Series
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

With clear strategic objectives and determined implementation by the
management, the Group achieved remarkable operational and financial
performance in 2023. The Group witnessed rapid development in both key
business segments, namely the cross-border e-commerce platforms and the
distribution channels for infant and child series products. The Group's revenue
for the Year amounted to approximately RMB564.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately 105.2% compared to approximately RMB274.9
million in 2022. The Group recorded a profit of approximately RMB52.6 million
for the Year, turning loss into profit as compared to the loss of approximately
14.2 million RMB recorded in 2022.

In terms of supply chain management, the Group has also achieved the goals
set at the beginning of the year. During the Year, the Group boosted its
production capacity by strengthening the management of its supply chain
system and identifying high-quality suppliers, so as to accommodate the fast-
growing demands from the cross-border e-commerce platform and the infant
and child series products in the market. As a result, the efficiency of inventory
turnover has also improved.

During the Year, the Group continued to focus on the Good Health brand and
sales promotion through distributors and e-commerce channels, so as to
promote the brand recognition of the Good Health in the target markets. The
Group carried out continuous brand building and promotion mainly through a
combination of distributors, pharmacies, duty-free stores and travel channels,
and at the same time through flagship stores on domestic major e-commerce
platforms.

In terms of e-commerce platforms in the PRC market, the Group continued to

cooperate with e-commerce platforms such as Tmall, JD.com, TikTok,
xiaohongshu.com, and Bilibili, etc..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

During the Year, the Group made various attempts and innovations in
promotional campaigns for cross-border e-commerce platforms to enhance its
brand influence. These initiatives include:

(1) making use of the influential capabilities of influencer live streaming
channels, which has been beneficial to the growth of the Group. The
Group has collaborated with several top influencers on e-commerce
platforms, turning its key products into hot-selling products. This has
generated significant online exposure and contributed to the future
development of its products;

(2)  initiating a traceability program in New Zealand. Through cooperation
with several influential headliners from platforms such as Taobao and
TikTok, the Group invited them to visit New Zealand for a live-streaming
traceability journey of the factory and stores of Good Health Products
Limited. These dedicated live-streaming activities not only achieved
outstanding sales results but also effectively promoted the Group’s local
brand by highlighting its 37-year heritage, commitment to quality and
core values;

(3)  using new media operations to promote products through platforms
such as xiaohongshu.com, Bilibili, and Weibo. This strategy plays a critical
role in enhancing the development of products like Joint Active with
UC-I (B B R ) and Viralex Kids products (1 18 ££); and

(4)  establishing several brand-owned streaming accounts on prominent
e-commerce platforms such as Tmall, JD.com, and TikTok, which has laid
the foundation for future development.

The Group's overseas diversified sales platforms mainly include international
distribution networks that broadly distributed in various countries, including
the United Kingdom, Germany, Netherlands, Singapore, South Africa, Vietnam,
and Thailand, etc., and local large chain pharmacies, health goods
supermarkets and tourist souvenir shops in New Zealand and Australia.

During the Year, in order to enhance market competitiveness of its products
and meet evolving consumer demands, the Group adopted a market-oriented
strategy for research and product development to further strengthen new
products development. During the Year, the Group launched a total of 15 new
products, including 1 New Goodhealth series product, 13 Good Health series
products and 1 Livingnature series product, etc.. The new products mainly
comprised Elderberry Flavored Drink, Vira-Complex Powder, Carb Buster Citrus
Bioflavonoid Plus Tablets, EinCardio — Concentrated Fish Oil Capsules and
Cranberry Plus EPO Capsules, etc..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

The revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB564.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 105.2% from approximately
RMB274.9 million in 2022. The Group recorded a profit of approximately
RMB52.6 million for the Year as compared with a loss of approximately RMB14.2
million in 2022. The Company’s earnings per share was approximately RMB5.56
cents (2022: loss per share of approximately RMB1.51 cents) based on the
weighted average number of 946,298,370 (2022: 946,298,370) ordinary shares
of the Company in issue during the Year.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 105.2% from
approximately RMB274.9 million in 2022 to approximately RMB564.0 million for
the Year. During the Year, the Group continued to increase its promotional
efforts for the Good Health brand. The increase in sales revenue for the Year
was mainly driven by the significant growth in Good Heath brand'’s sales
revenue from cross-border e-commerce platforms and the distribution
channels for infant and child series products in the PRC.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 137.3% from
approximately RMB160.0 million in 2022 to approximately RMB379.7 million for
the Year. The Group's gross profit margin in 2023 increased from approximately
58.2% in 2022 to approximately 67.3% for the Year. Such increase in gross profit
margin was mainly due to higher gross profit margins in cross-border
e-commerce platforms. The revenue from the cross-border e-commerce
platforms accounted for a higher proportion to the overall sales revenue of the
Group for the Year, thus improving the Group's overall gross profit margin.

Other income and gains

The Group's other income and gains mainly comprised bank interest income,
government grants and rental income, which increased from approximately
RMB7.9 million in 2022 to approximately RMB8.5 million for the Year, mainly
due to the slight increase in government grants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
130.2% from approximately RMB108.6 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB250.0 million for the Year, representing approximately 39.5% and 44.3% of
the Group’s revenue in 2022 and for the Year, respectively. Such increase in
selling and distribution expenses was mainly due to the Group’s increased
advertising and promotional efforts on e-commerce distribution channels.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately 13.0% from
approximately RMB63.9 million in 2022 to approximately RMB72.2 million for
the Year, representing approximately 23.3% and 12.8% of the Group’s revenue
in 2022 and for the Year, respectively. Such increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the Group's efforts to better incentivise its management,
resulting in salary increases for certain members of the management.

Income tax expense/(credit)

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately RMB5.5 million
for the Year and an income tax expense of approximately RMB3.7 million in
2022. The income tax expenses recorded during the Year were mainly due to
the increase in profit of Good Health Products Limited, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries. The Group's effective tax rates in 2022 and for the Year were 35.7%
and 9.5%, respectively.

Profit/(loss) for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, compared with a loss of approximately RMB14.2
million in 2022, the Group recorded a profit of approximately RMB52.6 million
for the Year.

Reasons for turnaround from loss to profit

The turnaround from loss to profit for the Year was mainly attributable to (i) the
significant growth in Good Heath brand’s sales revenue from cross-border
e-commerce platforms and the distribution channels for infant and child series
products in the PRC; and (ii) the overall improvement in the Group'’s gross
profit margin, driven by the higher proportion of revenue from cross-border
e-commerce platforms, which have higher gross profit margins.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DM

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flow

During the Year, the Group's cash and cash equivalents increased by
approximately RMB44.2 million, which mainly comprised the net cash inflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB47.1 million, net cash inflow
from investing activities of approximately RMB0.5 million, net cash outflow
used in financing activities of approximately RMB4.5 million and exchange
gains of approximately RMB1.1 million.

Inventories

The Group's inventories amounted to approximately RMB108.9 million as at 31
December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB75.3 million). The
Group's inventories include raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods
and goods merchandise. The balance of inventories increased by
approximately 44.6% compared with that as at 31 December 2022. The
increase in inventories during the Year is primarily due to the significant growth
in Good Health brand’s sales revenue from cross-border e-commerce platforms,
resulting in an increased inventories of such finished goods sold through the
relevant channel by the Group. The inventory turnover days were
approximately 181 days for the Year (2022: approximately 213 days), decreasing
by 32 days compared with that of 2022. Such decrease was mainly due to the
Group's further expansion of e-commerce channels, which generally has faster
inventory turnover. The revenue from e-commerce channels increased
significantly in terms of the percentage of the Group’s overall sales revenue
during the Year, thus increasing the Group's overall inventory turnover.

Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB32.5 million as
at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB28.2
million), representing an increase of approximately RMB4.3 million or
approximately 15.2%. Such increase in trade receivables was mainly due to (i)
the expansion of distribution on business-to-business e-commerce platforms;
and (i) the increase in accounts receivable as a result of the increase in sales
revenue from the distributor channels for infant and child series products in
the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

Trade payables

The Group's trade payables increased by approximately RMB11.6 million or
approximately 54.0% to approximately RMB33.1 million as at 31 December
2023 (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB21.5 million). Such increase
in trade payables was mainly due to Good Health’s significant increase in
production volume to meet the high demand for finished goods resulting from
the substantial growth in orders from the Chinese customers, thereby leading
to intensified procurement from upstream suppliers.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group conducts in-bound transactions principally in RMB and outbound
transactions principally in New Zealand dollar, United States dollar, and
Australian dollar. The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring of its foreign exchange exposures. The Directors
consider the Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuation to be minimal.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any hedging or other alternative
policies to deal with such exposure during the Year.

Borrowings and pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any outstanding borrowings
or pledge of assets.

Gearing position

The gearing ratio, which represented total net debt (including lease liabilities,
trade payables and other payables and accruals) divided by total equity
attribute to owners of the parent and net debt multiplied by 100%, was
approximately 23.3% and 22.0% as at 31 December 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group invested approximately RMB0.05 million (2022:
approximately RMB1.4 million) for the establishment of research &
development centre, plants and equipment.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material capital
commitments or contingent liabilities (as at 31 December 2022: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DM

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1.

ARPAEBASRNBR QA

Any future occurrence of force majeure events, natural disasters or
outbreaks of epidemics, including but not limited to those caused by
COVID-19 influenza may restrict business activities in the areas affected
and adversely affect our business and operating results.

An increase in the price of raw materials and packaging materials could
adversely affect our business. The Group's products are composed of
certain raw materials such as nutraceuticals, herb extracts, vitamins and
mineral products as well as packaging materials. The Group is affected
by the increase in the prices of these raw materials and packaging
materials, which are determined principally by market forces and the
Group's bargaining power vis-a-vis the Group's suppliers. If the prices of
these raw materials and packaging materials were to increase
significantly, the Group may not be able to offset all price increases by
raising the prices of the Group’s products. Moreover, the Group may lose
competitive advantage if the prices of the Group’s products increase
significantly.

The Group's failure to appropriately respond to changing consumer
preferences and introduce new products could significantly harm
customer relationships and product sales of the Group. The continued
success of the Group is particularly subject to changing consumer trends
and preferences and the Company’s ability to anticipate and respond to
these changes. If the Company is not able to respond in a timely or
commercially appropriate manner to these changes, relationships with
customers of the Group and product sales could be harmed significantly.
Furthermore, the nutritional supplements industry is characterised by
rapid and frequent changes in demand for new products. The
Company's failure to accurately predict these trends and introduce new
products could negatively impact consumer opinion of the Company.
This could harm customer relationships and cause losses to the market
share of the Group. The success of new product offerings of the Group
depends on a number of factors, including the ability to accurately
anticipate customer needs, innovate and develop new products,
successfully commercialise new products in a timely manner,
competitively pricing the products of the Group, manufacture and
deliver products in sufficient volumes and in a timely manner, and
differentiate product offerings from competitors. If the Group does not
introduce new products or make enhancements to meet the changing
needs of customers in a timely manner, some of the products of the
Group could become obsolete, which could have an adverse effect on
the operating results of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWmR DN

4. Foreign exchange risk and fluctuations in exchange rates could have an
adverse effect on business and investors’ environment. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for its purchases in United
States dollars, Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars from third-
party manufacturers in Australia and New Zealand. The appreciation or
depreciation of RMB against United States dollars, Australian dollars and
New Zealand dollars may have a significant impact on the Group's
profitability. For example, a depreciation of RMB could increase costs of
purchasing products from Australia and New Zealand, as such
depreciation would require the Group to convert more RMB to obtain
the equivalent foreign currency necessary to tender payment. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to
foreign currency risk. The value of RMB against foreign currencies,
including United States dollars, Australian dollars and New Zealand
dollars, fluctuates and is affected by, among other things, changes in the
PRC and international political and economic conditions and the PRC
government'’s fiscal, monetary and currency policies. There remains
significant international pressure on the PRC government to adopt a
more flexible currency policy. The Group cannot predict how RMB will
fluctuate in the future. As a result, the fluctuation in the exchange rate
between RMB and other currencies could have an adverse effect on the
Group's business, financial condition and operating results.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Quality and dedicated staff are indispensable assets to the Group’s success in
the competitive market. By providing comprehensive trainings and corporate
culture education periodically, the employees are able to obtain on-going
trainings and development in the nutritional supplements industry.
Furthermore, the Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurated with industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
all employees. The Group reviews its human resources and remuneration
policies periodically to ensure they are in line with market practice and
regulatory requirements. As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a work
force of 349 employees (as at 31 December 2022: 298 employees). The total
salaries and related costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB89.8
million (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB71.9 million).

20

4. EXRRREXFHAIEHEENKE
REELTMEE XK EAZINE R
B TERAAEBEAET BT
PR T AR AR E R AT E =78
EEMERE ARBAET  BTR
ArEETAEAREIEHAEENR
MEENERERTE - flon - AR
B A] Be & E 2[R K a5 I 4t 70 B 3R P
EmHRALR BRARBEE K
SEARBRE S AREAERIS N A
FFEING - REE A AREBEAOT
AT EAREIHIMERR - ARSI
B (BREXT ARTRATERET) WEE
KB ThRE (R ERE) h BB
BOA R AR B S B LA K o BT &Y
MBMEERENTE - PEBFDE
REABRES  KARDEREED
ERBR - AEEELBARKARE
MER - Fil - ARBHEMEEME
FTRB ARG HARBOES - M
MEEEEBEETNZE -

ADERER
BEENBEMEIRAEERGFMEE
I R s EE - EEZTHREES
AREININRCECHRE  ETRHESE
ERRBABTEFEMNBEREIIRER -
o AEEATEBREBREEFTATTEED
WEBRFINFHEFBERSEREER - &
EETHBRTHEADEREFIEUR - AR
REEMSEOREERTE - 112023F 12 A
31H  AREBEAMIOZE T (R2022F12 A
31H 1 28%FBT) - RAFENE © KIEEH
RARBEN A ANRESEH & T (2022512
A31B :HARBNIAET) °

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Directors, Supervisors Senior Management and Employees

NEEEREES

BEE

BE - B4

DIRECTORS 5=
The Board consists of 6 Directors, including 3 executive Directors and 3 HEEEHoBESMENK  BEIZRITEER
independent non-executive Directors. 3SEBILIEITES »
The information of the Directors is set out as follows: BEENEHEINNOT
Date of joining Date of
Name Age the Group Position/Title appointment Roles and responsibilities
e i MAXKENAY B EE ZEEH ABRBE
Mr. Gui Pinghu 64 24 May 1999 Chairman and 24 May 1999 Chairman of the strategy and development
executive Director committee of the Board (“Strategy and
Development Committee”);
being responsible for strategic
development of the Company
HEERLE 645% 199F5A248 ESREWTES 199658248 EFEBETHRLEREZES
(BMRBRESS)) IR
BEARDAIEBMEER
Ms. Zhang Yuan 54 25May 1999 Chief executive officer 17 June 2011 General manager, being responsible
and executive for the management, organisation,
Director implementation of Board decisions;
and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board ("Nomination
Committee’ )
RRZ L+ S45% 199F5A258 HEWTERNMTES 201nFe6A17A  BLE AREE A EHESS
RAREEEETREEES
((REZB8)KE
Ms. Zhu Feifei 42 29 July 2003 Chief production officer 25 October 2012 Chief production officer; a member of
and executive Director the remuneration committee of the
Board ('/Remuneration Committee’)
ARRLL O 003F7A298 HEHELEERNTES W0NF10AE BHELEE SECETHFHZES
((FMEEE)KE
Mr. Yu Bo 53 26January 2022 Independent 26 January 2022 Chairman of the Nomination Committee;
non-executive Director amember of each of the audit committee
of the Board ("Audit Committee”)
and Strategy and Development Committee
RREE 53p% 202F 18268  BMIFNITES 02F1R26H REEZSSIFE BEEQETEX
ZEg([BREEE) R
EMkBEREZEEKE
Ms. Cai Tianchen 50 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Audit Committee;
non-executive a member of each of the
Director Remuneration Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee
BERRLL S05% 2018F10A 238 BUFHITES 018F10A23H BRZELIR FMEEER
BRI EREZEENE
Mr. Wang Wei 41 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Remuneration
non-executive Committee; a member of each of
Director the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee
FEEL 415% 2018510 A 238  BUFHITES 018F10A23H HMZELXIR BERZEER
REZEEKE
y 4
ARAEBERNBERAT —T_=FF#K V1



Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

£ EE - SREEENREES

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (£ 3#), aged 64, the founder of the Group, is the chairman
of the Board (“Chairman”) and was appointed as an executive Director on 24
May 1999. Mr. Gui is also a director of Australia Cobayer Health Food Co. Pty
Ltd. (“Cobayer”) and Good Health Products Limited (“GHP”) (Shanghai Weiyi
Investment Management Co., Ltd.'s (“Shanghai Weiyi") wholly-owned
subsidiary). He is primarily responsible for the strategic development of the
Company.

Mr. Gui graduated from Nanjing Xiaozhuang University (formerly known as
Nanjing Institute of Education* (B R ZX B Z2B71)), majoring in Chinese in July
1989 and was awarded a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Fudan University in
June 2010. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Gui and his spouse were
interested in approximately 81.26% of the domestic shares of the Company
(the “Domestic Shares”). Mr. Gui was also interested in approximately 8.63%
of the H shares of the Company ("H Shares”).

Mr. Gui was the general manager of Hainan East & West Advertisement Art
Company* (H R R A7 ESEMT A7) from November 1992 to October
1994, the general manager of Nanjing Tangshan Garden Hotel* (55 LLIFE
EHJE) between January 1995 and December 1996 and the general manager
of Nanjing Xin Chuang Mould and Die Factory* (B3R ¥ A& ER) from
January 1997 to December 1998. In May 1999, he established the Company
and has since then been the Director. Mr. Gui has more than 20 years of
experience in the nutritional supplements industry.

Ms. Zhang Yuan (5&®JR), aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Group ("Chief Executive Officer”) on 17 June
2011. Ms. Zhang is also a director of Shanghai Weiyi, GHP, Living Nature Natural
Products Limited and Living Nature Limited. Ms. Zhang is primarily responsible
for the management, organisation and implementation of Board decisions. As
at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhang was interested in approximately
0.98% of the Domestic Shares and approximately 0.08% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the nutritional supplements

industry. She was appointed as the office supervisor of the Company in May
1999 and the deputy general manager of the Company in January 2008.

Ms. Zhang obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration,
which was a part-time programme from Nanjing University in June 2012.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

EE  EE - SREEENREES

Ms. Zhu Feifei (5k ), aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director on
25 October 2012. Ms. Zhu is also a director of Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-tech
Co. Limited* (B8 A E AW AR A F]) and Niuhao Health Nutrition
(Nanjing) Co. Limited* (AHEFIE & & (M R)BRAF). Ms. Zhu is primarily
responsible for the production of the Group. As at the date of this annual
report, Ms. Zhu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic Shares.

Ms. Zhu joined the Company as a sales clerk of the sales department in July
2003. She was promoted to be the chief production officer in January 2008.
She was appointed as a Director in October 2012.

Ms. Zhu graduated from a part-time programme of the Open University of
China (formerly known as China Central Radio and Television University* (9 5%
EEE AR R ER) majoring in Business Administration in January 2008.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Bo (5R¥), aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 January 2022.

Mr. Yu obtained a doctoral degree in management from Nanjing University in
2006 and a master degree in business administration from Nanjing University
in 2001.

Mr. Yu has been appointed as a director of Nanjing Hexi New City Technology
Venture Capital Fund Co,, Ltd* (A 5UN AT M BHE BRI R ESIBES AR
A A]) since December 2011. He has also been a director of Nanjing Sinar Mas &
Zi Jin Venture Capital Management Co. Ltd* (AR &N XS EIEIREEERS
R 22 A]) since January 2012, in which he served as its president between 2018
and 2020, a director of Nanjing Jinmei Film and Television Investment
Management Co,, Ltd* (AR & FEFRILE BIERBRR AR since September
2014, and the vice chairman of Nanjing Hongtu Venture Capital Co,, Ltd.* (R &
41 T BIZER E BR A7) since September 2017.

Since May 2020, Mr. Yu has become an independent director of Shenzhen
Jiachuang Video Technology Co., Ltd* (RIITTEEIR MR (D B R A 7)),
the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300264). Since October 2020, Mr. Yu has become an independent director of
GemPharmatech Co., Ltd* (L#&k 5 & 82 R A M RHR AR 19 B R 2 7). He has
also taken up the role of chief economist at Nanjing Southeast Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd* (B RER MR EHZE S EIE AR A 7)) since May
2021, and has also been appointed as a director of Nanjing Innovation
Investment Group Co., Ltd* (AR MAIFIEESEBRE T AT since
September 2021.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

£ EE - SREEENREES

Ms. Cai Tianchen (£2X &), aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018. Ms. Cai completed an accounting
programme at Hangzhou Dianzi University (formerly known as Hangzhou
Institute of Electronic Engineering* (L1 % F T % &3F%)) in October 1993, and
is a non-practising member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of
Singapore since June 2001, a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder of the
CFA Institute at Charlottesville, Virginia since September 2004, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September 2007 and
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2012.

Ms. Cai has extensive experience in initial public offering, merger and acquisition
and restructuring gained at international accounting firms. Ms. Cai has been a
partner of the Shanghai office of RSM China (B s & 5T Rl B 75 AT (kL@ 4
%)) (formerly known as Grant Thornton (BRI & FHEN BB FT (R ERE %))
since October 2013. Prior to joining RSM China, Ms. Cai has joined the Singapore
office of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an auditor in February 1998, and was later
promoted to a manager in 2003 and then to a senior manager at the Shanghai
office of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Ms. Cai has been an independent non-executive director of China Jishan
Holdings Limited since 28 December 2017, and resigned on 31 December
2020. The shares of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange (stock code:
118).

Mr. Wang Wei (£), aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Wang holds a doctorate degree in
food science. Mr. Wang has been a lecturer and an associate professor at the
College of Food Science and Technology at Nanjing Agricultural University
from December 2013 to December 2015 and from December 2015 onwards,
respectively. Mr. Wang has also been a council member of the seventh session
of the council of the Jiangsu Association for Instrumental Analysis* (T #%& 7
HOBIE &) since July 2016,

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in food science and engineering and a
master's degree in food science from Nanjing Normal University in July 2006

and June 2009 respectively, and a doctorate degree in food science from China
Agricultural University in June 2012.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors Senior Management and Employees

BEE B

SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors (“Supervisors”) of the Company ("Board of
Supervisors’) currently consists of four members. The following table sets out

I_.l

certain information about the Supervisors.

NEEEREES

E=
ARAEE(EENe((EEg)BHhM
BB - TREINEEHNHLDER -

Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
mE Fi# MAXEBENBEH B B ZEBRH AERBE
Ms. Yu Min 45 16 September 2002 Chairman of the Board of 25 October 2012 General manager of the sales
Supervisors department of the Group in
Nanjing
R L 455% 20029 A 16 A EEgXR 0R2F10A258 AEEERIHE AL
Ms. Wang Ping 37 30 June 2009 Supervisor 5 June 2020 Human resources manager of
the Company
I L 375% 2009 6 A30H = 2020F6 A5H  ARBANEREE
Ms. Lu Jiachun 45 20 June 2001 Employee representative 25 October 2012 Accounting clerk
Supervisor
BElEAL R+ 453% 200146 A 20 H BIRKRES 0124 10A258 ZRE
Ms. Chen Xiu 39 30 August 2003 Employee representative 16 May 2013 Supervision specialist
Supervisor
PRABL L 395% 200348 A30H BTRRES 20135168 EEZS

Ms. Yu Min (5R#)), aged 45, was appointed as the chairman of the Board of

Supervisors on 25 October 2012.

Ms. Yu graduated from Jinling Institute of Technology* (

(formerly known as Nanjing Agricultural School* (ST 2 £ HERIER))

majoring in Accounting in June 1999. As at the date of this annual report, Ms.

Yu was interested in approximately 0.109% of the Domestic Shares.

In 2002, Ms. Yu joined the Company as an accounting clerk and was promoted
to be the sales manager of Nanjing in September 2004 and customer relations
manager in January 2008. Ms. Yu was subsequently appointed as the chairman
of the Board of Supervisors and continued to be the customer relations
manager. In July 2018, Ms. Yu was promoted as the general manager of the

sales department of the Group in Nanjing.

Ms. Wang Ping (£ ¥

of Technology* (&

resources manager of the Company.

* For identification purpose only

MR AR

alRnBERQE

TR CFEFR

%), aged 37, was appointed as a Supervisor on 5 June
2020. Ms. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and
literature, majoring in broadcasting and hosting art, from Changzhou Institute
INTEBR) in June 2009. Ms. Wang has joined the Company
since June 2009. She first joined the Company as a conference moderator and
was later promoted to a human resources officer. She is currently the human
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Ms. Lu Jiachun (BE{E#), aged 45, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 25 October 2012. Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from a part-time programme of the Open
University of China in October 2005.

Ms. Lu has been an accounting clerk of the Group since June 2001. In October
012, she was appointed as a member of the Board of Supervisors.

Ms. Chen Xiu (B 55), aged 39, was appointed as the employee representative
Supervisor on 16 May 2013. Ms. Chen graduated from Jiangsu Institute of
Commerce* (TERAS B EBIMTEPT) (formerly knovvn as Jiangsu Vocational
and Technical Institute of Economics and Commerce* (7T &k 3 & IR &2
B)) majoring in Accounting in July 2004

BEfEMiL L - 4558 R2012F10A25HEER
TABTRRESE - B4 72005910 AH
SBRRMAMASER INEIEESEA -

Pz B200Feo AE—EHETAEBMNL
BRE - R202F 107  HEZETAEESK

m s

\
’

BRFBLL 3955 R2013F 5 16HEZRT
BB IRRES ML ITR2004F7AEE
PITEHREERERITSR (BB TIHAmEEE
HEE) BETEE -

Ms. Chen joined the Group in August 2003 as a customer service clerk. Since  FRZ TR 2003F 8 AMAREBITERXE °
July 2009, she has been a supervision specialist. H2009F7 A I —EHEFEEERS -
SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE
Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
" A Fi: MAXEEWBEH B B ZEBH AERBE
Ms. Zhi Hui (2 #F) 43 4 June 2002 Secretary of the Board, 25 October 2012 Secretary of the Board,
joint company secretaries company secretarial
matters
XA 435% 200296 A48 EFEegnE 2012F10A25H EFEWE
/N R = REMESH
Mr. Li Bin (Z3H) 44 1July2013 Chief financial officer 1 July 2013 Finance management
S 4475% 20137 A1 H BREVBE 2013F7R1RH B E e
Mr.WuJun (R&) 40 4 September 2006 Financial controller 1 September 2013 Finance management
RERE 405% 2006 5F9 A4 H 54t 20139 A 1R MigER

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Zhi Hui (X FF), aged 43, has more than 10 years of experience in the
nutritional supplements industry. She joined the Group in June 2002 as an
office clerk. She was promoted as the human resources manager of the
Company in January 2008. In October 2012, she became the secretary to the
Board and served as the joint company secretaries of the Company
concurrently. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhi was interested in
approximately 0.07% of the Domestic Shares and 0.12% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhi graduated from Sanjiang University majoring in Modern Company
Secretary in June 2002.

Mr. Li Bin (Z=38), aged 44, was appointed as the chief financial officer of the
Company in July 2013. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of accounting experience.
He obtained a bachelor degree in Accounting from the Nanjing University of
Finance and Economics in August 2003 and was admitted as a Certified
Management Accountant of the United States in July 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the financial controller of the finance
department of Nanjing SIXIN Scientific-Technological Application Research
Institute Co., Ltd.* (A RO R L E AW BMR A R]), a company
engaging in the development and production of Silicone and non-Silicone
foam control agents, between October 2003 and March 2007. He worked in
the finance department of CEEG (Nanjing) New Energy Co,, Ltd* (P EE R
R EeRAMR AR, a company that engages in the research and
development, production, sale and services of solar energy components,
between June 2007 and September 2009 and the finance department of the
solar energy business unit of Jiangsu Sainty International Group Machinery
Import and Export Corporation Limited* (JT fk %= X BUFR £ B # i 28 1 O I (D
BBR/A 7)), a company that engages in import and export trade, between
October 2009 and October 2010.

Mr. Wu Jun (218), aged 40, was appointed as the financial controller of the
Company in September 2013. Mr. Wu has more than 10 years of experience in
the nutritional supplements industry. He joined the Group in September 2006
as an accounting clerk of the finance department of Hangzhou Zhongyan
Biological Products Co. Limited* (i -P A4 )& A FR A F) and became
an accounting clerk of the finance department of the company in August 2008.
He was promoted as the finance manager of the Company in January 2011.

Mr. Wu graduated from Nanjing University of Technology (F &R T2 K £2)
majoring in Project Management in June 2006.

* For identification purpose only
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhi Hui (2 7), serves as the secretary to the Board and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed
"Senior Management” above for her biography.

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (H 3£ &), FCG HKFCG, aged 56, was appointed as
joint company secretaries of the Company on 7 November 2013. Ms. Kam is an
executive director of Corporate Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a
global professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services. Ms. Kam has over 20 years of extensive
experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been providing
professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Kam is a Chartered Secretary
and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
("HKCGI") and The Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Kam is a holder of the
Practitioner's Endorsement from HKCGI.

Ms. Kam has been appointed by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as the
member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (SCCLR) for a term
of 2 years starting from 1 February, 2024.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various committees. In
accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the corporate
governance practice prescribed in the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Company has formed four Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, and the Strategy and Development Committee.

Audit Committee

The Board established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of internal audit function, scope of audit and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. At
present, the Audit Committee comprises Ms. Cai Tianchen, Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Wang Wei, the independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Cai Tianchen is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and reviewing and/or approving the
matters relating to the share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. At
present, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang Wei and Ms. Cai
Tianchen, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhu Feifei, an
executive Director. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Board established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession planning
of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. At present, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Wang Wei, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang Yuan, an
executive Director. Mr. Yu Bo is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Strategy and Development Committee

The Board established a Strategy and Development Committee with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Strategy and Development
Committee are to conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the
long-term development strategies and material investment decisions of the
Company. At present, the Strategy and Development Committee comprises
Mr. Gui Pinghu, the Chairman and an executive Director, and Mr. Yu Bo and Ms.
Cai Tianchen, the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the
chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.
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EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains good working relations with its staff. It has not
experienced any significant problems with the recruitment and retention of
experienced employees. In addition, it has not suffered from any material
disruption of its normal business operations as a result of labour disputes or
strikes.

In the PRC, in accordance with relevant national and local labour and social
welfare laws and regulations, the Group is required to pay in respect of its
employees in the PRC various social security funds including basic pension
insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational
injury insurance, critical illness insurance, insurance for maternity leave and
housing provident fund.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and is engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of nutritional supplements and the trading of
packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and New Zealand.
Particulars of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

As far as the Company is aware, for the year ended 31 December 2023, it has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from its
business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manages
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and adopting
green technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade equipment such
as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order to increase overall operating
efficiency. To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the Group measures and
records the energy consumption intensity from time to time.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 136 of this annual
report.

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil) or any special dividend (2022: Nil).

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) who have waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report for a business review of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during
2023 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
2023 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

BRPABEBREARAT —Bo=FEH

ETEXR

ARAR—FREERAR  AREXRHE -
BAR G RATEHREREEERRERMR
FRHERRRRBRR -HEXEMEAF
M E BRI B RN AF Mir e 71w M
A

BARANRAA HE2023F12A831H L5
B EEESERFTABTHARANER
MEEEERNTENMBEERER -

AEERBINERAG X EHHRERE
MEME - AEBTHS KB NERAERLE
EBHEBMNRRTE  ABAREREZEY
2 - AEEEEEREAERERIIRERRK
i EEZARECERBROEE - fln K
SESKARRARZREZRERE AR
BERBETHE - BBERIEMKE  AEE
TREE ML fERE -

XERKRE
REBR0BFHEBEHNRNFRE 1368
iR Em R EMm P EWEX -

BEESTEBFRNEE2023F12A31HIESF
& T R EAIR B (2022 4F : 48®) Sh{E 45 B
A% B (20224 « 4&)

RAEHRAY EFS@WBBANBEMARA
PR (MR ) DA KR B s WEE T AL, »

AKAREHE2023F 12831 HIEFEHNEBKE
FE2EAFERIEIEE LN —6 -

M- BERKRE
AEEWE - BEREER2023FNEE)F
BENAFRIEG A EIRERM T 13 -

% <
ARNTDBITIRANR2023FNEEFIESHN
RERIFA P IEIRER M 5E 26 o

31



Directors’Report

ESEWRE

RESERVES

The amount of the Company’s accumulated losses as at 31 December 2023
was RMB(319.1) million. Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 139 of this annual report.

The Group did not have any outstanding borrowings or pledge of assets as at
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). Please refer to note 32 to the financial
statements in this annual report for further information in relation to financial
risk management of the Company.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans, borrowings or pledge of
assets as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). Please refer to note 32 to the
financial statement in this annual report for further information in relation to
financial risk management of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the total revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% and the revenue attributable to the Group’s
largest customer was less than 10%.

For the Year, the total purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers were less than 30% and the purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was less than 10%.

For the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the number of the Company's issued shares, had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2023 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhu Feifei
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cai Tianchen

Mr. Wang Wei

Mr. Yu Bo

No Director will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM").

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during 2023 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Ms. Yu Min (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Ping

Ms. Lu Jiachun

Ms. Chen Xiu

The Board of Supervisors has held two meetings during 2023. Details of the
meetings and events conducted by the Board of Supervisors during 2023 are
set out in the work report of the Board of Supervisors of this annual report.

Details of biography of Directors, Supervisors and the senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 21 to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of appointment
(for non-executive Directors) with the Company for a term of three years and
shall be elected by Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office, which
the successive terms of office of independent non-executive Directors shall not
exceed six years, in accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the
"Articles”).

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years and may be re-elected. No Director or Supervisor has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group to protect the
Directors and officers of the Group against any potential liability arising from
the Group's activities which such Directors and officers may be held liable.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at AGM. Other emoluments will
be determined and recommended by the members of the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities, performance of the
Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and the five highest paid
employees of the Company are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends will be reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to
the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS, ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTION OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts, arrangement or transaction of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries were a party subsisted at the end of 2023 or at any
time during the same year in which any Director or Supervisor or any entity
connected with the Director or Supervisor had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not entered
into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to manage or
administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules on the Stock

Exchange, are set out below:

Capacity
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Nature of interest

EEHE

Class of share
of the Company

AARARGBER

™

Number
of shares
held as at

31 December
2023

2023 &
12A31H
FrsiRpe e

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the relevant
class of shares®
REER
R4 B4
BRESL®

(%)

MR2023F 128318 BF -EERARAF
BEBABRARRSKEMAEEE (FELFE
FREEGEN ((BFERBEKRH]) EXvED)
AR KRR IR (5 B AR SN IRIEFES &
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Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the total
share capital®
R
BRAHYBEA
EREOK®
(%)

Mr. Gui Pinghu Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 494,605,108 (L) 73.40% 52.27%
('Mr. Gui")” % ERBEAA NER
ERey ik Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 560%
([ExE] (L ¥ NER
Beneficial owner H Shares 23,508,000 (L) 8.63% 248%
ExBEBA HA&
Ms. Zhang Yuan Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 6,599,550 (L) 0.98% 0.70%
RRZ T % ERBEAA NER
Beneficial owner H Shares 218,000 (L) 0.08% 0.02%
EHBEAA H A%
Ms. Zhu Feifei Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
ARFRAL L % ExBEBA NER
Ms. Yu Min Supervisor Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
Rt EZ ERBEAA NER
V4
MRFEBARBERAT —B_=FFR B5
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Notes:
1 The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

) Mr. Gui is the spouse of Ms. Wu Yanmei. Under the SFO, Mr. Gui was deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares in which Ms. Wu Yanmei was interested.

(3) As at 31 December 2023, the number of total issued shares of the Company was 946,298,370.

4) As at 31 December 2023, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares was
673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, or any of their spouses, or
children under 18 years of age, has any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief
Executives' Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”, at
no time in 2023 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable the Directors and
Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors and Supervisors, or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the persons who
hold 5% or more of the class shares in the issued share capital of the Company
(other than Directors and Supervisors), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as it was

known to Directors are set out below:

Nature of interest

smIMORBESINT

Number
of shares
held as at

31 December
20230
R2023 &
12A31H
FrERpEa

Class of share
of the Company

AARARGBER

Approximate
shareholding
percentage in
therelevant
class of shares®
REEEH
R34
EREs®
(%)

FERRRROREBR G ERS
5923

BEENE RN2023F128318 0 AR A
BIEES NG G0 F B3GR TEMEFNE
MRS RARRERTR AT A
BIRED 5% sk LA = AL (BEREERIN A9

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the total
share capital®
R

BRAHY A
FRaote
(%)

Ms. Wu Yanmei® Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 5.60%
R Lo BRBEAA NE MR
Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 494,605,108 (L) 73.40% 52.27%
REER NER
Interest of spouse H Shares 23,508,000 (L) 8.63% 248%
RLEER HER
Ms. Zhou Li Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 35,075453 (L) 5.21% 3.71%
BBt BRBEAA NE MR
Mr. Cheng Xiaowei® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 35,075453 (L) 5.21% 3.71%
RMERE (g E NER
Mr. Gui Ke Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
BEEEE BHBEAA NE MR
Ms. Li Shi® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
TRt (g E NER
Mr. Chen Xuelin Beneficial owner H Shares 27,576,000 (L) 10.12% 291%
REMEL BHBEAA HA&
Hin Sang Group (International) Beneficial owner H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
Holding Co. Ltd.
THESE (HR)ERERAR ERHEFA HAX
Genwealth Group Holding Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
Company Limited corporation
NTEEEERERAA R EEER HIR
Ms. Kwan Lai Man® Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
HEER L RIEEEER HIR
Interest of spouse H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
REER H %
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
2R REEEER HA&
Beneficial owner H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
EREEA HAR
y 4
MRFEBARBERAT —B_=FFR B/



Directors’Report

ESEWRE

Notes:
(1 The letter “L" represents long position in such securities.

2) Ms. Wu Yanmei is the spouse of Mr. Gui. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu Yanmei was deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui was interested.

3) As at 31 December 2023, the number of total issued shares of the Company was 946,298,370.

4) As at 31 December 2023, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares was
673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

(5) Mr. Cheng Xiaowei is the spouse of Ms. Zhou Li. Under the SFO, Mr. Cheng Xiaowei was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Zhou Li was interested.

(6) Ms. Li Shi is the spouse of Mr. Gui Ke. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Shi was deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui Kei was interested.

(7) These 59,121,600 H Shares were held by Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd., an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands whose issued
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6893). Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. was held as to 50.68% by Genwealth Group Holding Company Limited,
which is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Ms.
Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Accordingly, Genwealth Group Holding
Company Limited, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man were deemed to hold interests in
these H Shares under the SFO.

®) Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Under the SFO, Ms. Kwan Lai Man was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Pang Siu Hin was
interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors, Supervisors or the chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which shall be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Company for the Year and
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has adopted a written terms of reference which are in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. The Audit
Committee is primarily responsible for the review and supervision of the
financial reporting process, and risk management and internal control system.
It has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and the audited final results of the Group for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations. Please refer to
section “With philanthropy at heart, we share our benefits with society” in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this annual report for details
of the donations made by the Group.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Directors, managing directors, alternate Directors, secretary and other
officers for the time being of the Company and the trustees (if any) for the time
being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company, and their
respective executors or administrators, shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any
of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
legal action against Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company,
or existed during the Year.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

During the Year, there were no material investments, acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, there were no significant events affecting the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or applicable
laws of the PRC where the Company is incorporated.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
(as defined under the Listing Rules) during the Year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Gui Pinghu and Ms. Wu Yanmei, both being the controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules), have made non-competition undertakings in favour
of the Company. They have confirmed compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The Board, including the independent non-executive Directors, is
of the opinion that the relevant controlling Shareholders have been in
compliance with the non-competition undertakings in favour of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code during 2023.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing the
Directors in their dealings in the Company’s securities. The Company has made
specific enquiry with the Directors and Supervisors and all Directors and
Supervisors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

The H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during 2023.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The total net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the listing of shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the issue of the over-
allotment shares amounted to approximately HK$428.7 million (equivalent to
RMB336.4 million).

As at 31 December 2023,

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB72.0 million and RMB0.8 million
has been used on the acquisition of GHP, and for Living Nature's product
function enhancement;

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB95.1 million has been used to
build a R&D testing centre;

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB19.3 million has been used to
build information technology and logistics centre;

(iv)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB97.6 million has been used on
the marketing and promotion activities;

(v)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB13.5 million has been used to
expand the sales network and explore new markets; and

(vi)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB33.6 million has been used for
working capital and the remaining of the Net Proceeds of approximately
RMB4.5 million has been deposited into banks, which are intended to be
applied in accordance with the proposed application set out in the
circular of the Company dated 22 September 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued
share capital was held by public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 were audited by Ernst & Young, who holds office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. A resolution of the reappointment of
Ernst & Young as the external auditor of the Company respectively will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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OUTLOOK

In 2023, being the first year after the pandemic, the market faced numerous
challenges including global inflation, the Russia-Ukraine war, escalating
geopolitical conflicts, and continuing China-US trade competition which
brought uncertainties to the stability in the global economic growth. Despite
these challenges, China maintained stable economic growth, with the
domestic consumer market gradually recovering, foreign trade steadily
increasing, and increase in investment growth rate. On the other hand, the
government continued to implement proactive fiscal policies and prudent
monetary policies, which are aimed at promoting economic structural reforms,
optimising industrial structure, enhancing technological innovation
capabilities, and strengthening environmental protection efforts.

Benefiting from our well-defined strategic objectives and the management’s
implementation of these objectives, the Group focused on the supply chain
management and continued to put various sales and promotion strategies to
test, thereby enhancing the influence of the Good Health brand. In 2023, the
Group achieved good operating and financial results, evidenced by the rapid
development in sales revenue from both of its key business segments, namely,
the cross-border e-commerce platform and distribution channels for infant and
child products. Furthermore, the Group's profitability also improved steadily,
achieving the target set at the beginning of the year.

Looking into 2024, it is expected that the global economic development will
continue to be affected by numerous challenges, including the ongoing
Russia-Ukraine war and global geopolitical conflicts, and the upcoming US
presidential election which brings about political uncertainties. In addition, the
domestic economic recovery and the introduction of policies may not live up
to market expectation. In 2024, China will be stabilising its economy in the
midst of a market correction. Consumption and services are expected to
continue in its post-pandemic recovery. The government has reiterated its
support for the development of private enterprises, by fostering a fair
competitive environment. In addition, the government will strengthen the
policy-driven coordination and collaboration effort, enhance communications
with the market and enterprises, and timely adjust and optimise relevant
policies.
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In 2024, the Group will continue to implement its established strategic
objectives, whereby amassing resources to push forward with the following
development: (1) the Group's cross-border e-commerce platforms will continue
to try and optimise marketing and promotional strategies in live streaming,
new media, and digital marketing, with a view to enhancing the influence of
the Good Health brand and its key products; (2) the Group will continue to
strengthen the research and development effort in new products, minimize
the research and development cycle, and launch more new products to meet
target customers’ demands; (3) the Group will continue to strengthen the
supply chain management, by enhancing production capacity, in order to
meet customers demand in time, and reducing the production and
procurement cycles; and (4) the Group will expand the sales revenue scale,
while optimising the cost-income output of marketing and promotional
expenses, thereby improving overall profitability.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC, 26 March 2024

ARDEBAKRNERAT —E-_=F4%%

R2024 5  ARBERASHITREBE B R
REBAR BR ()VBEREFEEYEER
HEE MARERE BFHEESZT@E K
THEABICEBERRR RBATRES
BMBARERNTEN  QEBIMANE R
AT EEMERS HEEZNH®
MEBBREFPNER QEEMEHERE
BoRAEER MEREEPHXR BREAL
ERKERY  OBEAXNEENHERAR
B BLEEHEREERRAEL R 2R

BFIRES »

RREFE

EER
KL

REER 20243 A 26 H

43



Work Report of the Board of Supervisors
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During the reporting period of 2023, the Board of Supervisors carefully and
thoroughly performed its supervisory functions in favor of the Company and
the Shareholders in a responsible manner according to the Company Law, the
Articles and the Rules of Procedures for the Board of Supervisors, and the
requirements under the relevant law and regulations, while duly monitoring
and examining the operations and financial conditions of the Company, as well
as the supervision by the Supervisors over the performance of duties by the
members of the Board, the managers and other senior management members
of the Company, according to the laws .

I.  DAILY WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors convened two meetings.

On 30 March 2023, it considered the 2022 Work Report of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company, the Resolution on the 2022 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, the 2022 Financial Settlement of the
Company and the Resolution regarding the 2023 Financial Budget of the
Company, the Resolution on 2022 Profit Distribution Plan of the
Company, the Resolution regarding the Appointment of Accountant and
the Authorisation Granted at the General Meeting to the Board to
Determine Its Remuneration, the Resolution regarding the Authorisation
Granted at the General Meeting to the Board to Determine the
Remunerations of the Directors and Supervisors, the Resolution on 2023
Non-withdrawal of Statutory Reserve of the Company, the Resolution
where the Board is granted the general mandate at the General Meeting
to issue, allocate, and deal with additional Domestic Shares and H Shares,
both numbers of which will be no more than 20% of the total amount of
Domestic Shares and H Shares of the Company in issue respectively, and
the Board is authorised to revise the Articles, as it sees fit, for the
purposes of reflecting the new shareholding structure upon the
allotment or issue of additional shares under the relevant mandate.

On 23 August 2023, it considered the Resolution on Interim Results for
2023 and Interim Dividend Distributions, the Resolution on Material
Internal Audit Findings for the Period Ended 30 June 2023 and the
Resolution on Proposed Measures regarding Employees in respect of
Financial Reporting, Internal Auditing and other Misbehaviours.
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1v.

ARPAEBASRNBR QA

LAWFUL OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors of the Company attended the meetings of the
Board during the Reporting Period, and duly performed its supervisory
duties of operation activities of the Company. It effectively discharged its
supervisory duties on the employee incentives, business development
and channel expansion of the Company on a timely basis, thus fully
delivering its duties in the development of the Company in 2023.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the Company persisted in
standardised operations with due diligence in strict compliance with the
provisions under the Company Law and the Articles, as well as
conscientiously carrying out all resolutions at the general meetings; the
internal control system of the Company was well established; disclosure
of all information was made on a timely and accurate basis; no violation
against the laws, regulations, or the Articles, or prejudice against the
interests of the Company was committed by the Directors and senior
management of the Company in the line of duty.

INSPECTION ON FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE
COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the proposal on business operation
of the Company and its subsidiaries for 2023 and the proposal on
business plan of the Company for the financial year 2024.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the financial report of the
Company reflects its financial position and operation that are complete,
true and accurate. The annual operating results of the Company have
been audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP who has also issued an
audit report on it. The audit report is factual, fair and objective.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that the Group had no connected
transaction in 2023 which was subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON THE
INTERNAL CONTROL SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT

The Board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the internal control
report of the Company, and considered that the Company has
established an appropriate internal control system in all important
aspects and the internal control management system has operated
effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation and normal
business operations.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED
AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

The members of the Board of Supervisors had no objection to the
contents of resolutions submitted to the general meetings. The Board of
Supervisors supervised the implementation of resolutions passed at the
general meetings, and considered that the Board was able to implement
the relevant resolutions earnestly. The Board of Supervisors is of opinion
that the Board of the Company will carefully follow through the relevant
resolutions at the general meetings, without prejudicing the interests of
the Shareholders.

We hereby submit our report.

On behalf of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited*
The Board of Supervisors

Ms. Yu Min
Chairman

26 March 2024

*  For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE AND VALUE

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with high business ethical standards. This reflects its belief that, in
the achievement of its long-term business objectives, it is imperative to act
with probity, transparency and accountability. By doing so, the Company
believes that Shareholders’ return will be maximised in the long term and that
its employees, those with whom it has business activity and the communities
in which it operates will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensuring that its
objectives are met. The Board is committed to maintaining and developing
robust corporate governance practices that are intended to ensure:

satisfactory and sustainable returns to Shareholders;
that the interests of those who deal with the Company are safeguarded;
that overall business risk is understood and managed appropriately;

the delivery of high-quality products and services to the satisfaction of
customers; and

that high standards of business ethics are maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG Code
(the “CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as the basis of
the Company's corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 December 2023,

the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Specific enquiry has been made with all the Directors and Supervisors and the
Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly
reviews the contribution required from a Director to perform his responsibilities
to the Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient time
performing them that are commensurate with their role and the Board
responsibilities.

Board composition
The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, consisting of 3 executive Directors
and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report, the members of the Board are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhu Feifei

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr.Yu Bo

Ms. Cai Tianchen

Mr. Wang Wei

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees” on pages 21 to 24

of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Board meetings and directors’ attendance records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2023 in compliance with the code
provision C.2.7.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board held four meetings. The
attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members”
on page 59 of this annual report.

Chairman and chief executive officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Gui
Pinghu and Ms. Zhang Yuan respectively. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company's business development
and daily management and operations generally.

Independent non-executive directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Ms. Cai Tianchen possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Board independence evaluation

The Company has in place a mechanism that underpin an independent Board
and its views during the Year which sets out the processes and procedures to
ensure a strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board to
effectively exercise independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve the Board's effectiveness,
maximise its strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or
further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the
Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board's performance,
for instance, addressing individual training and development needs of each
Director.

Pursuant to the mechanism that underpin an independent Board and its views,
the Board will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board and the Board
will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if
appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors had completed the
independence evaluation in the form of a questionnaire individually. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report was presented to the Board and the
evaluation results were satisfactory.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism that underpin an
independent Board and its views and the results were satisfactory.

Appointment and re-election of directors

According to the Articles, Directors shall be elected by Shareholders at general
meeting of the Company and their term of office shall be three years. Directors
are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office, while the
successive terms of office of independent Directors shall not exceed six years.
Subject to the relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules of the place
where the Company is listed, if the Board appoints a new Director to fill up any
interim vacancy or increase the members of the Board, the term of office of
such newly added Director shall expire at the next general meeting of the
Company and he/she is eligible for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a

specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current
term.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group's operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in
the Board for bringing effective independent views and judgement on
corporate actions and operations. The Board annually reviews the
implementation and effectiveness of mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input is available to the Board and the Board is of the view that the
independent mechanism is effective.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.
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Continuous professional development of directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order
to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have attended
trainings/seminars on topics such as (i) disclosure of information and insider
dealing; (i) the corporate governance and directors’ skills; (iii) updates on the
regulations under the Listing Rules and directors’ on-going responsibilities; (iv)
connected transactions and the regulations on it; and (v) the management of
employees’ incentive scheme. The following Directors have attended the
trainings during the year ended 31 December 2023:

Name of Directors Participation

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu Attended
Ms. Zhang Yuan Attended
Ms. Zhu Feifei Attended
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Bo Attended
Ms. Cai Tianchen Attended
Mr. Wang Wei Attended
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy and
Development Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which specify clearly their authority and duties. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders
upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual report.

Audit committee

During the Year, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. Ms.
Cai Tianchen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal
audit function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review, amongst other things, the annual financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022, the interim financial
results in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2023 and discussed on 2023
audit plan. The Audit Committee also considered significant issues on the
internal audit, review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems, appointment of external auditors and relevant scope of works
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice during the year
ended 31 December 2023, without the presence of the executive Directors.

The attendance of each of the members of the Audit Committee at the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out
in the table under section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Members”.
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Remuneration committee

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee consists of one executive
Director, namely Ms. Zhu Feifei, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; assessing the performance of the Directors and approving
the terms of Directors’ service contracts; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of members
of the senior management (excluding Directors and Supervisors) by band for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:
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Nil to HKD1,000,000
Over HKD1,000,000

The attendance of each of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out in the section headed "Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Members”.

Nomination committee

During the Year, the Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director,
namely Ms. Zhang Yuan, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yu Bo and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Yu Bo is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition, developing
and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set
out in the Company's Board Diversity Policy (as explained below under the
section headed “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination Committee will
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once in 2023 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

The attendance of each of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2023 is
set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members”.

Strategy and development committee

During the Year, the Strategy and Development Committee consists of one
executive Director, namely Mr. Gui Pinghu, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Bo and Ms. Cai Tianchen. Mr. Gui Pinghu is
the chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.

The principal duties of the Strategy and Development Committee are to
conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the long-term
development strategies and material investment decisions of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Strategy and Development
Committee met once to review the development strategies for the year 2023
and the material investment decisions of the Company.

The attendance of each of the members of the Strategy and Development
Committee at the Strategy and Development Committee meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the section headed “Attendance
Records of Directors and Committee Members”.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. A truly diverse Board will include
and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while
taking into account diversity (including gender diversity). The Company aims
to build and maintain a Board with a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills,
experience, knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company's business growth and is also
committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels
(from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse
range of candidates are considered.

It is the Company’s objective to maintain an appropriate balance of gender
diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices. As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio
in the Company’s workforce (including senior management) was approximately
36% male and 64% female.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be
based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural background, educational background, and professional experience,
which are the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy. Taking into account the Company’s business model and specific needs
as well as the presence of three female Directors out of a total of six Board
members, the Company considers that the composition of the Board satisfies
the Board Diversity Policy.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has achieved the
following measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy:

(@)  toensure at least a member of the Board shall have obtained accounting
or other professional qualification;

(b)  to ensure at least one-third of the members of the Board shall have
attained bachelor’s degree or higher level of education;

(c)  toensure at least one member of the Board was or currently is director
of listed companies (including Hong Kong and other regions) other than
the Company;

(d)  to ensure the Board has members coming from different cultural
backgrounds (including Hong Kong and PRC); and

(e)  to ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board comprised
of people from at least two decades.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The review of the Board Diversity Policy
and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually to ensure
the continued effectiveness of the Board.

Director nomination policy
The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors. It aims
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

Character and integrity;

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy;
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Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board and
independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules; and

Willingness, ability to devote adequate time and relevant interest to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. After receiving a list of candidates, recommended by members of
the Board, for the replacement and appointment of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee requested the candidate to provide his/her
biographical information and other information deemed necessary. The
Nomination Committee reviewed and took reasonable steps to verify the
information obtained from the candidate and seek clarification, where required.
The Nomination Committee may, at its discretion, invite any candidate to meet
with the Nomination Committee members to assist them in their consideration
of the proposed nomination or recommendation. The Nomination Committee
then submitted its nomination proposal to the Board for consideration and
making recommendation to the Shareholders for approval.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this corporate governance report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the table below:

EERZEENEHFELE

TRHFNSEEREHE2023F12A318IEF
ERBINESEEELESTEEC LS

== BE2emMN

285 =K
RAQBRERREG 2 HFrE 8k

Attendance/Number of Meetings

EELER/WERY

Audit
Committee

ENZRE

Name of Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu EEREE 44 -
Ms. Zhang Yuan LT 4/4 -
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRRLE 44 -
Mr. YuBo RREE 44 0N
Ms. Cai Tianchen EXEutL 4/4 1
Mr. Wang Wei TEEE 4/4 12

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the responsibility for establishing, maintaining and evaluating
effective risk management and internal control systems. The board of
Supervisors is responsible for supervising the Board on the establishment and
implementation of risk management and internal control systems. The
management is responsible for coordinating and monitoring the risk
management and internal control progress. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in leading and coordinating matters regarding internal control,
overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Department of the Company examines
key issues in relation to accounting practices and all material controls and
provides its findings to the Audit Committee.

The objectives of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
safeguard the Company’s assets, maintain proper accounting records and
improve operational efficiency, so as to achieve strategic development.

The Company's risk management and internal control systems include different
functions and areas, namely organizational structure, strategic development,
human resources, asset management, sales and purchase, finance and
accounting, information technology, internal audit, contract management and
administration.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key
business processes. The control activities are mainly carried out through the
following:

1. Implement segregation of duties when establishing defined business
processes and work responsibilities;

2. Based on the actual needs of business processes of each business unit,
define approval and authorisation limits, approval process and
responsibilities;

3. Establish accounting procedures by strictly following accounting
standards and framework, enhance the quality and level of accounting
work and improve accounting work procedures; and

4. Set up and evaluate regularly on the procedures regarding the use and

management of assets and safeguard the Company’s assets by defining
clear business processes and work responsibilities.
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The Company’s self-evaluation on internal control systems has the following
features and processes:

1. Communicate with middle and senior management to collect risk
information, conduct analysis and identify high risk areas that the
Company may face for establishing and implementing internal control
systems and defining the scope and key areas;

2. Identify key risk information, define clear risk management
responsibilities and adopt the requirements of risk management and
internal control, based on the conditions of internal control systems of
all business processes of the Company;

3 Identify design defects by verifying and evaluating the implementation
and efficiency of internal control systems through walk-through testing;

4. Discover defects during the implementation of internal control systems
by evaluating key control activities samples which are extracted based
on the frequency of occurrence; and

5. Identify material weakness of internal control systems from business
process perspectives and improve according to the findings and report
of the Audit Department of the Company. Implement and test on the
improved internal control systems and verify its effectiveness.

During the self-evaluation process, the Company has adopted methods such
as interviews, walk-through testing and sampling to broadly collect evidence
in relation to the effectiveness of internal control design and implementation,
accurately analysing and identifying the defects of the internal control systems.
Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that the control
policies are properly complied with.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal audit
findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial and non-financial controls for the year ended 31 December 2023,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate and no material
defects were found.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has in place a whistleblowing policy for employees of the
Company and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matters related to the Company.

The Company also has in place an anti-corruption policy to safeguard against
corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has an internal
reporting channel that is open and available for employees of the Company to
report any suspected corruption and bribery. Employees can also make
anonymous reports to the internal audit function, which is responsible for
investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate measures. The
Company continues to carry out anti-corruption and anti-bribery activities to
cultivate a culture of integrity, and actively organizes anti-corruption training
and inspections to ensure the effectiveness of anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

The Company has developed disclosure policies, such as Procedures for
Information Disclosure Management, Procedures for Internal Reporting of
Material Information and Procedures on Registration of Insiders, which provide
a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees of the Company in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 129 to 135 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2023
is set out below:
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Fees Paid/Payable
RMB’000

BN/ ENER
ARBTR

Annual audit services, Ernst & Young FEEZRY  RXEEREBHET 2,000
Non-audit Services IEEZ R
— Environmental, Social and Governance reporting —RE HeRERREEN
advisory 140
— Tax services — R 252
2,392

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy have been appointed as the
Company's joint company secretaries. Ms. Zhi Hui is experienced in the health
food and nutritional supplements industry and has a thorough understanding
of the operation of the Board and the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy of
Tricor Services Limited, an Asia’s leading business expansion specialist
specialising in integrated business, corporate and investor services, has been
engaged by the Company as joint company secretary. Her primary contact
persons at the Company are Ms. Zhi Hui, another joint company secretary of
the Company and Mr. Li Bin, the chief financial officer of the Company.

ARTAEBABRNABRRR —T-_=FFR

NEAWE
SHLLREEBLLREA AR TYE
ARME EHLTHREARLEERR
BABGLEERR LEHEEERALD
AMEEEREORE -

REFRENEEERLERFTE TR
FERBEAZENNEEAE AARERE
EEXRBBERLR (BPIEERMHPS -
ERREERERBOTMBELENEBHRRE
BER)NEXELRTREBEARWE - K2
TEBMRARSS UBFEARMEARE
RARRBNEFEIHEFBEE -

63



Corporate Governance Report
L EERRE

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and the Board's general practices and
matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, both Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei Ha
Wendy have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 55 and 67 of the Articles, Shareholder(s) individually or
collectively holding 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company
carrying voting rights may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting by sending a written requisition with an explanation of the
matters proposed to be discussed at the meeting.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who individually or collectively holding more than 3% of the
shares of the Company may submit a proposal to the Board in writing 10 days
before the date of the general meeting of the Company, at the Company's
registered office in the PRC or the principal place of business in Hong Kong.
The Board shall notify other Shareholders within 2 days of receiving the
proposal and include it for consideration at the general meeting of the
Company. The matters stated in the proposal must be within the functions and
powers of the general meeting of the Company and it shall have a clear subject
and specific resolutions.

Apart from aforesaid matters, the convener shall not amend the proposals
stated in the notice of the general meeting of the Company or add new
proposals upon issuance of the announcement on the notice of the general
meeting of the Company.
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Putting forward enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company at the Company’s registered office in the PRC or the
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address:

4/F, Building 3

3 Qingma Road

Qixia District

Nanjing

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 86-25-86819168
Email: zhihui@zs-united.net

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-25-86819188 for any assistance.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The Company publishes its
announcements, financial information and other relevant information on its
website at www.zs-united.com, as a channel to facilitate effective
communication. The Company has published detailed contact methods
through its website, notices of the general meeting, circulars to the
Shareholders and annual reports for Shareholders to express their views or
make enquiries.

BRPABEBREARAT —Bo=FEH

MEESEHER
ERAEFSFLEMNENR  ERAKER
BB X R AR B B A G R SR
BENTREXWH - ARBAFTERE
OB ERNER e

B 45 1
PRER AT A T b B X Eat SRk B

Hodik -

FE

TERAE

R

EER

EEKIHR

I 4E

(IR ABRRME)

B H : 86-25-86819168
FEHL : zhihui@zs-united.net

BRER RREAGEZHNERE BEX
BN ERGRBRME) WERTFHRRTE
E Bt WREHFESEN2E - BEFS
MR NS ZE R ER - REER A
BEEBEHE -

IR INFERGBE - MARERRQF - R
75.86-25-86819188 °

ERREREEER

ARBRAE BRRAEIEBE(RHERES
BARRINAREEW RSB ERRIE KR
MTMEASEE - ARNBI B HHEFHEE R
BER LESEBREEFAg REMK
RAE - EF(IEEHKREX(WER) BLE
REBAFREAE RBREREDERERAE -
AR B RAH B (www.zs-united.com) E Tl 2
NE -UBENEEMBBER  (EREE
BREBNREBE -AQNREEBEEY - I
RAEBEE BREBHERTETRENT
MAMARERE T UEHBRRERER K
EITER -

65



Corporate Governance Report
L EERRE

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the Shareholders’
communication policy of the Company. Taking into account the variety of
existing channels for communication and participation, the Company is of the
view that its Shareholders’ communication policy was effective during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Company amended the Articles for the purposes of updating the address
and contact information of the Company on 9 June 2023. Save for the
amendment to the Articles made on 9 June 2023, during the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company has not made any other changes to its Articles.

Arrangement of Electronic Dissemination of Corporate
Communications

Pursuant to Rule 2.07 of Listing Rules under the expansion of paperless listing
regime and electronic dissemination of corporate communications that came
into effect on 31 December 2023, the Company has adopted electronic
dissemination of corporate communications (the “Corporate
Communications”), which mean any documents issued or to be issued by the
Company including but not limited to (a) the directors’ report, its annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditors’ report and, where applicable, its
summary financial report; (b) the interim report and, where applicable, its
summary interim report; (c) a notice of meeting; (d) a listing document; (e) a
circular and (f) a proxy form.

Both the English and Chinese versions of all future Corporate Communications
will be available electronically on the website of the Company at
www.zs-united.com and the HKExnews website at www.hkexnews.hk in place
of printed copies.
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Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that Shareholders’, both individual and institutional, views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company will display the main contact methods on its official website.
Currently, communication with Shareholders takes place mainly by email,
telephone, video conference and regular or occasional meetings of different
scope.

The Board believes that the diversified shareholders’ communication channels
provide Shareholders and investors with effective access to information about
the Group, and that Shareholders can contact the Board directly and express
their opinions on their own initiative through such procedures. The Board,
therefore, endorses the effectiveness of the Shareholders” Communication
Policy.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on declaration and payment of
dividends. The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial year or period
and any final dividend for a financial year which will be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This report is the eighth Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
referred to as the “ESG”") annual report of Nanjing Sinolife United Company
Limited (referred to as the “Company” or “Sinolife United” in this report)
(Stock Code: 3332) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”
or "We”, “Us” and "Our”).

This report covers the Group's ESG performance for the financial period from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period").

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "Guide”) as set forth in the Appendix C2 to
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange’), which is in compliance with the principles of “materiality”,
“quantitative”, “balance”, and “consistency”.

The contents of this report are determined in accordance with a set of systemic
procedures. Such procedures include identifying and listing important stakeholders
and ESG-related issues, determining the scope of the ESG reports, collecting
relevant materials and data, compiling reports based on information and
verifying data in this report.

Scope and Coverage of the Report

The Scope of this report is consistent with the Group's annual report. The
policies, statements, and data given in this report cover the Group and its
subsidiaries.
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Data Description 5 &R A

Information and cases adopted in this report are mainly sourced from the — AR¥R45 AT 3| FM B R A6 £ B RRHN A E
statistics report and related documents of the Group. The Group undertakes B AT 5T ¥R 5 A AR BE SUAR o AN E ARG A
that this report does not contain any false record or misleading statements, £ N FET A E R H - AREMERR UL - I 4
and is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its ERREEFE - EEMEMTEUHEE -
contents.

Confirmation and Approval BRRRE

The report was approved by the Board on 26 March 2024 after confirmation AR ELEIEBHERE » 1 2024F3 5268

with the management. BEZGEB -

Contacts HEHBRNX

4/F, Building 3 hiE ARKME ([HhE])

3 Qingma Road LERE MR

Qixia District EEm

Nanjing, Jiangsu Province EHEE3IW

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) IRIE4IE

Tel: 86-25-86819188 TG ¢ 86-25-86819188

Fax: 86-25-86819168 B & : 86-25-86819168

Website: http://www.zs-united.com #B4E : httpy//www.zs-united.com

E-mail: sinolife@zs-united.com E-mail © sinolife@zs-united.com
\
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COMPLIANCE FIRST, SHARED RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group recognizes the significance of sound corporate governance as the
cornerstone and guarantee for corporate development. We integrate the
concept of sustainable development into our business operations,
continuously optimize corporate governance, strengthen risk control, and
respond to the expectations of diverse stakeholders, so as to create a compliant
and stable operating environment, enhance the Group's long-term competitiveness
and business resilience, and promote sustainable development with all stakeholders.

ESG Governance

The Group consistently upholds the principles of sustainable development
while ensuring stable business operations, giving due consideration to ESG
management. We continuously enhance our ESG management structure,
elevate our own ESG management standards, listen to and respond to
suggestions and expectations regarding the Group's ESG matters from various
stakeholders, and drive sustainable development across the value chain.

Governance Structure

The Group is committed to steadily enhancing the Company’s sustainable
development capability through comprehensive, top-down management and
collaboration, and actively promoting ESG work. We have established a top-
down three-tier ESG governance structure consisting of the Board, the ESG
Management Committee and the ESG Task Force, and clarified the powers and
responsibilities at all levels. By adopting standardized, systematic, and scientific
management methods, the Group actively promotes the implementation of
the Group’s ESG-related decisions and work, and fulfils its ESG commitments
through practical actions.
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ESG
Management

Commiittee
ESGEE
ZEE

ESG
Task Force

ESG
T/

Responsible for assessing and determining the ESG risks of the Group
BB RETEEABNESGER

Reviewing the achievement of ESG goals and ESG performance
MWFIESGH BREMIEN RESCGKRHE

Reviewing and approving the ESG related policies, goals and material issues

FHESCHREGK - BEMEAMHRE
Reviewing and approving the ESG report

EHESCHE

Implementing the ESG risk management and internal control
BITESGR B 3% B A AR B A%

Directing the work of the ESG Task Force
EEESGT{E/NEM TIE

Reviewing the ESG related policies

ERMESGHBBUR

Reviewing the ESG report, and verifying the accuracy of the performance indicators

FHESGHRE @ HER AR HEURHER

Implementing ESG-related work
SEEHITESGHERIIE
Appointing personnel to collate the ESG related data and prepare reports and other work

ZHEANBRESGHABENEKEMRERMETE

Assisting the management of the Group in assessing and determining whether the Group's ESG
risk management and internal control system is proper and effective by submitting regular reports
MRS EREER - UBEFNEREEAREAESCEREE AN EERRED
SEAY
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ESG Governance Structure
ESG EAHE
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Board Statement

Overall Responsibility Borne by the Board

As the highest decision-making body for ESG matters, the Board assumes
overall supervision, guidance and review responsibilities for the Group's ESG
initiatives. The responsibilities of the Board include establishment of ESG
strategic guidelines, target setting and progress monitoring, ESG risk assessment
and identification, ESG performance monitoring, and approval of the annual
ESG report. The Board authorizes the ESG Management Committee to assist in
monitoring the implementation of the ESG strategy, fully supporting the
Group's sustainable development efforts.

Risk Management

The Board continuously pays attention to ESG risks and materiality issues
involved in the Group's operation and development, and participates in the
assessment, prioritization, sorting, and final confirmation of materiality issues
each year, and regularly reviews ESG risks to ensure that they are effectively
managed. The ESG Management Committee and ESG Task Force are
responsible for assessing and making recommendations on relevant risks. The
Board ultimately determines the risks and importance of the Group's ESG issues
based on the development dynamics of the Industry and the Group and the
opinions and feedback from stakeholders, and closely monitors the
implementation of ESG risk management.

Daily Implementation

The ESG Management Committee and the ESG Task Force under the Board are
responsible for regularly reporting to the Board on ESG-related issues, including
but not limited to the daily implementation of ESG work, progress of the
annual ESG report, and identification of climate change risks. The Board
regularly reviews the progress against the ESG goals and provides guidance for
the future development of ESG based on the achievements, providing guidance
to the ESG Management Committee and ESG Task Force.

Review of the Progress of Achieving Targets

Following the international sustainability trends, we regularly assess our ESG-
related goals and implementation progress after comparison with peer
standards. Based on our understanding of the sustainable development
process of the Group, we continuously update our systems and measures and
are committed to promoting the long-term sustainable development of our
business in a more environment-friendly, healthy and harmonious corporate
environment.
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Communication with Stakeholders

We place great importance to communication with our stakeholders and pay
attention to the demands and expectations of our stakeholders. We have
identified six major stakeholders that are significantly influential to the Group
and closely related to our business, including government and regulators,
shareholders and investors, suppliers, media, employees, consumers and the
public.

We maintain active and close two-way communication and collaboration with
all stakeholders by building diverse and convenient communication channels
to better understand and respond to their opinions and suggestions in a timely
manner, so that we can join hands with all parties to achieve sustainable
development for the economy, society, and environment in collaboration.
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Stakeholders

Expectations and propositions

Means of communication and responses

Mz EEE A

Government and regulatory

authorities

BT EEE M

Shareholders and
investors

BREREE

Suppliers
HEm

Media
e

Employees
BT

Consumers and

the public
HEERAR
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HERER

To fully implement national policies as well as laws
and regulations

To promote local economic development

To drive local employment

BERCRBEBRBR JOERER

R 3 77 B B R

NI 5 B3

To provide return

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure safe production

Y &5 B )

AREE

RELEE

To fulfill contractual obligations according to law
To ensure honest operations

To manage supply chain
HOREH

BIELE

HEEEE

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure product responsibility
To participate in public activities
AREE
EmEE
NI

To protect employees' rights

To provide remuneration and fringe benefits
To provide career development

fEmgE

HEfE

BER#R

To provide products and services

To be involved in public welfare and charity
To ensure green raw materials and productions

2 in B AR5

A
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RERMHREE
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BEREEL N

To file reports

To provide advice and recommendations

To engage in discussions and submit special reports
To accept inspection

R

ZERER
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BEERE

To issue company announcements
To release special reports

To extend invitations for site visits
NGIVN-S

B HE R
B BB

To engage in business negotiations

To engage in on-site investigation and research
To engage in meetings

EsER

B

g #A

To publish news release/announcements

To hold meetings

To extend invitations for site visits

I PN

L

BRRGER

To hold employee representative meetings

To ensure collective negotiation

To provide democratic communication platforms
BIKKRARE

SEHH

REBBTA

To provide a company website

To release company announcements
To address customer feedback
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Determination of Material issues

Material issues are those that reflect the Group's significant impact on the
economy, environment and society in the process of creating value. During the
Reporting Period, we reviewed and identified a list of ESG issues for 2023 based
on results of the 2022 materiality assessment with reference to our business
development, an internal and external analysis and the Guide.

Taking into account the Group's strategic development direction and the
results of stakeholder communication and their key issues of concern, we have
conducted comprehensive analysis and assessment of relevant issues and
came up with the material issues matrix for 2023, which was approved by the
Board and provides an important basis and direction for future sustainable
development management.

In this report, we will disclose the management and results of our work on the
following issues, in order to better respond to the suggestions and expectations
of our stakeholders.
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ESG Material Issues Matrix of Sinolife United for 2023
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Materiality to Stakeholders

Low-materiality issues
RESZMEE

High-materiality issues . Sodial issues
g ! J ema

BEERIEE

~@ Governance issues
9 waae
3
Environmental issues

Moderate-materiality issues
FEEZMRE

Materiality to Sinolife United
HhABaNERE
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Water resources management
IKEIRE TR

Energy management
REREE

Pollutants management
ERYE TR

Use of packaging materials
BERMBER
Greenhouse gas emission
BERBIN

Climate change

TR

Natural resources

BAEIR

Supplier management
e e e

Product quality management
EmEEERE

Product innovation

2 A FT

Responsible Marketing
BEEZH

Customer experience

EFER

Consumer information security and privacy
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No.

FF 3%

20

21

22

23

24

25

Customer demand

BEEHEL

Communication with communities and governments
HE - BTES

Public charity

INGE S

Employment

ERER

Diversity and inclusion

itk est

Employees’ safety

BETAGZZ®

Protection of employees’ interests and rights
ETEBRE

Employee development and training
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Governance structure

EIRRE

Corruption and bribery
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Business ethics
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Intellectual property protection
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Operating Compliance

We continuously improve our management system for risk response and
internal control to identify and control potential risks in a timely manner. We
actively promote a culture of integrity, demanding the highest standards of
business ethics from ourselves and our business partners.

Ethics compliance

The Group abides by various laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where it
operates, including the Law Against Unfair Competition of the People’s
Republic of China, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of
China and Certain Opinions of the State Council on Promoting Fair
Competition in the Market and Maintaining the Normal Order of the Market.
We promote the organic integration of compliance principles with production
and business operations, continuously deepen the implementation of
requirements related to anti-corruption, anti-monopoly and anti-unfair
competition, and are committed to enhancing the Company’s positive
corporate image and investor confidence, as well as driving long-term
sustainable development through an optimized process of corporate
compliance.

We are committed to maintaining the highest standards of business ethics and
adopts a zero-tolerance approach towards any behavior that violates business
ethics. We ensure that we comply with the highest standards of business ethics
in interactions with all stakeholders, to jointly maintain a business environment
characterized by integrity, honesty, and regulation. During the Reporting
Period, there were no corruption-related litigation or cases in the Group.

Clean and Honesty

To create a clean, fair and transparent business environment, the Group has
always adhered to a strict system of regulations and has developed internal
systems and regulations such as the Employee Code of Conduct and Code of
Business Conduct. Within these systems and regulations, we emphasize the
principle of fair treatment and clearly define the requirements for our
employees’ conduct in business dealings with customers, partners and
suppliers. We rigorously enforce ethical business practices, uphold the bottom
line of compliance, and strengthen the foundation of high-quality corporate
development.
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We continue to strengthen ethical control and expand the scope of integrity
construction from internal personnel to external stakeholders, broadening the
breadth and depth of our integrity construction. We promote anti-corruption
and integrity construction through the following measures targeted at different
supervised personnel:

BFFEMEEAEE  HREGZERKAE
ABELHRIIING - HENRRBERN

EENRE - SHHTANEEHR LM
BATHEREDRBERER

Sales personnel

HEAR

We strengthen the supervision of personnel in key positions in key departments to eliminate
irregularities such as receipt of rebates and private deals

TR H R I ER M A BHER -

HBEZEN RTRHEERT

Suppliers and distributors
HEBREHE

We adhere to the anti-corruption operation principle, providing standardized processes and
additional clauses in contracts that clearly stated the prohibition of corrupt and bribery

practices, to protect the common interests of both parties and promote sustainable and

positive development
BIEEG L E]
BRERTT /A - e R

EARTRTRE
KREFIS R ERTHE
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The Group adopts a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption.
We continuously improve our whistleblowing channels and processes for
reporting violations of business ethics. Through internal and external
whistleblowing channels, we encourage employees and all other stakeholders
to select the whistleblowing channel to reflect and report based on their actual
circumstance. In case of major corruption, employees can report directly to the
management of the Group to ensure timely risk control and prevent further
risk expansion.

Depending on the nature of the reported misconduct received from different
whistleblowing channels, dedicated personnel are assigned to investigate and
verify the reported incidents. Upon completion of the investigation and
verification process, we take appropriate actions in accordance with regulations
and guidelines, and the findings are reported internally for corrective measures,
forming a closed-loop management. In addition, the Group has established a
robust whistleblower protection mechanism and provides anonymous
protection throughout the whistleblowing process. If whistleblowers’
legitimate rights and interests are violated, or if they face retaliation or unfair
treatment, they have the right to request the Group’s management to take
appropriate protective measures in accordance with the whistleblower
protection system and relevant regulations.
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Direct whistleblowing
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Whistleblower Handling Procedures

BHREERRE

We are committed to promoting a culture of integrity and improving the
ethical and compliance awareness of all employees to and strengthen the
foundation of our clean governance. We conduct regular and institutionalized
educational activities such as anti-corruption and compliance training for new
hires prior to their employment, and periodic anti-corruption training for
directors and employees, to ensure that employees fully understand, familiarize
themselves with and master relevant laws and internal rules and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, we conducted the business ethics and anti-
corruption promotion and training for the Board and employees.
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INGENUITY, EMBRACING HEALTH AND HARMONY

We continuously explore the iteration and enhancement of our brand strategy
and product portfolio, driven by innovation to sustain the development of our
Company. We maintain strict control over product safety and quality
throughout our entire supply chain management, forging high-quality
products and services with high standards. Customer-centricity remains at the
core of our approach, as we strive to deliver a superior customer experience,
safeguard customer rights and interests, promptly respond to consumer
demands, and wholeheartedly provide consumers with the highest quality
services.

Quality Assurance

The Group firmly upholds the core philosophy of “Quality First” with the goal of
creating a quality and healthy lifestyle. We consistently prioritize consumers
and commit to providing consumers with safe and healthy products. To this
end, the Group has established stringent product quality and safety
management systems and continuously improves product recall mechanisms,
ensuring that consumers can confidently choose our products.

Quality Control

Management system

We strictly comply with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
and its implementing regulations, the Technical Guidelines on Prevention and
Control of COVID-19 for Production and Operation Units of Imported Goods,
the Regulations on Supervision and Administration of the Implementation of
the Main Responsibility for Food Safety by Enterprises, the Measures for the
Administration of Supervision and Inspection of Food Production and
Operation, the New Zealand Dietary Supplements Regulations 1985, the New
Zealand Animal Products Act 1999, the New Zealand Food Act 2014 and the
Good Manufacturing Practice of Medical Products (GMP), as well as other
relevant laws and regulations in the places where we operate. We have
developed internal management systems such as the Food Safety
Management System and the Food Safety Risk Management System for Daily
Control, Weekly Investigation and Monthly Adjustment in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations, to regulate the implementation of quality and
safety management work and guarantee the quality of the products and
services we provide to customers, as well as all activities related to our
products.
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The Group established an internal quality and safety management structure to
ensure transparency in quality issues among various management levels and
achieve full-process control over production. We have formed a robust and
well-defined quality team and appointed the responsible person, food safety
director, and food safety officers based on the guidelines outlined in the Code
of Responsibilities for Food Safety Director and Food Safety Officer, so as to
ensure clear delineation of responsibilities at all levels and put the responsibility
of production quality into practice. During the Reporting Period, we
successfully achieved our annual goal of having no significant quality incidents
or regulatory violations in the production and sales processes.

During the Reporting Period, Living Nature, a subsidiary of the Group, obtained
GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice of Medical Products) certification and
passed the COSMOS certification (organic or natural cosmetics) and BDIH
certification (Bundesverband der Deutscher Industrie-und Handelsunternehmen,
the German natural and organic certification) in relation to the premises,
personnel, procedures, equipment, raw materials and packaging, quality
control, stock rotation, emissions, waste, documentation and quality
management system. Good Health maintained the GMP certificate, the MPI-
RMP Certificate (Risk Management Professional of The Ministry of Industries,
New Zealand), NZ National Programme Level 3 Certification, a HALAL
Certification and the qualification certification of Animal Products Exporter and
the New Zealand organic certification.

Management measures

To ensure the continuous assurance of product quality and safety, we regularly
review the effectiveness of our quality and safety management measures. We
establish corresponding management actions to address newly identified
potential risks, ensuring that all tests comply with the requirements of the
locations where we sell and that each product meets the high-quality
standards expected by our customers.

We implement in-depth whole-process management of food safety and
quality control to ensure effective monitoring and control at every stage from
the source to the end consumer, guaranteeing the high-quality output of all
products.
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For the first batch of new products, Sinolife United rigorously conducts type
testing and thoroughly review the product arrival and factory inspection
reports to ensure that the quality of its products meets the standard
requirements. In addition, Sinolife United extends its product quality and safety
control to supplier management and back-end supervision, enforces strict
supplier audit access mechanisms, and conducts comprehensive inspections
of products upon arrival, reviewing their factory inspection reports.

Good Health has established a quality control system that covers the entire
production process to achieve effective monitoring of product quality and to
ensure that each stage meets high-quality standards. The quality control
department of Good Health is responsible for reviewing quality control results
and examining monitoring documents and results throughout the production
operations. At the same time, Good Health requires all suppliers to strictly
adhere to GMP requirements for new product development and conduct
comprehensive and meticulous Raw Material Assessments (RMA) in
collaboration with the quality team, and carry out rigorous sample testing and
trial production.

Warehouse verification

NEBRER

Rigorous specification
testing is conducted on raw
materials and products,
including internal testing
and testing performed by
qualified external
laboratories commissioned
for the purpose
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Sampling inspections are
carried out on products
during the production
process to monitor
production stability
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Factory Quality Inspection

R E R

Comprehensive quality
inspections are conducted
on the final products to
ensure consistency and
reliability of the products
leaving the factory
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Good Health Full-process Quality Control System

FREZAREBEZER

ARTAEBABRNABRRR —T-_=FFR

33



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

To meet the compliance requirements of the Pharmacovigilance Inspection
Program of the Therapeutic Goods Administration of Australia (TGA), Cobayer
has taken the following measures:

Ensured that all employees
completed the training course
for Pharmacovigilance
Inspection Program
REMBE T THENER
T &I IEIIRE

Uploaded contact details of
the relevant product owners to
the TGA website
ETGAGEYL L2t 7 ERE R
BEANBELRX

Living Nature adheres to a comprehensive quality control procedure from raw
material receipt to product delivery, with inspection procedures implemented
throughout the product production process. To ensure product quality and
prevent the occurrence of coding errors or unrecognizable expiration dates,
Living Nature has mandated that at least two quality inspectors to perform
inspections and give written approval on quality, safety and coding before
moving on to the next stage of production. In 2023, Living Nature further
enhanced quality control measures by increasing the frequency of quality
testing and the rate of pressure testing sampling to ensure product sealing
meets standard requirements, thereby enhancing product quality and stability.
In addition, in order to avoid product quality issues resulting from machine
problems, Living Nature conducted comprehensive inspections covering all
production units during the Reporting Period, providing machine repairs and
effectively strengthening production line quality and efficiency.

To ensure the effectiveness of the process, Living Nature conducts internal
audits of the quality control process and batch production records every year.
At the same time, Living Nature actively cooperates with third-party testing
institutions that meet the qualification requirements to conduct internal
product quality testing every year.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any consumer
complaints due to product quality and safety issues.
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Product Recall

In strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Food Product Recall Management Rules, and other laws and
regulations in the place where the Group operates, the Group formulates a
collection of internal policy documents, including the User Complaints and
Adverse Reactions Management Procedure, the Products Recall Management
Procedure and the Incoming Food Inspection Procedures.

With the interests of our customers and consumers as the most fundamental
decision-making consideration, we have developed effective product recall
systems in each respective market and continuously optimize and improve
them to ensure our prompt and efficient response to potential product quality
and safety incidents. We strictly require annual product recall drills at all
operational sites to validate the effectiveness and feasibility of the recall
process, ensuring swift response and precise execution of recall measures
when facing relevant events, thereby safeguarding consumer interests
effectively.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any proactive or
passive product recalls due to product quality issues.

Innovation Research

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products that meet the
nutritional and health demands of consumers worldwide. We take product
innovation and progress as our responsibility and promote the development of
high-quality health products with new functions, formulations, and processes.
Meanwhile, we attach great importance to the protection of product
knowledge and intellectual property rights, protecting our own interests while
implementing multiple measures to prevent the circulation of counterfeit
products, so as to safeguard the health and safety of consumers.
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Product Research and Development

Research and development innovation is a crucial driving force for the
development and progress of the Group. With consumer demand as the core,
the Group continuously improves its responsiveness to market demand and
product trends, consistently bringing forth new ideas, and delivering superior
product experiences to consumers. In terms of research and development, we
have standardized the process of approval, research, project approval and
review of product research and development through internal systems in strict
compliance with regulations and rules in the place where we operate, such as
the Regulations of the People’s Republic of China on the Registration and
Administration of Overseas Manufacturers of Imported Food (General
Administration of Customs Order No. 248), the Measures of the People’s
Republic of China for the Administration of Import and Export Food Safety, the
Measures on the Administration of Cosmetic Labelling (National Medical
Products Administration Order No. 77), the Measures for the Administration of
the Registration and Recordation of Cosmetics (State Administration for Market
Regulation Order No. 35), the Regulations on the Administration of
Supplementary Inspection Methods for Cosmetics, the Specification for the
Evaluation of the Claimed Efficacy of Cosmetics, the Regulations for the
Administration of Cosmetics Registration and Filing Data and the Technical
Guidelines for the Safety Assessment of Cosmetics.

Committed to zero-additive, safeguarding the health of users
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In 2023, the Group adhered to the principle of avoiding the use of additives as much as possible and minimizing the use of
additives when necessary for all newly developed products. Additives are only used when necessary based on process technology
and have been proven safe and reliable after risk assessment, and their usage in products is minimized as much as possible.
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During the Reporting Period, we have developed new products such as Colostrum Powder (4 #FL#3) and HMO (Human Milk
Oligosaccharides) Probiotic Powder (HMO (RFZLAK B 48 ) 25 A B #) ) without the use any food additives, and all ingredients used
were healthy materials that are beneficial for the human body.
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Adhering to a customer-oriented approach, we integrate product innovation
with the growing demand for nutritional well-being among consumers by
optimizing product formulations, utilizing healthy ingredients, and avoiding
the use of additives, aiming to offer a wide range of health-conscious and high-
quality products to the vast consumer base.

Preferred Healthy and Safe Ingredients
BERE 2R
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HMO plays an irreplaceable role in promoting the growth of infant intestinal flora, improving the function of the immune system,
and supporting brain development. Although the use of new HMO ingredients was approved in China in 2023, after thorough
evaluation based on factors such as quality stability and clinical data support, we decided to select a safer internationally renowned

brand of HMO material.
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During the Reporting Period, Living Nature received a number of honors and
awards for its products.

Product

Em

Living Nature Daily Protect Facial Lotion SPF20
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Best of Natural Awards — Runner-up

European Skincare Award (Face-care leave on) — Bronze
Global Green Beauty Award. Best natural skincare product — Silver

Global make up Awards Asia. Best Natural product — Gold
Pure Global Awards 2023. Best new face product — Finalist
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Living Nature Hydrating Glow Exfoliant
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Green Parent Natural Beauty Awards. Best facial Exfoliator — Silver

Intellectual Property Protection

We prioritize the protection of intellectual property rights and patent
inventions, and strictly comply with the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other laws and regulations regarding intellectual property rights and
relevant requirements in the places where we operate. We continue to
improve our intellectual property management system and strengthen our risk
prevention mechanism and management levels concerning intellectual
property rights by formulating internal systems such as the Intellectual
Property Rights Management and Patent Protection System. We protect our
intellectual property rights from infringement through trademark registration
and patent application.
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Meanwhile, Sinolife United actively organizes training sessions on patent law
and related policies and regulations for the staff of research and development
department, and invites cooperative trademark agencies to share knowledge
about trademark law and typical trademark cases, aiming to strengthen
employee awareness and understanding of intellectual property protection
and enhance overall protection consciousness. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the Group did not identify any incident involving infringements upon
intellectual property rights.

During the Reporting Period, the Group applied for and was granted 5 patents.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group held a total of 279 trademarks.

Supply Chain Management

The Group adheres to the development concept of win-win cooperation and
upholds the principle of clean development. We are committed to
constructing and continuously improving a socially responsible and diverse
stable supply chain management system. We continually strengthen
cooperation and communication with upstream and downstream industries,
promoting resource sharing and facilitating the sustainable development of
the entire industry chain.

Supplier Management System

We are committed to building a sustainable supply chain, starting from the
procurement of raw materials at the source and extending downstream to
collaborate with logistics, distribution, and retailers to provide consumers with
high-quality and safe health product choices. We have established a
comprehensive supply chain management system and continuously optimize
internal policies such as the Supplier Management System. We actively select
supplier partners who demonstrate strong willingness, excellent service, and
high-quality products, fostering a positive cycle of value chain advancement.
As regards to overseas suppliers, we adopt a collaborative management model
at home and abroad, and conduct a comprehensive review in compliance with
GMP standards to safeguard production and operation stability.

88

R AR EREMMETET20E
FPERABBEZRAEI - X EFBA FE
FRIEEED ZERAMNE M AT EIRER -
e 8 THRNBERRENERRIEMR -
RAERRESZ NBEHR AEER
BAETAAMBERRESM -

WERAN - AEBEAFLEREFN ST - NI
SR AREBHRFABZ279M -

HrEEEE
AEEBRFAERARNERED  REREZ
BRED ERAFETELHHLESRE %
TREMHEREERR - RATE R E
ETHEZFNRIRAIE BRERLXE B
NEEEBRATFEER -

HEFEERAR
BFBAORITERFENHER  HREY
RMHORE S THEDR HDHENTE
BEF-—BRHBEEERHESEE 2R
FEREE BMABRTTENHREREE
BE FEEC(RERERSE)FAEPK
RIKE - BRFEERER RIS EE8H
HEFEH BEREEBREORMERER-
ST ER - BPAIRARAIMG R E E
B mBOMPARIEREETE2EER R
BAEELENRTE -

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - ERERRE

Supplier
access

HEEEA

Cooperative
process
evaluation

BEBRREME

Revie\_lv
evaluation

FEH

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 260 suppliers of
raw materials in cooperative relationships, among which, there were 206

Based on the GMP system, we review the qualifications of supplier, and propose the
relevant safety requirements. All suppliers are subject to assessment by the competent
department before being admitted into supplier list.

HEX GMP BRUHERFRELER RUBBLE22X  AXEHMYEME
HERETAM G R E AR B R -

We maintain multi-level and in-depth communication with suppliers through various
measures such as emails, phone calls, WeChat, and face-to-face meetings in the process
of performance, to timely track and understand relevant dynamics and changes of
suppliers.

BAERES - FHEREMERREZEARZ  RANBS  RAEMY - T5F M
& BAZZREAT - RERENZRHEEDOAESRNE(L -

Our performance assessment focuses on various dimensions, including food, service
quality, food brand awareness, punctuality of delivery, pricing, and aftersales services. For
suppliers with issues identified during the review, we provide them with solutions, offer
corresponding technical support, and help them improve their management quality.
HRm BREEE  Rmmh  HEKKY B  RERESZEREREZ
BAELE  stUEEEEMBNHER  RAIRERLFRRAR - REHAESN
B+ - EPHEERAEREE -

Supplier Management System

HEBEEERR

overseas suppliers and 54 Chinese suppliers. e

ARPAEBASRNBR QA

ZE=FFRHR

RMEBRR AEBHEEGREFEENEER
260K - B IBIMEFERE 206 R + A B (B 7 54
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Sustainable Supply Chain

The Group is committed to building fair, just, win-win and sustainable supply
chain partnerships, collaborating with suppliers to address social and
environmental issues along the value chain and jointly establish responsible
supply chains. To effectively manage potential ESG risks in the supply chain, we
incorporate ESG-related factors into the scope of supplier access and
evaluation, examining their performance in environmental protection,
pollution prevention and control, occupational health and safety, anti-
corruption, and business ethics. Suppliers involved in significant negative ESG
events are not included in our supplier list. For suppliers with significant
negative ESG incidents identified during performance evaluations and
inspection reviews, we will take reasonable actions and follow up on the
rectification progress.

Environment
®iz

Supply Chain

g

Quality
HE

RHBEETIRRATMAE

safety policies, etc.

RELRMERE - 8THI

A EE R
AREBRORTERAFRAE -EF&E£HE A
BEEEMNMHEESERER SHERHLR
WIE BEEEEFT I ENLSREZE
HEaEAHRER - AEREEHERER
ESGRE\BR « P98 ESG A B8 H = 4 A 4 B 78
ARBEEFTENEREE ERETIRE
RiE SRR BERRELTE RERER
HEBEESHENRIR - NP RESGHHEE
REEEHEMEEFTIIARE R HE
BHFE KR BEEHRHREEKNCSCERSE
R EEE T A EE B W B RIB R -

Providing explanatory notes on waste treatment systems, production sites, wastewater discharge
treatment and other relevant documents

REEMRIERR - £ERS  I5/KBHUGE SRR A

Purchasing palm oil produced in a sustainable and human rights-respecting manner

REBLATIHHE - BB AN RNEENRHEM

Providing details on quality management system, including employee qualifications, audit
frequency, and raw material utilization and control

BREETEL BREXR  HEMBNMNBEEEAR

Providing materials on company organizational structure, employee training, employee health and

BETREZEHREMNF

Supplier ESG Considerations

HERESGEERZ=
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The Group is dedicated to building a stable supply chain system to achieve
high-quality product output. For new product supply chains, we conduct cycle
forecasting based on the new product development process and engage with
raw material suppliers in advance. We obtain quotations from at least three
OEM suppliers, communicate the feasibility and supply cycle of new products,
and strive to shorten the product’s time to market, ensuring timely delivery of
products. For existing products, we closely collaborate with the marketing and
sales department to control safety inventories based on monthly sales volume,
logistics cycle, production cycle and other available information. We also
anticipate future demand to ensure each product has two alternative suppliers,
guaranteeing supply stability. For products with single-sourced raw materials,
we negotiate prices directly with the raw material suppliers and secure
inventory in advance based on factors such as seasons, market supply and
demand fluctuations, and “Black Swan" incidents, ensuring uninterrupted
product production.

Communication with Suppliers

To ensure the continuity of supply chain and timely resolve issues that arise
during business cooperation, we actively engage in communication with our
suppliers. In our daily work, we communicate with our suppliers through
channels such as emails, phone calls, and WeChat to achieve efficient
cooperation. Leveraging our experience advantage, we are committed to
synergistic development with our suppliers, overcoming challenges together.
During the stage of new product development, we proactively assist suppliers
in adjusting raw material types and connect them with suitable manufacturers
for mutually beneficial partnerships.

Service System

The Group remains steadfast in providing the best product and service
experiences for consumers. We establish and continuously optimize customer
and consumer service systems, offering multiple communication channels. We
conduct responsible marketing activities while safeguarding consumer privacy
data. We strive to enhance consumer experiences and satisfaction through
high-quality products and professional services.
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Service Channel

The Group always believes that diverse consumer channels can meet the
needs of different consumer groups. Actively expanding consumer shopping
channels, we provide timely and convenient shopping experiences, along with
high-quality products and excellent services. Furthermore, while ensuring
product and service diversity, we continuously improve the quality of our
online and offline services, delivering a superior shopping experience to
consumers. During the Reporting Period, we added various e-commerce
shopping channels, including JD.com, Tmall, Alibaba Health, and Douyin Live,
to meet the growing shopping demands of consumers.

During the Reporting Period, both Good Health and Living Nature conducted
diversified promotional campaigns, expanding the reach of our products to a
more diverse customer base. In addition, to ensure that our employees possess
sufficient knowledge about our products, we provided product series training
for pharmacists and on-site staff in the course of the campaigns.

Energy Relax and
Kids back to
School

[REE MM - RGE
B IEEES

Viralex
Campaign APR
Viralex APR
EEEH

Bone Joint Stress
Sleep Mood

FERE - IEIR
RisHEERR

Weight
Management

REEHE

PR 7% 3RE

AEERRBE ZHENBEERT E5m
RIFEEREBNRE R RABRHERER
EBYRE RHEBEERMHLE FEENOB
WMREAR B mERERMED R - 1t
S BMEREBER MRS Z THOER L
RERAKRLGTREEE  REBETRK
RFBEMER - MEMA - RFIFIERRE
BRMEE MERE HEERSEZREE
ERYRE M HEE AR RNOBYFL

WA - 4F 2R - Living Nature B B Z 551t
MNEBZE BRMANEMHEREZTHE
PR - AN MEHFAEBREFR - AERE
ITHERBZHHER KRMO/EBR - ]
HEITRETERRIEI -

Its activities included television commercials (TVCs), online videos, and outdoor billboard promotions
to broadly reach different audience groups. At the same time, it fully leveraged search engines and
social media platforms to promote relevant thematic content, enhancing brand influence.
EEEEEREERESTVO) - EREANRFINEERSE  WBZBETRAXREE - [
o RAOTNBRRSIBMLERER TS  HEEEIEANS - LBRRTES -

It published short videos on social media platforms and employed precise targeting through search
and platform programmatic ads and retargeting ads.

AR FaBRMmERMA  BERRMFENREF CESNEERESETHEERRE -

By producing promotional short videos and employing programmatic promotion through search
engines, social media, and advertising, iteffectively conveyed information to its target audience,
raising public awareness of bone and joint health, sleep and emotion management.
RESEEGBTRBRRGIE - HRBNESORFCRERSESERGRRIR
NRREAREERANER  BERREEEENET -

It utilized social media platforms to conduct activities and collaborated with online influencers to
disseminate advertisements and promotional content.

MR RERFERREE  UEDPEREAZRHRESNEEAR

Good Health's Promotional Campaigns

RS EED
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Hydrating Glow
Exfoliant trial
activity

Hydrating Glow
Exfoliant3 FI & &N

BERREMARLEY  RARBHFEBERX
EEMNRBBEABERFAE -

Through product trial activity, it gained in-depth understanding of users'real experiences and
obtained genuine and effective product feedback, helping to improve product quality while
expanding the potential user base.

ESEERMNERE  BEBMRAES

It utilized the prime advertising space in the February/March issue of “'GOOD" magazine to promote
its products. By accurately targeting its desired audience and selecting suitable advertising formats
and channels, it enhanced product exposure, attracted potential customers, and drove subscription

activities.

FIF <GOOD) #w— A = AT A/ NESUHEETSE - BBBEELERER
o EBAENEESEAERE  BRAEREALE - R BERF  HIHES -

Living Nature’s Promotional Campaigns

Living Nature & {25 &)

Communication with Customers

In strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations, such as the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests,
the Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the New Zealand Fair
Trading Act 1986, the Group continues to optimize the customer complaint
handling mechanism to promptly and efficiently address consumer demands.
Our Customer Center regularly conducts customer analysis meetings to
analyze consumer inquiries and promptly make improvements to issues in the
service process, ensuring a seamless shopping experience for consumers. In
addition to online communication channels, consumers can also provide
feedback through a hotline, where we have professional customer service
personnel to respond to and resolve consumer issues. For issues raised by
consumers, we have established a commitment to provide initial solutions
within 24 hours, complete handling within 48 hours, and arrange follow-up by
dedicated personnel within 72 hours, ensuring thorough resolution of
problems. During the Reporting Period, the Group received 549 customer
feedback cases with a 100% resolution rate.
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Responsible Marketing

The Group pays great attention to the compliance of advertising in the product
production and sales process, adhering to responsible marketing practices. We
strictly comply with the requirements of laws and regulations, including the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Advertising
Management Regulations of the People’s Republic of China, the Interim
Provisions of the People’s Republic of China on Publishing Food
Advertisements, the Interim Provisions of the People’s Republic of China on
Censorship of Healthy Food Advertisements, implementing strict control over
our marketing processes. We strictly require that advertisements do not
contain false or misleading content, ensuring the authenticity and accuracy of
product promotion and promoting responsible consumption.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Group believes that consumer privacy protection and data security are
crucial foundations for consumer trust. We strictly adhere to laws and
regulations such as the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China
and have established the Measures for Customer Privacy Protection as an
internal policy. When necessary information collection is required, we provide
notifications to make consumers aware before the information is collected.
After information collection, we implement strict confidentiality measures. We
strictly limit employee access to customer privacy information. During the
customer complaint handling process, we primarily communicate with
consumers through phone calls. In cases where it is necessary to add
consumers on WeChat, our after-sales personnel will communicate through
official WeChat accounts. We also have dedicated staff members who
periodically conduct random chats to safeguard customer privacy and security.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT, NURTURING WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT

The Group consistently upholds the concept of green development and
actively fulfills its social responsibilities, jointly building a clean and beautiful
green home to embrace a harmonious and sustainable lifestyle. We
continuously enhance our environmental management systems and practices,
regulating the utilization of resources and the emission of pollutants
throughout our production and operational processes. We proactively
implement measures related to climate change, leveraging technological and
managerial innovations across the entire value chain to minimize any adverse
environmental impact caused by our business operations. The principles of
sustainable development are integrated into every aspect of our corporate
growth.

Environmental Management

The Group abides by relevant laws and regulations of the places where we
operate, including the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution, the Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste
Pollution to the Environment of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from
Environmental Noise and the New Zealand Environment Act, 1986 and etc. We
have developed internal management systems and policies such as the
Corporate Environmental Management System, the Energy Conservation
Management System, the Corporate Solid Waste Management System, the
Precautionary Measures for Hazardous Waste and the Wastewater
Management System, to provide a regulatory framework for our environmental
management efforts. At the same time, we have established a comprehensive
environmental management system, including the formation of an
environmental protection taskforce, to ensure the orderly implementation of
environmental management practices. This enables us to effectively address
issues related to water resources, energy, emissions, and other environmental
concerns, enhancing resource utilization efficiency and ensuring compliant
emissions.

Living Nature's internal environmental management system is established and
maintained in accordance with ISO 14000 and undergoes annual external
audits by COSMOS and IONC Germany.

Environmental Target

In order to further implement environmental protection efforts, optimize our
environmental management strategies, and continuously improve
environmental performance at every stage, we have established environmental
targets and indicators. We have set five-year (2022-2026) environmental
targets for greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption, water use and
waste discharge in 2021. During the Reporting Period, the Group effectively
reduced carbon emissions, resource consumption and waste generation
through regular assessments and targeted measures, ensuring the
achievement of annual environmental targets and laying a solid foundation for
the steady realization of long-term goals.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BERBHER

Target: Accumulative reduction of 20% in

greenhouse gas emissions based on average
greenhouse gas emissions from 2019-2021

Water Consumption

KFE

cumulative reduction of 8%
in wate sumpt
consumption in 2(

yased on water

Use of Resources

We place great importance on enhancing resource management and
implement a series of measures in the use of water resource and packaging
materials, aiming to improve resource utilization efficiency in our product
production and operation processes. We also explore source reduction in
product research and design to achieve rational resource allocation.

Water Resource Management

The Group complies with various laws and regulations in the place where we
operate, such as the Water Law of People’s Republic of China and the New
Zealand Water Services Act, 2021. The source for water resources of the Group
is municipal water supply and rainwater reuse, which is mainly used for the
daily operation of the office premises and production in the industrial park.
During the Reporting Period, we did not experiences any issue in relation to
water security.
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We actively carry out water conservation and recycling work to enhance water
resource utilization efficiency, reduce water wastage, and contribute to our
water-saving goals by prioritizing the use of water-saving devices and
strengthening the daily maintenance and management of water facilities and
equipment. Meanwhile, we conduct comprehensive awareness and training
programs to continuously improve employees’ water-saving awareness and

BAEERARKERBOMBERNEITE
BB EEMASIKIEE  MRAKRERE
MAFHEEEESHER RAKERERX
K ORAKERRE  BNEKBENER -
R RMAE2EZESEHEI HERSE
THEIKEBEREN - RPN KEEETE

capabilities. Our practices for water conservation are: A

Optimized processes in product research, development and production operations by designing
and applying more water-efficient processes and production equipment to reduce water resource
consumption.

EEMAEMEESEREPEITE  RANEREKN TR RIZEEESE -

WA IKEIRIEFE o

(=D

Water-saving
measures in the
production process

4 ERIK

Equipped rainwater recycling system within the office premises and the industrial park of the Group
to separate rainwater and sewage, and to reuse rainwater for greening, irrigation, cleaning roads.

SEMARRREFKEWRES WHFKEIARECRE - BRERS -

= g /A2,
Rainwater recycle BRMTOM

MkE A

During the Reporting Period, we renovated sanitary facilities in certain floors of the building of
Sinolife United, replacing conventional fixtures with water-saving facilities such as sensor-activated
faucets, sensor-activated urinals, and foot-operated squat toilets, thus minimizing unnecessary water
usage.

WEN - RAIE D AERS BB B ERMEETE - BEE R AREKEER
RefE/ MR - MIER A BB 2R /KR - R T EM K o

Renovation of
public facilities

DHREBH

HEMA - HAIWAKEREAT

During the Reporting Period, our water consumption is as follows:

Consumption H i E

2022 2023 Unit B {2

H R R

Consumables Category

Water resources K E IR 6,617 7,160 10,744 Tonne A
Water consumption Bz kEFE 0.26 0.26 0.19  Tonne per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000

WA, & T
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RIR - HERERHE

Packaging Materials Management BEMBEE

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws, requlations and regulatory A& BB BT L EBMEAERAZ AR
requirements in the regions where it operates. We have established a ﬁtﬂgﬁz CRUBEZEE  KEBEMRBRE
packaging committee to monitor and manage the research, use and recycling  RIZ ¥ BEM B A2 - (F R HE O W ETTE
of packaging materials in accordance with relevant methodology and & - %%ﬁ@ﬂi’jﬁ BIERAT

procedures, continuously improving our packaging management system

Packaging Material Reduction

BEMHEEL

We advocate for appropriate packaging design
Research, Development and based on product specifications and usage,
Application of Sustainable Materials

A AR R ERER HIFRIE BRAEANR - BEAENS

ma><|m|zmg the reduction of packaging materials.

EEERBEMERREL
We actively explore the research, development Following the principle of on-demand ordering, we
and application of environmentally friendly determine the purchase quantity of packaging
materials, continuously increasing the usage of materials based on production volume, avoiding
sustainable materials in our product packaging, unnecessary waste of packaging materials.
and improving the recyqlmg rate of packaging P (B TE%E’\]J?H‘J REERAERSTE
— HMEER - BRaEHHOTLERS -

s B R B °

Packaging Material Management Measures

BEMPEEEE

Adhering to the principles of reduction, reuse, and recycling (3R), we aim to ~ FFiZ#HmE L - BF B - BERAORES - EF
minimize the impact on the ecological environment while ensuring the basic ~ [BERERBEERKAER - @ @IBEGRES
packaging needs of our products by actively promoting the research, A& KR EER - ERG(LEEMER
development and application of sustainable materials, applying simplified — REEM » LAJS D A REIRIBRIZE -
packaging and using environmentally friendly packaging materials.

Development of New Product by Living Nature: Aqua Gel Mask

Living Nature 38 3 ¥7 & f Aqua Gel Mask ( 7k 5t 2 H %)

During the Reporting Period, Living Nature successfully developed a new product, namely Aqua Gel Mask. The tube material used
in this product is made from 30% PCR (post-recycled plastic), and its outer packaging is made from soy-based ink, which is 100%
recyclable and free from toxins or chlorine bleach. The outer packaging material has obtained PEFC (Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification) certification, which is a globally recognized forest certification system.

& HIR ¢+ Living Nature X B 7 28 3T 2 §h Aqua Gel Mask (K5 BT IR ) o H {5 F &9 80UE M 8 30% 2R 72 PCR (post recycled
plastic - JHEEBIYEHK) - BEIINBRB A MBRIK - A[100%BIRFA  TEFEXETRZEH - ZINEEM
B €15 PEFC (Programme for the Endorsement of Forest Certification * JZ BRARMRFE + 2ERBIMBERFMRBER R H)

i
ij,J\ g °
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Cardboards and plastics are our major packaging materials. Set forth below
was the consumption by the Group of packaging materials during the
Reporting Period:

Consumables

BATEERNBEMHSERMER - ]
EHA - AKENEBRMAERBROT

Consumption E &

Category 2022 2023 Unit B 1Y
Packaging materials B 546.98 552.60 604.95 Tonne I
Consumption of packaging BrWmaREFE 2168 20.1 10.73  Kilogram per
materials per revenue of RMB10,000
RMB10,000 T,/ &5
Emissions Compliance EREM

The Group places great importance on the proper discharge of pollutants and
is committed to reducing the emissions of pollutants. We strictly adhere to the
relevant laws and regulations regarding waste, wastewater, and air emissions
in the places where we operate. We have established internal management
systems to strengthen source prevention, process control, and end-of-pipe
treatment throughout the entire production and operation process, ensuring
compliant emissions of all three types of waste, while achieving the Group's
green development objectives. During the Reporting Period, we did not
experience any environmental violations of laws and regulations related to
excessive pollutants or illegal discharge.

Wastewater Management

All wastewater collection, treatment, and discharge in the Group'’s production
and operation processes are carried out in accordance with laws, regulations
and standards in the regions where we operate. We have also developed
internal management documents to establish clear environmental targets of
“100% up-to-standard discharge”, so as to ensure the effective implementation
of wastewater management and compliant emissions.

The wastewater generated by us mainly consists of domestic wastewater and
all of our production water is recycled through a biological recycling system.
We have assigned wastewater management responsibilities to each
department, enabling fine-grained management of wastewater discharge. At
the same time, we continuously improve our water management practices to
avoid excessive water use in our production and operation processes, strictly
control the generation of new pollution sources, and effectively reduce
wastewater discharge.

ARTAEBABRNABRRR —T-_=FFR
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During the Reporting Period, we invited a third-party testing agency to
conduct inspections on our wastewater discharge, and the results showed that
the Group’s wastewater discharge met the relevant discharge standards,
achieving our target of 100% up-to-standard discharge. Set forth below was
our wastewater discharged during the Reporting Period:

WEHA - HPIRBE =7 ROBEE S A
B BE /K R B LA 1T AROR) - Ae0R) A REER AR
5 B & BE K BE HOW 2 AR BE PR R 2 KRR
IK100% ZE R FEHE B R - |EHA - RIAIW
RGBSR

Amount discharged 3t &

Emissions

Category 2022 2023 Unit B {

Wastewater discharged JERFEIK 2,698 4,770 6,729 Tonne W&
Waste Management BEEYERE
The Group complies with the Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid ~ NEBIEE(PEAR LR B EEY SR
Waste Pollution to the Environment of the People’s Republic of China, the — EBAENEEE BB L B 5 2R B A
Measures for Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution by Discarded — E) B R BB EE W A 8% ) A MG INE B ) &
Hazardous Chemical, and the National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste, as well — TESEEEMONES  HlEHEHEHEEZEY

as various laws and regulations of the overseas countries in which we operated.
We have developed relevant management systems to regulate the
management of waste, aiming to reduce waste at the source, ensure compliant
disposal, and increase recycling rates, thereby reducing the negative impact on
the environment.

The non-hazardous waste generated from the Group’s operation mainly
comprises packaging waste, personal protective equipment waste, electronic
waste, office waste, and food waste. We implement waste classification
throughout the entire office buildings and kitchens within the park area,
facilitating waste recycling. Non-hazardous waste is collected, uniformly
identified, classified and labeled before putting them into waste bins for
temporary storage, while taking measures to prevent leakage and fly-away
during storage, thereby preventing soil and land pollution. For recyclable non-
hazardous waste, priority is given to recycling. Non-recyclable waste, such as
kitchen waste and domestic waste, is handed over to the municipal
department for unified transportation and disposal.

N\
100

ETRBICERE - RAB IR EBEEYH
RERE ARERE RSEEWMBE B
BHRENEETE -

AEBELENEZEEENETEZABRER
BAREER - EF AR A BRI R fR B iR
cRMERREZRENBEAENEREI K
Fﬁm&“*ﬁ 1%#?;&%@4&ﬂ% mERE
BYKBRE B 25 DBEEEBRA
BEEMAET ERTFARPMGH LR B
A S - AP IE B8 L A L B pk s
o HPEFRAOKEBEFNANEZSEEY
RMEEEEQOWERE : HREFEED M
EENIBENTEWFBREEY - KM
REATMHREPFG—BEERE -
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Set forth below was our waste discharge during the Reporting Period:

WEHAR - HPIWEZRDHRIBERET

Amount discharged HE &

Waste
Category 2022 2023 Unit B {x
Hazardous waste EREEY 14.58 0.52 0.20' Tonne M
Hazardous waste BETKRZBREEY 0.58 0.02 0.004 Kilogram per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
FTR/87
Non-hazardous waste HEEEZY) 12103 63.66 59.85 Tonne MA
Non-hazardous waste BTz BEZEEY 4.80 2.32 1.06 Kilogram per
per revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
Fr/Bx

Exhaust Gas Management BREE

Due to the nature of our products, there is basically no external emission of
exhaust gas in other production process of the Group except for a small
amount of emissions from laboratory. During the Reporting Period, due to the
departure of the laboratory's previous tenant, the laboratory was closed and
the experimental exhaust sources of Zhongsheng Bio-Tech were removed as
agreed. As a result, the Group’s production process did not generate any
exhaust gas emissions, and therefore there won't be any environmental
pollution. During the Reporting Period, we engaged a third-party testing
agency to conduct inspections on our exhaust gas emissions, and the results
demonstrated 100% up-to-standard emissions of our exhaust gas emissions,
meeting environmental standards.

Response to Climate Change

Climate change has posed numerous detriments to human society, which
therefore requires urgent actions to be taken. In response to China’s “carbon
peak and carbon neutrality” goals, and to support national and global actions
to combat climate change, the Group is actively exploring ways for green
transformation, thereby comprehensively promoting extensive
decarbonization within the enterprise, and contributing to sustainable
development.

! During the Reporting Period, due to the departure of the laboratory’s previous tenant, we
ceased using the laboratory and the corresponding solid waste treatment facilities. All waste
generated during this period was handed over to a professional disposal company for
disposal. At the same time, the quantity of hazardous waste generated by routine office
activities of the Group, such as waste ink cartridges and batteries, was minimal.

ARTAEBABRNABRRR —T-_=FFR

HREMmBE AEENEETBERETE
EERERAELVEERER  HMIRE
EARTEIMNERER - REHR ARNER
ZREFEE ER=CHEBARA HAER
REREREIRCROEBR - Bt - K
SELEZREERNTHRESR  T8HEI
ERRERSR - BEHMA - RMBFFE =7
R B S R PR E R IE R AE TR

TR 485 SRR R R RBE PR 100% 32 1% - T B IR IR
%E;Z?E_ o
PR SRR 21t

REZECEHABHLGEREZ ST KR
EHTHATEE - RERTE[HREE - 8
FAMINER XHERREREHRIEEL
MTE ASEEBRREEER A 2
EHEBHEERELRM  AERABERRE
BAOE -

' HEPH FEREZFREAFPER  BHMAEAERE
RAAEEERE R FRELNERYZ A
BFERREAFAGE: RN ARERERAMELS
MRS BELSHARCREEDEHER ) -
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Energy Management BEREE

The Group complies with the relevant energy management laws and ~ ANEBEEFE(RE AR KMBEERELE)E
regulations of places in which we operate, such as the Law of the People’s & & B EERE IR MERER AR - BER
Republic of China on Energy Conservation, and continuously improve our  B2REIE/KFE  BEREBELEELESRON
energy management capabilities. Besides actively implementing energy-saving &0 R J8 ik T 1 T {7938 36 ok 3 5% 8 = fir ~ 1R
and carbon reduction measures in all production and operations processes,  R,5ZRE0R « BELEBMR D  HEZKEHIT -
the Group has further enhanced its energy management by improving N8 ANEBAEERE E -

equipment technology, exploring clean energy, and promoting green office

practices and green travels.

We actively explore improvements in equipment technology, by replacing low-energy-efficiency equipment with
energy-efficient equipment to enhance energy efficiency in production processes.

Improvement in
equipment and During the Reporting Period, we replaced all the conventional lighting fixtures in the kitchen with LED energy-efficient

technology lights, reducing energy loss.
DAt BB 18 ROBERRRERMNIE - ABRRBRE EAFRRE - RS EERONRERRE -
WEHA - RFEEREKRA L EE L I9RBLEDRREE « BREEEIRIERM -

Exploration of

We actively explore clean energy transformation solutions, by exploring the development and implementation of rooftop
clean energy

photovoltaic projects.

E N
REBRAER SEES R RRA SR - RREIR A A BERE -

We promote green, low-carbon office practices by issuing a “Green Initiative”and establishing an evironmentally friendly
office “5R" principle.

Promotion of
green office We promote green and evironmentally friendly outreach and training activities to enhance employees’environmental

practices awareness. We encourage paperless office practices, including online processes, double-side printing, turning off lights
(EEEEED when leaving work sites, and reasonably adjusting the office air conditioning temperature.

B{5; BFESREEBROMATR - 6 [HeBRE] - SIRRERA [5R] RA-

- HfEEFERFREEMFINEE - B0 8 TRRRER - SEEM KA RER (L - EEITE - AE
B - BB AEAERRES -

We strongly promote green transportation by encouraging employees to use public transportation.

Promotion of Sinolife United disposed of its publicly-owned vehicles for sale, so as to provide staff with the opportunity to work from
green travels home and to reduce the carbon emissions generated by staff traveling.

HREEHT RPANRESELT  HBE TR ARTANT «
AHA B A ERET L ERE - AR TIRUERHARE - BIES THITE SR -
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Q

REDUCE POLLUTION AND CONSERVE RESOURCES HHNER - BDEHR
g RE-EVALUATE WHETHER THE PRODUCT IS ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY BEAETE  BIRIBE
d REUSE ITS RESIDUAL VALUE AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE BEFEH ZRAA
g RECYCLE THE WASTE AND WASTE CLASSIFICATION 2EEY - BEBE4L
d RESCUE LIVING CREATURES AND CONSERVE NATURE REAR  BYHE

5R Principle [5R| /A

Cope with Climate Change Risks EHRRE\ R

In active response to the opportunities and challenges brought about by A 7& 15 & RE L A5 ke B FIBkE - Rl4E
climate change, as well as to mitigate and adapt to the risks brought by current  E 3 & SR £ b & AT EL R 2R A sk 9 R\ Be - AR %=
and future climate change, the Group undertakes the preliminary work of — E{KIE RIZIE G 7512 B E T 1EMAEE:S (Task
identifying climate change risks with reference to the recommendations of the ~ Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures,
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), and formulates  TCFD) * ¥ R E A= &L A 2B T1E - #l

corresponding response measures. TEAB RS R -
Classification of Interpretation of Response measures
climate change risks climate change risks
RIFBLEABRDE RAR B 1L BB R R FE % 5 i
Physical risks Typhoons, extreme precipitation, - To continue to monitor extreme weather occurrences,
EEEE floods, and extreme weather and actively formulate emergency plans for extreme
B - BumkEK K - R R weather
FEEERMAE  HEHREFRESAR -
Transitional risks gradually stricter emission reporting - Toregularly maintain equipment, clean the drainage
HAF R obligations and compliance pumps in the basement, and inspect and clear outdoor
requirements in the future gutters and sewage pipes while also providing
R PR E B B AR B PR E R E insulation. Furthermore, regular inspections will be
EafEk conducted over lightning protection devices.

M ER M - THIEE MBS RETTIFE -
HEIRBMSTKEBETHERBNRRERIE -
HEEHELEETE SR -

To continue improving processing measures, and
enhance production equipment energy efficiency.
TEAR TEHE M - REEERBREX -

To vigorously cultivate employees’ awareness of
sustainable development.

ANBEEBTAIRKEEREH -
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Set forth below is our energy consumption during the Reporting Period: WEHA - RMNEREREELAT

Consumables Consumption HFEE

Category 2022 2023 Unit B {x

Gasoline JUH 29,344 27,521 35,653 Litre Ft

Diesel oil 0d 1,155 414 857 Litre F+

Liquefied petroleum gas BAIE AR 409 181 5.75 Cubic metres

377K

Natural gas AAT 0 157 1,402 Cubic metres

AVAYS

Total direct energy B HAEE 36.78 31.87 46.66 Tonnes of standard

consumption Coal equivalent

T A2

Purchased electricity SNEE 1,841.81 2,310.88 2,228.97 MWh

Ik BB

Total indirect energy B EEEIR A E 22636 28401 273.94 Tonnes of standard

consumption Coal equivalent

TR A

Total energy consumption? REBEIRHFE 263.14 315.88 320.60 Tonnes of standard

Coal equivalent

WRAR IR

Integrated energy consumption T {7 4 5 BEFE 1043 1149 5.68  Kilogram standard

per revenue of RMB10,000 coal equivalent

per RMB10,000

FRiZE BT

2 Energy consumption: calculated based on the General Principles of Comprehensive Energy — ? BERBEFE - RIR (ARG B AERT E i A (GB2589-2020)
Consumption Calculation (GB2589-2020). B
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HEMA - HPREREBHERIBERAT

Set forth was our greenhouse gas emission during the Reporting Period:

Emission HEI &

Greenhouse gas®
Category I 2022 2023 Unit B {7
Greenhouse gas emission Scope | #1188 — B = R EEHEIK 70.48 64.69 92,98  Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, %8
Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il #31E — )8 = R AL HEIN 653.62 876.10 858.23  Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, & &
Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il #00E = 8 = TS HE 4868 58.04 151.72  Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, 28
Total greenhouse gas emissions & =R BB HEH4EE 772.78 998.83 1,102.93  Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, %8
Greenhouse gas emissions BrlmBE 3063 3633 19.56 Kilogram of CO, eq
per revenue of RMB10,000 REHME Per RMB10,000
T

e —

CO, &8/ /8

Greenhouse gas emissions: Greenhouse gas emission Scope | was generated from petrol and
diesel consumption by the Company’s own vehicles and liquefied petroleum gas and natural
gas consumption from its own canteens. Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il was generated
from indirect emissions of purchased electricity. Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il was

generated from carbon emissions from business flights of our employees.

The emission factors for electricity of Sinolife United is based on the Notice on the Key Work
Related to the Management of Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting in 2023-2025
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China, and the
emission factor for power grid has been adjusted to 0.5703 tCO 2 /MWh. The greenhouse gas
emissions were calculated with reference to the Guidelines for Accounting Methods and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Industrial and Other Industrial Enterprises (Trial)
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of
China. The emission factors for electricity of Living Nature, Good Health and Cobayer adopted
2015 Guidelines for Defra/DECC's GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting issued by
Julie’s Bicycle Sustaining Creativity, and the greenhouse gas emissions were calculated with
reference to the National Greenhouse Accounts Factors issued by Australian Government,
Department of the Environment and Energy.

ARTAEBABRNABRRR —T-_=FFR

BREREBHN 8B BERBINREARAS
EWE’\J/-L/EE : x/ﬁa/ﬁﬁ&éﬁ ZHRIEARR R
RAFERE B REREHMCREINBEEHE
EREEER BB R EREHRRE 8 TRITE
TRBRREE A RO BB o

RS %ﬁ}ikﬁﬂz%’;ﬁﬁﬁqﬂi/\ﬁ/ﬁ\ﬁi%
IR AP A B KR M 2023-2025 F R EOR E R

PERE EEAMER T ENRM) - EEP?E%HF
A F#R 505703 1CO2/MWh SR EREEHERE S
H2RPEARANBERERINEEZESEM
P(IEEMITECERERBRRE T AER
488 (R17)) ° Living Nature * {7 2R R 5 B &Y
B A HER A F £ A [Julie’s Bicycle Sustaining Creativity |
475 #) 2015 5F Defra/DECCHI A Rl RS R = R EEE
R B8/ ) (2015 Guidelines for Defra/DECC's GHG
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting) : /nniﬁﬁ—
B H2RE XA T BT RS HEE IR
(Austrahan Government, Department of the Environment
and Energy) 245 #9 C Bl 508 = SR B2 1% B A B)(National

Greenhouse Accounts Factors) ©
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GROW TOGETHER WITH OUR EMPLOYEES TAPPING
INTO THEIR FULL POTENTIAL

The Group consistently believes that our sustainable development is essentially
premised on the growth of talents and realization of their self-worth through
our assistance. We continue to improve our employee management system,
while actively safeguarding employee rights and interests, by introducing
various welfare and care programs, protecting employees’ occupational safety
and mental health, and providing them with an equal, healthy, and positive
workplace environment. We pay attention to employees’ needs, by actively
organizing various training programs, optimizing career advancement paths,
and providing robust support for their professional development. By
understanding their aspiration, we will empower them to tap into their full
potential.

Employee Employment

In strict compliance with local laws and regulations such as the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the New Zealand Human Rights Act 1993, the New Zealand
Employment Relations Act 2005, and the New Zealand Holidays Act 2003, the
Group has formulated and continuously improved internal management
systems including the Employee Recruitment System and Remuneration
Management System to comprehensively safequard employees’ rights and
interests in various areas, including employee recruitment, induction, training,
career advancement, termination, remuneration, work hours, and vacation. We
enter into the /Induction Notice with new recruits to ensure that such
employees understand the systems and policies of the Group, as part of our
protection of their legal rights and interests.

The Group persists in the principles of lawful and compliant employment,
equal employment, and diversity in talent acquisition, and respect the diversity
of our employees. We adamantly oppose any discrimination in the recruitment
and development of employees based on age, citizenship, marital status, race,
skin color, ethnicity, religious beliefs, physical condition, gender identity, and
other factors. We adopt a zero-tolerance policy towards all forms of
harassment. The Group is committed to safeguarding the legal rights and
interests of minors, by prohibiting use of child labor, and ensuring that
employees meet the statutory age for employment through strict verification
of employee identity information. The Group advocates for a reasonable
working hours system and resolutely opposes any form of forced labor. During
the Reporting Period, there were no violations of child labor, forced labor,
harassment, and other irregularities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to attract outstanding
talents by means of various forms of recruitment, such as new media, human
resource markets, campus recruitment, third-party recruitment platforms, and
internal referrals. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total
of 349 employees, with female employees accounting for 64%, among which
18% of senior management are female. In the meantime, we actively promoted
local employment, and 49% of our new hires were recruited locally in 2023,
details of which are as follows:

\
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Distribution of total employees by employment type (persons)

Distribution of total employees by age group (persons)

REREREINETAB N
68
e Full-time employees 114 @ 30 yearsold or below
EXRT 30 AREAT
® Part-time employees ® 317 to040 years old
FEET 31-40/EB%
© 41to50years old
61 41-50/E5%
@ above 50 years old
S0/ERRA L

BREREIDMET AR (A

Distribution of total employees by gender (persons) Distribution of total employees by employee category (persons)
RUBIBSETAB (N BRESEREIHNETAR (N
31 ° ggnior management
e Male 108 ‘ REEE
127 St 27 ® Administrative
TRAR
@ Female
=i ® Healthcare supplement
37 technicians
REBEBRZMAR
@ Sales
HEAR
® Other
Hit

Distribution of total employees by geographical region (persons)

EiEEDHNE T A (A)

e China

HE

® Oversea
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RIE - HERERHE
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total staff turnover rate was 29.37%¢, $R&EHAR - KEBEE TRk 1 7,%29 37%"
with details of staff turnover set out in the following diagrams: TERAHERMHABET tb% P

Employee turnover rate
by geographical region (%)

Turnover rate by gender (%)

121 B B 5 KR B 57 5k R (%) T RIB D M E TR AE%)

108

35 0 35
Sl 32.92%
30 30
25 25 26.57%
20 20
19 13.81% "
10 10
5 5
0 0
Number of resigned Number of resigned Male Female
employees in China employees overseas B s
o B 3 [ )7 Sk AR TN TR A B
Turnover rate by age (%)
RFERETHE TREE(%)
50
41.62%
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20
10.62% 11.02%
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0 l I
below 411050 Above
40years 0 old years old 50years o old
40 B% 41-50 SO %
AN Pl LAk
Staff turnover rate = Number of resigned employees/((number of employees at the beginning ~ * ITRAE=BIRRAAE (REHMIMEIAK
of Reporting Period + number of employees at the end of Reporting Period)/2) * 100%. + #ﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ BT AZ,2)*100% °
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Employee Development

The Group adheres to a people-oriented development philosophy, by
regarding talent as the core of our sustainable development. We actively
explore new initiatives, paths, and approaches for talent development, and
continue to strengthen our talent pool construction to provide a robust
safeguard for human resources over the course of our own development.

Remuneration Performance

The Group has established, and continue to optimize, a scientific and
transparent management system for remuneration performance. We continue
to enhance assessment and incentive mechanisms to increase employees'’
target awareness. By adhering to a combination of materials, spiritual, and
target incentives, we will ensure that each employee’s efforts are recognized
and rewarded. This stimulates employees’ motivation to work and enhances
their drive for innovation. In 2023, the Group introduced many new benefits to
fully incentivize the talents and safeguard employee rights and interests, which
are aimed at promoting business development.

ETHE

AEBERFUAABEANERES - BATR
EERAFBEEROZO - RABEERRAS
RV RS R EME L TR
ATEER REXEBFERREHBEINOA
NERIRE

AR

AEBEEREITRE FSHMNIFTEREIEE
B FEELCEPNFTINERE R E
BT TSR L ST A BB ) - R B T B
TEH BEYME R - BeREEE ZEH
BiRES  RESUE THNEEESIR
AIEEEI¥R - HMEE T TIES H - BB E TA
BB o 203F REBHMIEEZEHNF
B ADBEHASTHLEIER EREE
TSRS  BEEBER -

The introduction of quarterly performance assessment contents for e-commerce management positions and the determination of quarterly

bonuses based on assessment results have comprehensively improved the management level of the Group's supervisors.

EHEEMIFESEEIND  PRBEFLRFETERS BB

2EENTRETENERKTF

The introduction of new benefits such as e-commerce position allowances and project allowances not only encourages core

employees to constantly improve their business skills but also facilitates the rapid project development.

FIREMEARE BRRBRERAGE BB TR0 8 TIHERTT X

XA{pETIHERRERE -

The performance-based system reform of the Douyin and Kuaishou projects to a commission-based system has not only stimulated
employee motivation but also significantly promoted the development of the Douyin and Kuaishou projects.

PURIE B BN ERIEAE] - B MEFETEIITEE N MEAKERETHRRNIER EE -

Employee Training

The Group attaches importance to talent team building, and is committed to
building an effective training system that guides employees to unleash their
potential and enhance their capabilities, ensuring the employees advance their
career in parallel with our development. We have established the Employee
Training Management System as the basis for talent cultivation and formulated
training programs targeting different levels and job positions, and covering all
stages of employee growth based on our actual development requirement.
We actively carry out in-house training programs, including induction training,
vocational skills training, and specialized training, to facilitate employee
development.

ARDEBAKRNERAT —E-_=F4%%
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We provide new recruits with induction training that covers the Group's RIFIAFE TIREREEBREHE - LF
regulations and systems, brand introduction, and corporate culture to help 143 * ¥ XELERWFE T ABEI - &
them familiarize themselves with, adapt to, and integrate into the Group as  BIHTE THABREE BN BREE I A E
quickly as possible. In addition, we regularly conduct necessary skill training for o TN E IR RABERE A TR e
respective positions, comprehensively enhancing employees’ know-how, skills, 25752 F 8 T ANk i AE g - A& -
and leadership.

Furthermore, we support employees’ self-improvement. The Group encourages  Ith4h » I HE T B RIEFA - ZEEEH B
employees to obtain relevant qualifications and upgrade their academic E T EHRMAEEL - BEABIEF  HRE
credentials. We offer reimbursements and extra incentives for qualification B R BEA) ZEURH RIS EAEINEE - REE
certification exams and provide education subsidies to assist employees in  Ef#EL » Bh ) B TBEEFAE - AR DEFH -
enhancing their professional skills and personal capabilities.

E-commerce Training Specialized in The First Window of Store

The First Window of Store & & = FE 1 3l

During the Reporting Period, we conducted the e-commerce training specialized in “The First Window of Store”. This training aimed
to enhance the e-commerce business know-how and skills of our employees, thereby strengthening the overall business
capabilities of the team and improving our business efficiency.
HEHA - HPIFE T [The First Window of Store ] BRI FERIF I o tXIF IS EBBIRA B THE R E K MM ELAL -
MG R BB  NEREBRENRT -

During the training process, the e-commerce director conducted an objective review of the previous quarter's work, whereby
analyzing the achievement of various indicators in detail, and scientifically breaking down the targets for the next quarter.
Simultaneously, a comprehensive review and in-depth discussion were conducted regarding the current business situation and
existing issues within the team, with practical future development directions and improvement recommendations proposed. This
training session received a positive response from the employees, effectively enhancing their business capabilities and professional
qualifications. It further improved the match between employees and their roles, boosting our business efficiency.

EEIBRET  ERAEH IFTETIHEETTEENER  FASNM T SEEFNENEBER  YEH TFTERBRETT
TREZ2S - R - stEEKEMNEEREARNFENRE  #E17 7 2EOFRBIRANRS - BB TUEAITH
ARRERTMMBERZ - LWABEIEDEITEINERER AR TEINEREINEXEE  EAME
A ESEE —FRIT - HEBEBRERNRTT

7
goodhealth

Subject on E-commerce

The First Window

of Store

[EHRE—EO

E-commerce Training Specialized in “The First Window of Store”
[ The First Window of Store | & 75 5 @2 5% 3l
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During the Reporting Period, the number of employees participating in training
sessions were 236, with the percentage of employees receiving training

reaching 67.62%. The average training hours per employee is 44.08 hours. The
training details of overseas employees by gender are as follows:

WMEHAN EESHEFINE T A A6
A BIZ2NEINEDLE762% B TF
B2 B A 4408/ N o B TIZFIFEEMT ¢

Average

training hours

Percentage completed

of employees (hour)

trained (%) | FITHEE

Employee Training BINZIER ZIIE 2 (%) (/NEF)

By gender RERE S

Female employees Z8T 36.02% 4161

Male employees FET 63.98% 4550
By employee category REIERNE D

Senior Management mRERE 11.38% 60.94

Administrative THRAE 13.01% 63.96

Healthcare supplement technicians REEERMAR 15.04% 95.81

Sales HEAR 32.52% 50.19

Other Hi A8 28.05% 7.59

Career Advancement BEZH

According to the Employee Promotion Management System, the Group
standardizes promotion criteria, processes and other aspects to ensure fair
advancement opportunities for our talented employees. According to our
scientific talent development system, we provide platforms for employee
growth, offering diverse career advancement paths tailored to different
positions to support the realization of our employees’ career aspiration. We
furnish our employees with clear and accessible career advancement channels,
while actively assisting them in exploring their areas of expertise by offering
opportunities for experimentation. Furthermore, we aid them in maximizing
their strengths within their preferred domains.
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Care for Employee

As an employee-friendly company that advocate for employee care, we
proactively strive to build a workplace replete with health, diversity, equality
and inclusivity, ensuring a positive work experience for our employees. We
continue to focus on employee propositions by improving employee benefits,
strengthening employee care initiatives, and ensuring open channels of
communication to receive feedback from our employees and increase their
sense of wellbeing.

Employee Benefits

The Group has implemented a multi-level employee welfare system to provide
our employees with benefits packages above the statutory standards, and
improve their quality of life. During public holidays, we provide our employees
with holiday benefits, and actively organize various employee activities to
enrich their leisure time. In addition, we set up a lactation room for female
employees who need to breastfeed or take a break. We wish to enhance their
sense of belonging through such thoughtful caring initiatives.

Holiday Benefits
g B EF
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During holidays, we prepare thoughtful holiday benefits for our employees, fostering the festive holiday atmosphere for them. By
demonstrating our commitment to employee welfare, we wish to enhance employees’ sense of accomplishment and belonging.
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Holiday Benefits Posters
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Warm Dining Environment Created with Nutritious Workplace Meals

TERBRHRERSE  RHUHEBTHE

We wish to mitigate the challenges our employees may encounter with meal options at source, by providing them with healthy,
tasty, and nutritionally balanced meals. Furthermore, we actively strive for a warm and comfortable dining environment, where

their daily dining needs are met, and they can unwind from work stress and enhance their sense of wellbeing.
BB LRANRERRE T RBNRNE - RETIRERR XK EBHENER - 1IN BMIEREERR
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Employee Dining Environment and Meal Menu
ETHERREBTEE

Anniversary Celebration
BEEEH

In celebration of the Group’s anniversary event, we expressed gratitude for our employees’ diligence and dedication, as part of our
gesture of corporate warmth, vitality, appreciation, and care.

BAEDEEBEFELS RHSEINFHHL  FEIRXIKENRBERE )  FREEE -

Anniversary Celebration

BEERY
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Christmas Party
EE%E

In 2023, we held a Christmas party for our employees to share a warm moment together. During the party, outstanding employees
were commended and rewarded, thereby invoking their sense of recognition. The performances and interactions at the party
deepened the camaraderie among employees.

203F  HMAEIRMERNS  HETHZREKD ARG L HMUESE TETRENER BT
REBFE - BBBE LNRELD  IRTELZHEHRGE -

Christmas Party
EE%RE
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Lhasa Trip
I pE e

In 2023, we organized a trip to Lhasa for the Company’s core employees. This activity aimed to alleviate work fatigue and
strengthen the bond between core employees and the Company, facilitating the dissemination of the Company’s core values.

20235 - RAAB AR OB TNEREES - AHER TERENRE - ez 0 B THRAR ZHNER  BREQ

AR NMEESRNEE -

Lhasa Trip
I 1 32 &

Communication with Employees

The Group attaches great importance to the demands and opinions of
employees, by continuously keeping open channels for communication with
our employees to ensure our reception of employee feedback. We have
established diverse communication channels to actively receive employee
suggestions and demands, and provide timely responses and feedback. By
continuing to optimize our communication mechanisms, we strive to create an
open, inclusive, and harmonious work atmosphere, where every employee
feels respected and valued. This environment enables employees to fully
unleash their potential and collectively advance the Group’s development.

We encourage employees to communicate their opinions and provide
feedback to their superiors at any time via phone calls, message, WeChat,
email, and other means to resolve any issues in concerted efforts. The Group
regularly collects and organizes feedback from the e-commerce suggestion
box every month to earnestly address employees’ questions and issues. We
undertake multiple communication activities for new recruits at the beginning
of their tenure to assist them in better team integration. Additionally, we
regularly hold team meetings that enable employees to share their work
progress, encountered issues, and ideas, ensuring efficient use of time.
Emphasizing cross-departmental exchanges, we actively organize
communication activities between departments to discuss work models and
methods, facilitating the collision of new ideas and the transfer of business
know-how.

MRPEBERNDARAR —FT-=FF%
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Employee Health and Safety

The Group always gives top priority to the safety and health of employees. By
continuing to improve the occupational health and safety management
system, we implement relevant measures in a timely fashion to prevent
occurrence of any danger. In addition to continuing to optimize our in-house
working conditions, we focus on the development of occupational safety and
sanitation systems, pay closer attention to employee health, and ensure the
safety of our operating environment.

Health and Safety Management

In strict compliance with various laws and regulations in places where we
operate, including the Workplace Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Safety Training Management Rules, the Regulations
on the Control over Safety of Dangerous Chemicals and the Health & Safety at
Work Act 2015 of New Zealand, we formulate and continue to optimize our
internal institutional documents, including the Safety Education and Training
System, the Administrative Rules for Special Positions, the Administrative Rules
for Employee Health and Sanitation, the Mould Management Rules, the
Management Rules for Cleaning Tools, the Management Rules for Use of
Containers, and the Management System for the Purchase, Use and Storage of
Explosive Chemicals, whereby providing guidance as to effective
implementation of production safety measures.

We care about our employees’ health by conducting regular occupational
safety hazard monitoring, and purchasing personal protective equipment to
safeguard their health. We have formulated health checkup plans for our
employees, offering entry health examinations for every new recruit and
occupational disease screenings for those in specific positions. During the
Reporting Period, Good Health provided all employees with flu vaccinations
and introduced a workplace health welfare program, hiring naturopaths to
offer psychological counseling to employees.
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Proactively Conducting Safety Inspection and Risk Prevention and Investigation

BERARZZARGEEES

The Group actively engages in risk control activities under the working notion of “safety first, prevention as priority” to preemptively
identify potential risks threatening business operations. In our daily operations, we actively carry out risk inspections. The
engineering department of the Group rigorously checks firefighting equipment in accordance with regulations and ensures
responsibilities are assigned to individuals, fully safeguarding firefighting safety. The Group places a strong emphasis on electrical
safety, where we have staff on 24-hour duty in the central control room for monitoring. Furthermore, we arrange for personnel to
patrol at night to investigate and rectify electrical safety hazards.

AEEERIZ2E— BHAFINITIERE BERARBERIEIE  HEXEEMRENRBRIEATETH
EL¥AFLEREY  HBEEFHRERRIEEIE  &H lIif BEBIRBREREH Kﬁ%%ﬁ WHEEEERA
E2NTEENLE - AEBEARNBRFARELEME  RAOEPEZTLEEAS 24/ NSEFIETER - HATLHR
BABEREETHE  HERAERERE -

Regular Firefighting Equipment Inspection

HB B E B E
During the Reporting Period, the lost days due to work injury was 30 working ~ $R&EHIN - R TS5 BK TEB 8 A30M@ T &

days. In the past three years, the Group has not identified any work-related H e BE=ZF  REBRBELETH I EH
fatalities. BRMLT R EI -
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Culture of Health and Safety

To promote scientific knowledge on production safety, and enhance
employees’ capabilities of safety technology and safety prevention, we have
established a Safety Education Training System to conduct various training
sessions on labor protection business knowledge, which aims to enhance
employee safety literacy and awareness, thereby reducing production and
operational risks. All our operational sites regularly conduct trainings for all
employees on occupational health and safety laws and regulations, internal
policies, and case analysis. Sinolife United and Good Health regularly provide
occupational health training and assessments to department heads, who then
relay the training and assessment contents to their colleagues, further
enhancing their health awareness.

—3 13.05

2023.07.20 2HM | E Bk
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Occupational Health and Safety Training Assessment for Department Heads of Sinolife United

TABAERBMPIAEABRERFER2BIIZR
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Safety Training
Z 2

To ensure employees’ safety and health during the production process, and prevent and reduce accidents, we regularly organize
and conduct safety training. During the Reporting Period, we organized production safety training sessions, including electrician
duty training, hot work safety trainings, and warehouse safety training. Such training aims to effectively enhance employees’
awareness of safety prevention, improve emergency response and professional skills, and ensure employees’ health and safety
comprehensively through system requirements, emergency handling processes and measures, case sharing, and practice.

REREIGCAEBRETHLZE2NEE IR EROEL  BATHABFERL 2 - REHA - FFIE
BRREIBEEI BAMEERER)  RERERIFLEELZZE - B EBATEER  BEEREE
HiE  ROIDZEREE  ARRABILERAMHER REBRABRHMEERRE  2HURREINRERELZS -

At the same time, the Group actively organizes fire drills and participates in fire ~ [E B » NE BB R HHREEHEES Bk
drill activities organized by the subdistrict offices to ensure our emergency £ N B4R &L A0 E BT & BRI B - FE (R T HT 3R
response capabilities will continue to improve. Living Nature organizes a fire  F+ 3 {fI 89 & = 8E 1 © Living Nature & 75 & A 48
drill for all employees every six months. BWIBEEIREHEMESR -

Emergency Drills
P& SR AR

To enhance the timely, skilled and standardized rescue capabilities of maintenance personnel and improve the response to
emergencies, we organized a series of activities during the Reporting Period, including emergency drills for elevator entrapment
and injury from falling objects. These activities have promoted emergency knowledge, raise public awareness of risk prevention,
and enhance disaster response capabilities such as self-rescue and mutual aid.

RBCERABRERBEEL NN REN  AREFRE N - RARBEMHNEEEN - ®REPHA  BAEABRRE
BRARZER VBITESTRSERE—FIEY  TREZAH Re/ARERMEEIZNEREKEFLE
FEXTRE S o

Through the elevator entrapment emergency drills, we verified the effectiveness of the standard rescue procedures for elevator
entrapment and the emergency response capabilities of our personnel, ensuring timely and effective responses in case of
accidents. By conducting emergency drills for injury from falling objects, we comprehensively reviewed the issues in the
contingency plan, thereby improving the emergency plan to enhance its practicality and operability. At the same time, these drills
increase the familiarity of the organizing units, participating units, and personnel with the emergency plan, improving their
emergency response capabilities.

BREMRNARSER BEERRAATHRELEFNARENAENEZES  BREBELEFORE  ARE
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WITH PHILANTHROPY AT HEART, WE SHARE OUR
BENEFITS WITH SOCIETY

As we pursue our own growth, we actively engage in philanthropic efforts,
giving back to society with a strong sense of social responsibility and gratitude.
We actively participate in volunteer and community activities, sharing our
business achievements with the wider community to contribute to community
prosperity.

Community Engagement

The Group, driven by a philanthropic spirit, incorporates public welfare and
charity into its daily operations, actively engaging in social welfare endeavors
and consistently delivering warmth to society, with a view to becoming a
company with compassion and a strong sense of responsibility.

DB B EHEE
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Good Health’s employees participating in the tree planting activity at the Kaip a tiki Project

{2 EEE T 2 8 Kaip a tikiJE B & E S

During the Reporting Period, Good Health organized a tree planting activity at the Kaip 4 tiki Project, in which 20 employees
participated and personally planted dozens of native plants, contributing to the improvement of the local ecological environment
and the enhancement of biodiversity. At the same time, Good Health made donations to the project, supporting its daily operations
and future development. This activity not only demonstrated the sense of responsibility and team spirit of Good Health's employees
but also showcased Good Health's support for environmental protection and social responsibility.

WREHA - FRFEABM 0B E T2 EKaipatkiJA B WERES  RFEE TR TIRALEY - B ESEHMAERR
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A big

Thank You

10 Good Health Products Limited

for your outstanding team volunteering and
planting day in Eskdale Reserve, and growing a
sustainable future for people and nature.

&, waipatikiProject

26 May 2023
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Living Nature conveys care and support through tangible actions, working
hand in hand with the community to create a better future. In 2023, Living
Nature actively participated in community building by providing product
sponsorships for a series of local community events and non-profit
organizations, which facilitated close interaction and deep support with the
community while further solidifying the brand’s positive image. Specific
sponsorship activities included:

Kerikeri Bowling Club Prize Sponsorship: Living Nature prepared a
set of prize packages for Kerikeri Bowling Club, aiming to provide joy and
surprise to club members.

Sponsorship of Kerikeri Cruising Club’s World Event: By providing
product sponsorships, Living Nature supported the participation of the
local sailing team in the RS Feva World Championship, demonstrating
the brand’s active support for sportsmanship.

Sponsorship of Charitable Chicks’ Charity Raffle: By providing raffle
prizes, Living Nature assisted the charitable cause of ReSport Northland,
conveying the brand’s care and support for society.

Donation of Hand Creams to Kerikeri Retirement Village: Living
Nature donated hand creams to elderly residents of Kerikeri Retirement
Village, providing them with warmth and care, highlighting the brand'’s
deep concern for the elderly population.

ARDEBAKRNERAT —E-_=F4%%
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By coordinating and allocating internal and external resources, the Group
continues to enhance its focus and investment in vulnerable groups within
society and provide them with comprehensive support in terms of financial
and material resources. Living Nature supports various charitable fundraising
activities through product donations, actively promoting the development of a
healthy culture among socially vulnerable groups. In 2023, Living Nature
supported the healthcare industry through practical actions, including:

Fundraising Event for the Northern New Zealand Rescue
Helicopter Service: Living Nature provided products for the fundraising
auction, contributing to the funds raised for the rescue helicopter service
in the Northern region.

Women'’s Charity Ball in the Northern New Zealand Region: Living
Nature prepared gift bags for the breast cancer fundraising event,
conveying care for women'’s health.

Strength Works Charity Weightlifting Competition: Living Nature
provided products for a raffle, raising funds to support the “I am Hope”
foundation, which helps young people access mental health support.

Sponsorship of Island Bay Hospital: Living Nature made product
donations to provide care for female patients at the hospital.

Pink Ribbon Ride Fundraising: Living Nature provided products for a
fundraising event for the breast cancer foundation, raising funds for
breast cancer research.
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APPENDIX CONTENT INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT GUIDE OF THE

HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

YsREBBRTRE  HERER
BEESIRB RS

Chapter
FREEE

RS HERERERE-REERBRENEE KP)

A. Environmental
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Al: Emissions
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Al2
A13
Al4
A15
Al6

ARPAEBASRNBR QA

General disclosure  Information on

—RIRE

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land

and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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b)) BEFHETABEAXENRWEZRROINER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data

BRER R B

Direct and energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

BERNGRAZRERBHNERTE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELEERENRENTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELRZRENERENTE

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
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Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HRERESREEEEDNTE  RERMTUAHEIERA
ETE LB RTINS

TR CFEFR

GREEN DEVELOPMENT,
NURTURING WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT
REER HREHAR

Emissions Compliance
BB

Response to Climate Change
EHREE

Emissions Compliance
BB

Emissions Compliance
BB

Environmental Target
Response to Climate Change
REAR

EHREEL
Environmental Target
Emissions Compliance
REAR

AP



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Wi

CHERE

A E

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)
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Chapter
FREEE

A2: Use of Resources ~ General disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other

A2 BREAR

A2

A22

A23

A24

A25

A3:The environment  General disclosure

—RE

and natural
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A3 ERIER
AAREIR
A3.1

A4: Climate Change  General disclosure

—REE

A RIEEE
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raw materials.
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Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)
in total and intensity
RENESNERR/FEEER (NS RIh) BREREE
Water consumption in total and intensity

BRKERTE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them

M UM RER AR B RRAEREL A RARRN TSR
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
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Total packaging material used for finished products and, with reference to per
unit produced
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Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.
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Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
HORBEHHRERRAABRNEAYERERRERFHETE
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Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

RS HEREAERE-REERBRENERKP)

Chapter
FREEE

A4

B. Social

B. £8

Employment and
Labour Practices

BRREIES

General disclosure

—REE

B1: Employment

B1 : [BfE

B1.2

General disclosure

B8

B2: Health and Safety
B2: AL 2

B2.1

B2.2

ARPAEBASRNBR QA

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to manage them
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Information on

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other

benefits and welfare.
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b)) BETHETAREATENRBERRROOER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

region
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Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

BRI FRAMN K RESNEERALE

Information on

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.
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Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three

years

BEZFFFRITHMARRLLE

Lost days due to work injury

AIBBAIERH

TR CFEFR

Response to Climate Change

EHREE®L

GROW TOGETHER WITH OUR
EMPLOYEES TAPPING INTO
THEIR FULL POTENTIAL
ABHET - BETHT

Employee Employment

ETER

Employee Employment
BTER

Employee Health and Safety
BETIREELZE

Employee Health and Safety
BTREERZE

Employee Health and Safety
BIREELZE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAERE-REERBEENERKP)

Chapter
FREEE

B23

B3:Developmentand General disclosure
Training —REE

B3 : BEKIFHI
B3.1

B32

B4: Labour Standards  General disclosure

—REE

B4 : BT AR
B4.1
B4.2
Operating Practices
LERH
B5:Supply Chain
Management
B : R E R
B5.1
B5.2
B5.3
B54

N\
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General disclosure

—REE

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored

A RANBRRERL2EH  URABRTRER

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work. Description of training activities.

ABRMEERTIERENME R RAENEUR - HBIEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

RUERIREBERESNXIEER DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee Category

RUFIREEERIED - §2EETRXIIN TR

Information on

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B FE Tk HI5TH -

@ BER: K

b)) BEBFHBTABEAZENRWEZRROINER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour

R EA R EEAE R E T RS T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

HRERRERBENRBRERABERMERNSR

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain.

EEEEENRE R EAREE

Number of suppliers by geographical region

BB DR EFEE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

HOAEERREENED  mERTABENNEEREE - U
REBEPNITREERE

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

A BB RS EROMNRE Rt e mEEH - ARG
WIREERE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored
HIAEREHERREEZRRRERRRBHOEN - URBEHR
TRERRE -

Employee Health and Safety
BEIREERZS

Employee Development
BIHRE

Employee Development
BT#R
Employee Development
BEIHR

Employee Employment

ETIER

Employee Employment

ETIER

Employee Employment

ETER

Supply Chain Management
e R

Supply Chain Management
HERER
Supply Chain Management
HERER

Supply Chain Management
HERER

Supply Chain Management
g E R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

RS HEREAERE-REERBRENERKP)

Chapter
FREEE

B6: Product
Responsibility ~— —ARHE &
B6: EmET
B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5

B7: Anti-corruption

B7: REJS —RRE

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

ARPAEBASRNBR QA

General disclosure

— -

=

General disclosure  Information on

(@)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.

ARMREEMNRENRELERE  BE  SHEILBEEAR

AR
@ BE:R
b BIFEETABEAYENBBEIEZRAHMNER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons
PEARERERARTRLT 2 ERREHRMANKNAES
Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with

REMERERRRBORFEEAREY R

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

it RgERRENBEEGENED

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

HE 2 RTREKEmEKEF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

MR BEBRHRE RALBEE - UREBRTRERZ

Information on

(@  thepolicies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

RBVILHE DR BEFRARES

@ HE K

b) BETHETAREATENRBERRROOEH -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of
the cases
REGBAHETASHESRETEEENB S FARTNEA
PEENS

Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

i e RBREF  URABRTRERFE

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
HEMEEREIRENREE

= FFR

INGENUITY, EMBRACING
HEALTH AND HARMONY
FOBGE - MigEAE

Quality Assurance
EERE

Service System

8 %

Innovation Research

BRI

Quality Assurance
BERE
Service System

AR5 B8 %

Operating Compliance

Gl

Operating Compliance
AREE

Operating Compliance
AREE

Operating Compliance

aRgeE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAERE-REERBEENERKP)

Chapter
FREEE

Community
"HE
B8:Community General disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the need of the
Investment —REE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
B8 : HEIRE the communities' interests.
BB ERBREEMEHRRENEREELKEDHEZR
HERMEREOR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution
EIAREE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focused area
EZIRBMDHAER

WITH PHILANTHROPY AT
HEART, WE SHARE OUR

BENEFITS WITH SOCIETY
DR - At g

Community Engagement
2
Community Engagement
HtE2H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EYzx

To the shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanjing Sinolife
United Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 136 to 230, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

ARPREBERNERLRRE —T_=FF%
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBETHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

REETEE

FRES SR
RAREAFTAIRERMZIEXHE  RXR
MEAMGEEMBEBRRIEATRER LS
R ST ARNRMEGRAMHHRRERE
TEAARBEREM B EEE - HM
THZEFRRHEFER -IATEESE
HimE BN P HEARF 2 FTOME
EEE SR

BB IT AN RS D EBADF A5 E I BHRE
ZEME—fif e BEE BREEZEFFEE
BE Bt RACEFERETEERY
B EEMBERREARRRA AR 2 ¥
BEF - RABFAREFIER BRRERE
AWTEEMETZERF  RERMAREHES
MR 2 BT B RIRHER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMzEtnNEERRESER

Impairment of goodwill

BE e E

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded goodwill of RMB58,901,000
before provisions for impairment of RMB25,920,000.

M2023F 128310 EEEHEEHE R ARKS58901,0007T (R
B H 1 A FR # 25,920,0007T) ©

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the Group
is required to perform impairment tests for goodwill annually and whenever
there is an indication that a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which these
assets have been allocated may be impaired. Management performed
impairment tests on these assets by using future discounted cash flow
models as at 31 December 2023. This was considered as a key audit matter
because the assessment was complex, and it involved significant judgements
and assumptions such as the long-term growth rate and discount rate.
RERBEGAERENHKEERE]  EEEREFRNETRE
TESEBRENABEENRSEASU((REEELEM]) ATEER
EREEEETRENR - R2023F 128318 - EEERARREL
BReMEAUZEEELETRENR - ARFERRER PR
FORPERENBREOEZHE RRR - BRI RERER
I8 o

The related disclosures are set out in notes 2.4, 3 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AR ES NG RRWNE24 3 K16 °

N\
138

We evaluated the processes and key controls of the
Group over the assessment on impairment of
goodwill. We reviewed the basis of preparation of
the forecasts used for the impairment tests for
goodwill. We involved our internal valuation
specialist to assist us in reviewing the methodology
and certain assumptions adopted in the
assessment of impairment of goodwill. We also
reviewed management’s assessment of the
sensitivity of the Group'’s impairment model to
reasonably possible changes and considered the
adequacy of the disclosures of impairment testing
in the consolidated financial statements.

BT EEEEHBHBEORETHHORER
TREG - HMEHHENRER S AR
AR RBEEE - RPTEALGEEERBE
BPEHNBBRENEARBNTERET
BR - RMTEHEREEHESERERE
HEEAEEPNBRENTFILLEZEERS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HREEITER

BEESTEE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAZETNNEERRETER

Net realisable value of inventories

FRAEEFE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded inventories of RMB108,861,000.
Management judgements and estimates are required in assessing whether
the carrying value is higher than the net realisable value ("NRV") of the
inventories on hand at the year end, especially of those slow-moving
inventories which may become obsolete.

R2023F12A31H EEEEFEFE AR 1088610007 ° R d
FRAFRFENRAERSSNAZRFE ((TRRFE]) - LH
RAREKABROFHEFER - FE2ERETEEHE R -

Significant judgements and estimates are also required in determining the
write-down of inventories to NRV, which involves management’s
expectations of the forecast inventory sales and usage and the estimated
selling price of inventories based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. Therefore, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

EBEFEMRE I #RFER AL EXAE R PRER
EBREBMMAMHERAULEERNBATAREFEZHERR
EREFEEEANAGFEEE - it - RMARIERBREAFER -

The related disclosures are set out in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HRARBEHRN G BRERME24 318

ARPREBERNERLRRE —T_=FF%

We evaluated the design and implementation of
management’s controls over the assessment of the
net realisable value of inventories. We obtained an
understanding of the Group's inventory provision
policy and checked the calculation of the inventory
provision based on the Group’s policy. We
evaluated management’s assumptions used to
calculate the provision by checking the ageing of
inventories, subsequent sales and usage of
inventories on a sampling basis. We also checked
the subsequent selling prices to the sales orders
and invoices on a sampling basis.

IR E IR E S 17 A B R FE IR
EORALER R THEEETEREE
BRI BEEEBHRRZEFERENGE
BPBEBMENAEREFENREK FEN
HRERHEEMEAERFEHEEREANHE
BRENRR BMATKEMENHETERN
HREERER -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBETHRE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

BAFHRzHEMESR

BERAESHAMENAS -EMEHNBR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBETHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

N\
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ho Wai Ling.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEkEMAEZEKER

Year ended 31 December 2023 E;Z=2023%12 A31 B IHFE

2023 2022
2023 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARMT ARBTT
REVENUE U = 5 563,959 274,851
Cost of sales $HE KA (184,302) (114,856)
Gross profit EH 379,657 159,995
Other income and gains o N & 5 8,474 7,910
Selling and distribution expenses 85 R A SR X (249,962) (108,603)
Administrative expenses TR (72,222) (63,924)
Finance costs & B R 7 (3,280) 472)
Other expenses HER (4,574) (5,406)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLATRIE(EE) 6 58,093 (10,500)
Income tax expense Fr8fiF = 10 (5,491) (3,746)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KEEFB(FE) 52,602 (14,246)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hth 2 E WA
Other comprehensive income that may be  HRBER BRI GEEFT DB A
reclassified to profit in subsequent periods, ~ FMEARE M EEWA
after tax: BREiE
Exchange differences on translation BMEFINETFRIIE K =58
of foreign operations 1,667 1,045
Other comprehensive income that will REEZ BRI EF L
not be reclassified to profit in AAEREMEERA
subsequent periods, after tax: BRI
Gains on property revaluation S ER NGy - 6,755
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AFE2MEIKRA (F18) M %HE
FOR THE YEAR 54,269 (6,446)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: AN IEEEFE(BE)
Owners of the parent NaEA A 52,602 (14,246)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) LT &EIEEGEEE
attributable to: WA, (E518) s 5a :
Owners of the parent NEER A 54,269 (6,446)
RMB A R ¥ RMB A R %
PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREEESEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY  FE{tERFE (&1#8)
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HEAR#E 12 5.56 cents 7 (1.51) cents 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R 13 72,126 80,074
Investment properties "EME 14 71,725 72,954
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 37,428 39,985
Goodwill EES 16 32,981 32374
Other intangible assets HEEmEEE 17 3,083 5,077
Deferred tax assets REFIREE 25 12,562 12,125
Total non-current assets EREEELLEE 229,905 242,589
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 108,861 75272
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 19 32,511 28,184
Restricted cash PR HIER 21 200 1,350
Prepayments, deposits and FERHIE - Re Rk
other receivables H fth fE Y k1B 20 16,386 16,070
Tax recoverable AU 177 18 - 131
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 2] 117,556 73,391
Total current assets MBEEETE 275,514 194,398
Total assets EEBE 505,419 436,987
CURRENT LIABILITIES A=A
Trade payables =) ANEeE 22 33,147 21,528
Other payables and accruals Hin I RIERETEA 23 38,297 41,101
Lease liabilities HEAR 15 4,143 4368
Tax payables BT E 6,464 =
Total current liabilities mEIBERE 82,051 66,997
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 193,463 127,401
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBAME
CURRENT LIABILITIES 423,368 369,990
V4
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRIR R

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR | ARBTI

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE

Lease liabilities HEEE 15 31,020 31,385

Deferred tax liabilities REFIEE E 25 13,468 14,031

Provision B4 24 811 774
Total non-current liabilities FEMBEERRE 45,299 46,190
Net assets BEFE 378,069 323,300
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners BRAREEAELER

of the parent

Share capital f& 7 26 94,630 94,630

Other reserves H At 27 283,439 229,170
Total equity AR 378,069 323,800

Gui Pinghu Zhang Yuan
Chairman and Executive Director Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
EEZERFHITESE BRENTEFRHITESE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023%12 A31 B IHFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRARHEE ARLE
Exchange  Statutory Asset
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus Merger Other revaluation Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve** losses equity
EiRE AEERR EEEf
Bx  ExRE e RE  AUEE  HERR W RiHR BEs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTn ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARET:R
(note 26) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27)
(Kzt2e)  (MrE27) (Wt 27) (Wit2r)  (WE27)
At 1 January 2023 RUBF1A1R 94,630 544,223* (6,333)% 55,902* (3,871)% (2,022)% 12,972% (371,701)* 323,800
Profit for the year REEFE - - - - - - - 52,602 52,602
Exchange differences on translation 7 B#A & BN ETEH)
of foreign operations ERZED - - 1,667 - - - - - 1,667
Total comprehensive income FEERENALE
forthe year - - 1,667 - - - - 52,602 54,269
At31 December 2023 R2023%12A318 94,630 544,223* (4,666)* 55,902* (3,871)% (2,022)% 12,972% (319,099)% 378,069
e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB283,439,000 (2022:  * W ERHERE BEAATERARANNEGES EibiE

RMB229,170,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

*%

investment properties carried at fair value.

—= — =

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

— =

FEH

The asset revaluation reserve arose from change in use from owner-occupied properties to

*%

5 A R #5 283,439,000 7T (2022 FF : A R ¥ 229,170,000
JT) °

AESHHEBEEHRNBEIORAVNEEERERER
ARBEINRZEEMEMELE °



Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Year ended 31 December 2023 E;Z=2023%12 A31 B IHFE

s of the parent

et

Exchange Statutory Asset
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus Merger Other  revaluation  Accumulated Total

t:apita\ reserve Serv reserve reserve reserve reserve losses EQUW

BA  EXREE Bfs AR At ™ :
RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 ' RMB000
ARETTL Bfr ARETRT A AREFTL

ote 27)

At 1 January 2022 R202F1A1H 94630 544,223* (7,380)* 55902* (3871)* (2022 6217% (357455)* 330,244
Loss for the year ~EEER - = - - - - - (14,246) (14,46)
Changes in fair value of investment AL B AEM2E

properties at fairvalue though M2 R EMEAAE

other comprehensive income,  E&) - MBRFIE

net of tax - - - - - - 6,755 - 6,755
Exchange differences on translation 7 Bj#2 & /BN E KK
of foreign operations ERER = - 1,047 - - - - - 1,047

Total comprehensive income/(loss) AFEZEMA/
for the year (BB &g - - 1,047 - - - 6755 (14,246) (6:444)

At 31 December 2022 RanE1A3A 94,630 544,223* (6333) 55,902 (3871) (20221 12972* (371,701)* 323,800
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023%12 A31 B IHFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES CEEHRERE

Notes

B &

2023
2023 &

RMB’000
AR®T

2022

2022 5
RMB'000
ARBFIT

Profit/(Loss) before tax BrFEATAE,(E58) 58,093 (10,500)
Adjustments for: TS SBEEL AR :
Finance costs B AR 7 3,280 472
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5 (852) (329)
Depreciation of property, M BERZETE
plant and equipment 13 8,639 9,330
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 15 3,066 3,578
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hihmp & E#E 17 2,006 2,001
Changes in fair value of investment REMEZ ARBEEY
properties 14 1,229 348
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BB K& #E RS
equipment 6 (864) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A R e (61) =
Write-down of inventories to MO TF &&= n] B 3% E
net realisable value 6 2,986 3,375
Impairment loss of trade and B 5 & E b fE U SR IE
other receivables EEEE 19 279 655
Impairment loss of other intangible assets HimEEERERESR 17 - 1,723
78,177 10,653
Increase in inventories FE &M (34,183) (17,427)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits, BEEREFER  BAKE - &S
prepayments, deposits and other receivables [z H b i W R IE (3 40), R 4> (186) 2,844
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZMREIR SR () 1,150 (1,350)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e W SR IE L AN (4,387) (2,220
Decrease in trade payables B 5 e sRIE R 10,820 5,469
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HENZBRESER
accruals OB /4 (4,282) 9,946
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEHREREFH 47,109 7,915
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZTHRERE
Payments to acquire property, WY - BRE K& ERRIE
plant and equipment (2,345) (3,864)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWME - BERZEMERIEA
plant and equipment 1,971 67
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary B — R B AR S RIEFE (30) =
Interest received B A E 853 330
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities % & & EFT1S,/ (FrFH) B &
mEERR 449 (3/467)
V4
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2023 E;Z=2023%12 A31 B IHFE

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 5

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®TR  ARETI

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETBHERESRE

Interest paid EAFE 28 (3,280) (472)
Principal portion of lease payments HENREE IS 28 (1,218) (3,606)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEESMAR SN2 TR (4,498) (4,078)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRkRSESEWEMNFEER

CASH EQUIVALENTS 43,060 370
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#13R & N IR & S B Y 73,391 72,057
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ [EREEHFE - JF5 1,106 964
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERRERASEEY

AT END OF YEAR 117,557 73,391
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReERASEEYWERIN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTH B 21 104,381 56,112
Non-pledged time deposits with original IR REIH R A =B A AR

maturity of less than three months B 45 10 E B TR K

when acquired 21 13,176 17,279
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReREXMIERE K

in the statement of cash flows ReFEEY 117,557 73,391
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a joint stock limited liability company established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The address of its registered
office is 4/F, 3 Building, 3 Qingma Road, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu

Province, the PRC.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nutritional supplements and health food products in the PRC, Australia

and New Zealand.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2023 are as follows:

HRPEEMMBEERAA

ArRFEeR (ER)ERAF

Australia Cobayer Health Food Co

Pty Ltd.

LEERREEEARAT

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

Place of incorporation
or establishment and
place of operation/
date of incorporation
or establishment/

type of legal entity

A 11 B S 2K AR 3L 3t B R
R MR
BRI BHEAEE

The PRC

17 June 2003

Limited liability company
Gl

2003F 6 A 17H
BRAT

The PRC

6 May 2021

Limited liability company
i

2021 5H6RH
BRAR

Australia

2 March 2009

Limited liability company
BAF R

20093 A2H
BRAR

The PRC

21 October 2014
Limited liability company
+

2014104218
BRAT

—E=FFRHR

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

EHERE
HEMER

RMB50,000,000

A K% 50,000,000 7C

RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T

AUD2,000

200032 7T

RMB120,000,000

AR ¥ 120,000,000 7T

RAREEEHR
ARRTIRAEARKME ([HE) K
THBRBERAT - MM ERILI R
RETHREERMEEESFRKIR
i 28

AEBETEETE  RAMNE AR
REHERHELBRERBAL LRE

Paym|
Roon °

EBEMBARZESR
R2023FE 12 A3 B ARG TEWE A
Al ZFEIBWE ¢

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR E S

Direct

PA=R

Principal

Indirect  activities

BE MiE FEXK

100% - Manufacture, processing and
sale of health food products;
industrial property leasing

HE - MITREERRE
R TENEEE

100% - Retailing of health food

products

TERRRM

100% - Trading of food products

EmES

100% - Investment holding

REZR



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Good Health Products Limited
("GHP")

Good Health Products Limited
("GHP")

Living Nature Natural Products
Limited (“LN")

Living Nature Natural Products
Limited ('LN")

Place of incorporation
or establishment and

place of operation/ Fully paid
date of incorporation share capital/
or establishment/ registered
type of legal entity capital
1 AR 32 35 AR 3 3tk B R

B EMRLR BHRRE
R B,/ EANER EEA
New Zealand NZD2,200,002
22 December 1987

Limited liability company

g 2,200002 A FEEH T
198712422 B

BRRA

New Zealand NZD14,784,444
1987

Limited liability company

g 14,784,444 PR 7T
1987 &

BRARA

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"), and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

N\
144

1.

RAFAREEEFR (&)

FEMBLARZESN (B])

Percentage of

equity attributable

2.1

to the Company
AR RS
2B

Direct

Principal

Indirect  activities

HE

B EXEK

- 100%  Manufacture, processing and

sale of health food products

HE NIRHERERR

100% - Manufacture, and sale of

cosmetics and skincare

products
HERSHE A REE &

mREE
ZEMBRRIDRBEBFEEAMAE
(BEREHAAE]) RONBBHBER
SHEA ((BBMBHREEA]) (B
BEEAMBREEN  FASER
(BREEA]) RBE) REERQF
FEOIRERERS - ZFHBHRERTIIR
BSLRAEGImE - ERAREED
REMERI - ZEMBHRERAARE
25 MERFERBERN AERED
HWBERBOONTA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 RBE%E (F)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

BRAABEBRHARAT —Bo=FEH

EHtEE
BAVBBRBEANR T REHBAF
(A IAER]) REE2023F12A8
INALEFEZHMEREK - HBRARTIA
AREEERHETHNER (BIEFEE
MEE) EASESBLEWEES
MEBRBEESATLER - BH4E
BRI E NN EZERR (B
RAERENE T ALE B AT REIRE S
FRRDEEHRIRE S ) B - BB AT HIHE

R—RER NI FES BREETKIE
BEZIETE - EARREANWIRE TS
RERSALEN A RAE - RIFHER
BHREUERRETNENE  AEES
ZRAEMEBEENREN 81

@ HERRETHNEMBRERBEEZ
BH & R % BE

b) WEMBERLHFMESHED &
© AEENEEERBEREE-

P /B8 X B B 5 Rk TY R B AN R B) — B
BEMR ST HRRER -MBAREE
ME AN ARBESHZEWNE QA
MG 2B WIERAKRERLEH
2 il 2 B

BaMEMEmBANSEAKED R
BRASESRRNES A MIFZRE
@ BEREBI R ERERS A BAE
e MTESBARFMNEERRARE
B WA FAXRERNEERE AT
ZEARZBRNREREANGARE
By AR B 3
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

2.1

2.2

N\
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related
assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling interest and
the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Amendments to HKAS 12

Transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

2.1

2.2

R E X ()

AP E%E (M)

478 BB RIERBR £ XAt = HR 5
AERH—EARSAELRE(L A%HE
BT EARTRNRRED - L&
REBHRNIE D AR RS
PABR AR 22 55 A o

el 75 52 B 2K £ TP /B 2 A RO s 4 - R
RIFEZRNREE (BEBE)  B8F -
EAAIIEAE AR i 2 I D 3 R B Rt 6+ T
RATRBEMIREN R ERBERT
TR ELENBSHLELM - EAER
Hit 2 EKRAANRERE AN EE R D
B BERERERENE(WEA) -
AEEEAEEERNENBEEERARE
P ESRE E AR o

BRREBRKESE

AEBAAFERBHRRERRMBAT
el MRERT BBV BREER -

BB HHRE
R E17RIEFT A

BB GETERIE 5%
KBS W ks e
BB A5 257
1BE] A

BB GEERIFE 85
BETA

BB GEER|

=N

BT R K

EEIRCTI

HE—XGEL

F12REFT A HEERERE
R [ A9 AL
B
BRG] BI b2k =
F12REFTA — XM=
HAER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 2 to the financial statements. The
amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the
Group's approach and policy align with the amendments, the
amendments had no impact on the Group's financial statements.

TR ZFEFER

22 S BRESHRKESE (B)

&
E

—

a)

RAEBENF ] REETERY
ZRIMMEERZEIIRMT

ERGHEUNE 1 RETAEZRE
BEBEASABRER Mk
TEEHBR - WERBERYK
BRAEMEN —HEE > &5
BREMAINGERHEXER
A RERNEZEAEREZ
FMBHRERELHORTE » A%
B ERREHNBER -BEMNK
HBELRNBEBRE R 2RIETAME
th A B E K L2 H B B ] 6 &
ZUMSERAN ST BRIER
IR B8 5l - N B R R 55
BERME2RBEERGARRE
o ZFEITHAKE 2 K&K
RPEMER 28 ERHZE
SN EEE

ER G EAESRIETAEEE
AE RS RS RRES 2 H
MR - 5T A E R BB
BRAIAGFEAETHEMNHEE
TR ST NEATEREINW
£ At &5 R AE S E &5
et - AR ANEE 2 77 8 RBK
HZEBI % WAFETY
AEEZHBERRIBELE -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

N\
148

(@]

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope of
the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group has
determined the temporary differences arising from right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately, which have been reflected in
the reconciliation disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.
However, they did not have any material impact on the overall
deferred tax balances presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under HKAS 12.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income
taxes separately in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is
effective and the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods
in which the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but
not yet in effect. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall within the scope of
the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did not have any
impact to the Group.

22 SRS RKESEE)

(0

EREGHEUNE 2REIALE
—RBELNEEREBEHBD
BERARFEBETEAE2
S5 R X1 RE R IS - 5 H
THERARELERSERB LA
HRERZENRS  fINEE
REERT A BEAMNZ
ERXHGELNERZRBEREL
BIREE (A e 2B B BRI
w i) RREERIBRE

RERZFEE AEEED
NETEREEEREEREE
ERNEREEHE YRPBREK
B 5 25 R RO SRR AP AR » 2R
EREEEEHREERTEEL
SRFERIE 125748 T B0 B IR
At e M HERRARF 252
ERECHALAKRLETMEKXR

=2 25
=

EB ST EBE 12515 5] A B B
FHIE — T = RE AR A
TERCEGIERRABAMGH
F_YRTBEEANELEREN
T SR ER Y §E 2 o ) 14 B B B A o
ZEBRI NI AT ETRNE
BERT UEDBBERROER
EENM TRERIE M
SHzZARKD  BFEHED 5
EE SN RENEMESE =
STHEMEHREEMAEEE U
MBEEEELAREBAMAEL R
HEEMARENEAARSIHE =
THEAEHREKRNE MRS E G
ATAE c R AEEIWKREASE
YR RERNEE B ZE
BT AEE T ETAIRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. The Group
intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current (the 2020 Amendments’)'*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
‘2022 Amendments’)"*

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements’
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
: No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

MRPEBERNARAR —T-=FF%

23 ERMERSRERZERBYE

WEER

REBMI BN EHHRRAEADE
B R A2 A TR 5T BB Bt R 1R
A BTN AEEE
FER %S S5 AT BB B R s A (i

ERMBMERN REFHEHZE
FIORRBRGE AFASELEZ
BI85 EFTA IR EE L &

RS-
BB B RELED  EAHEELY
FI6RIETA HEARE
EA gt £ BESBIERE
FIRETR K IETE
([2020F #5657 ))
BA gt £ HizERZ s
FIRBITR el )b

(12022 1657 )
EReHENE TR HEBRELH
BB SRR
FIRETR
BA gt £ = B
FAHIERIA

J 202451 A1 Bz &R 2 FE AR EN

2 20251 A1 B a2 4 FA 2 FEHIR £ K

2 AR SR B - BE TRMA

g AR2020FE BT R202F ] EARE
ESRABHRERER — EANHBEIZESLK
EEFKCEHENZ S EERER] - AE
EEME AR &R TE
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or
loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed
by the HKICPA. However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1
January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 CHEMBERKRENR 2T BT

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, including what is meant by a right to defer
settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the end of the
reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. The
amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled in its own equity
instruments, and that only if a conversion option in a convertible liability
is itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the terms of a
liability not impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period. The amendments shall be applied
retrospectively with early application permitted. An entity that applies
the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of such
arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments are
intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the
effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash
flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The amendments provide certain transition
reliefs regarding comparative information, quantitative information as at
the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim disclosures.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether a
currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it shall estimate
a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when exchangeability is
lacking. The amendments require disclosures of information that enable
users of financial statements to understand the impact of a currency not
being exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted. When applying the
amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or to the cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in a
separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial
application. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXSTHEME (E)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit
if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXSTHEME (F)

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an
asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33%-49%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Licence

The licence acquired as part of a business combination is valued at fair
value based on the relief from the royalty method. The licence with
indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of business combinations were
valued at fair value based on the multi-period excess earnings method.
Customer relationships are assessed as having finite useful lives and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Trademarks

The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations are valued at
fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Trademarks with
finite useful lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful life of 10 years. Trademarks with indefinite useful lives
are tested for impairment annually.

Distribution network

Distribution network acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
useful life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and machinery 20 years
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event

or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase

the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value

assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and
the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXSTHEME (F)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXSTHEME (F)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

Sale of nutritional supplements and packaged health food
products

Revenue from the sale of nutritional supplements and packaged health
food products is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
nutritional supplements and packaged health food products.

Some contracts provide customers with rights of return and volume
rebates, giving rise to variable consideration.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

N\
174

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the expected value method is
used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a
customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more
than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven
by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Otherincome

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e,, transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of
the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
for any revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional
decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (@and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain fixed percentages of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees of the Group's
subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group'’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

No contribution have been forfeited during the year ended 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the MPF Scheme in
future years (2022: nil).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EASHBERBE (E)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 24 EXSTHEME (E)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are currencies other than Renminbi. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

S ()
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Mﬁ?‘i#i‘?ﬁ%ﬁ1iﬁ%%ﬂ*ﬁﬁw$ﬁf'§§
E AXIBARNER BIARS
Hﬁﬁﬁ’il%ﬂ*ﬁﬁwaiﬂﬁﬁh?t{#
EWEENIE MET:’TE’JEIHH i FE5E
SNHWBRZEFRE  AIAEESEE
BERANRENT ‘XH&ZHXE’] XS B -

ETHIMBRBAIRELEEEUAARE
N BB RINEE B - RSB
ZEERNEERABRNBEHRE
RMEXBESARE  HiBmAZHE
RHBHNATEXRRENERRES
ARE -

PREAMES ZBR A2 m KA RE
7 I RET B E L IKEN M - IR
BEELNZERI RNEEBIER
B BZEEEIEHBEOEER
TERBRRAMER -

O Wi 8 Vg S/ B 765 Th 2 A O (E T P 8 DA B
RKBMEFNEE M BERAENT
AR ERBESBIETNEERA
ERE  WiZPmERKRE

HEaREeREXRMS - BINGERF
MRS RERR S RE AN EREX
BRER/ARE - BINHE R FIREESF
EEANKTE MR e IEFE N M
ETHEZRESARE -

REANEENTBHRREREEEIED
FEMEHREE HAXY BENAEGES
BANKIBER I E R AR EHERNH
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BEAZAESERNAREHITZEN
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3.

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial and industry property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

In addition, the renewal options for leases of plant and machinery with

longer non-cancellable periods (i.e., 10 to 15 years) are not included as
part of the lease term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised.
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3.

N\
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The net carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2023 was
RMB32,981,000 (2022: RMB32,374,000). Further details are given in note
16.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives. Estimating the recoverable amount requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The net carrying
amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at 31 December
2023 was RMB135,000 (2022: RMB132,000). Further details are given in
note 17.

3.

EESTHHE RMEF (B)

EEtFRERE
TXHEENEERR S RNHE R
SAAEERZM AR REMEZRR -
ETREFESHAN T MBRFEREAN
BERABENRAEFLERHENE
RER -

BERE
AEERIEBTETCHERS AR
B -BTRAGTEIEBENRSE
EEMREREE AT EAEER -
ERAREBAMGTREEEASBMMES
MIEHBEER SRS MAEEBAED
BRI E - U EZEHRERENHE -
REBMR03F12ANBZEER®T
HE A AR ¥32981,0007T (20224 A
R #323740007T) © # — F B E AW
16 °

BEEERCEAFHNEFLEERE

AEEELBFHE-—ANEEERER
FHNEFEERGERE  EZEK5
BEEEREAFHNEFLEENATIRE
SRIEHGET - Bt AT RE 2R EK
REBGHFEBAEEERBFERASHA
BREERTRZBARRRESRE
WENMA BN EUFEZER SR
EMIRME - -R2023F 128318 AFE
REAFHNEFLEENERERFEAA
R #135,0007T (20224F = A K # 132,000
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3.

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. Management
reassesses these estimates at each reporting date. At 31 December 2023,
the net carrying value of inventories was approximately RMB108,861,000
(2022: RMB75,272,000). Further details are contained in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses and deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different. The net carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses and deductible temporary
differences at 31 December 2023 was RMB12,562,000 (2022:
RMB12,125,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses arising in
Mainland China at 31 December 2023 was RMB143,869,000 (2022:
RMB188,805,000). Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker that are
used to make strategic decisions. For management purposes, the
Group operates in one business unit based on its products and
has one reportable segment which is the manufacture and sale of
nutritional supplements and the sale of packaged health food
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Australia
and New Zealand.

TR ZFEFER

3.

EESTH A RMA ()

AT TRERZ (&)
FEUEEFEE
HFERMAIERRENRE BEFBIED
ER R EER M HER S - 25
EEHR IR IR B 00 & & M FE U E S
RBAEERREL - ATaEE MR E B i
BEAEH - EHERSREBHEH
LB - RN2023F 12318 © 7%
EMREFEAN AR 108861,0007T
(2022FF : AR¥752720007T) ° #E—#
FEIEEN I TSR ERMIFE 18 ©

EEREEE

fis P] BE 75 FE AR B FI B m] A AR S % B 48
MAMF e R ISR ARG
EERAIIR RN EERERECHREE
E-BEEABRBRRERTFEHX
B BRF P R BURE DA R R PR B 7S 5T B SR R
HERHE - AEE I ERNELERIE
BEcH BERERERITEEMT
B e 202312 A31 8 » EERHIEE
BREAMKENEEEECELERESE
EREREFESAR12562000 (2022
£ AR®12,1250007C) ° P2023 412
B318 R ERME L REERTH
TE 5 1B & 58 A A R 143,869,000 7T (2022
F 1 ARM1888050007T) ° i —FHEE
BRI SRR M 25 ©

rESHER

(@) "HED I
AEBBREHEBLERRASE
ZHARERERARNREET
EgeEnB-BhEEMS  AF
BIRBEHEMCEE —EEEN -
BE—ERIE2EFHD I BIEFE
ARZEAE ([HRE]) - BKXFE
MAMHEREREEEERERM
FHEAMEETERRRERR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HIHEHR

N\
182

Most of the group companies are domiciled in the PRC and New
Zealand and the majority of the non-current assets are located in
Mainland China and New Zealand. The Group’s revenue from
external customers is primarily derived in Mainland China and
New Zealand.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major
markets:

REEBE T KEE D 2 6 H FrE i
RTBERAEEAKRBD RS
BEHMNBBEAERMAAR -
AEERBIIBEFLH RS ER
EHRBEARERAERESE

ATRASERAETEMHHK

mOM

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Chinese Mainland R B K fE 432,391 172,670

New Zealand 4 7 113,712 85,892

Australia YK Kl g8 4,701 3,610

Vietnam g 4,965 4839

Other countries H iR 8,190 7,840

Total revenue U s 4858 563,959 274,851
() Non-current assets () FERBEE

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBET T

Chinese Mainland Sl N7 143,109 150,933

New Zealand AR 40,478 45,300

Australia SRR F| 28 775 1357

Total non-current assets IERBEELREE 184,362 198,090

(d)

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill and deferred tax
assets.

Information about a major customer
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer

amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year
(2022: Nil).

(d)

AERBEECERTIERE
EMBREAME RBEGEE REER
RHEE °

ERE—BXEEFMNER
AFERABERE —IIFELR
5 B9 U355 2 5 B IR 25 A9 109% 3%
VA F (20224 = 48) o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts rendered during the year.

(@) Ananalysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

5. Wz Rt AREF
WHERAFERNEEERENBES
R FTIRGLE 5 0 4 O B SR

(a) Uz - HAUA R AT & D 7 40
T

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Type of goods or services & msh iR 7% 5 B

Sale of goods HEEm 563,959 274,851
Total revenue from contracts with customers R B & FE & 42 Wi 4858 563,959 274,851
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 225 T SR B

Goods transferred at a point in time L EE DR R R 563,959 274,851
Total revenue from contracts with customers R B B F & &) 2 Wzt 258 563,959 274,851

(b) Performance obligation

Information about the Group’s main performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and terms of credit are generally due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery, except for new customers and distributors in Mainland
China, where payment in advance is normally required. Some
contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume
rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to
constraint.

ARMAEBASRNBRRR —T-_=FFR

(b) BHEE
ERAEBTIEBRBHNEINER
BEa R

HEER

BHEETRRNERKET M
FEEH—MRRNEINENVKRA
EIE EBRAPBEAKENTRRP R
DTSN MEBEATELMN
ETAHATPRETRENE
=[5 1 89 #E F) 1 22 A 2R Hil /9 A]
BRE -
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS S.
(CONTINUED)

(b) Performance obligation (Continued)

Sale of goods (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

Revenue recognised that was included

in contract liabilities at the beginning B R
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEEm

Wi - Hib A RBF (&)

(b)

RBERTFAGHAERL

BHEE (&)

HEEm (A)
TRIER AR E MR ARS
e WaRERaBEHRENX
BREEMERNCERRES
L

2023
2023 &

2022
2022
RMB'000
ARBFIT

RMB’000
ARBTT

13,923 4,689

2023 2022
2023 2022 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
Other income and gains B A R W&
Government grants* BT B & * 6 1,489 434
Rental income HEBA 15 4,463 4,768
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  HEK
plant and equipment BLrE 6 864 =
Bank interest income RITHEUA 6 852 329
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHMB AR 6 61 -
Foreign exchange differences, net (& ¥ =58 %5 6 - 2,324
Others EHofth, 745 55
Total other income and gains B R W 4258 8,474 7,910
@ Various government grants have been received for the Group’s contribution * ARASEHEM T EEEROER - EWE

to the development of the local economy. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants.

N\
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BEREMGHDE - METHEZSHDEHR
RO RHBEER -
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6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR Bt A 7 H
7% S B B B AT R O A $00R (RHA) A
TEEREL

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

Cost of inventories sold EEFEHKAR

Depreciation of property, W - BERERETE
plant and equipment*

Depreciation of right-of-use assets* ERAREEETE

Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEBEH=

measurement of lease liabilities R E KA
Amortisation of intangible assets** m A R
Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI 57 B
Research and development expenses  fiff 2% ] &%
Changes in fair value of investment BEMEZ AR EE
properties
Employment benefit expense B THEAMAZ
(excluding directors’, supervisors' (TBfEESE EER
and chief executive's remuneration)*: TR AREL O FTEN ) * -
Wages and salaries TEMF €
Pension scheme contributions RIRBEHEI K
(defined contribution scheme)*** (EFEHLRGT &) ==
Other benefits H 43 F
Foreign exchange differences, net VE W ZFHFEE
Impairment loss of other intangible Hmhmp&E
assets*rx (B B8 xex
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 rEWGRIE R E
Write-down of inventories to net MWREEZE
realisable value***** A B3R R oo
Bank interest income H|ITHEHA
Government grants SRk
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ARk
Gain on disposal of items of property,  HEWE - HE K
plant and equipment HEIE B s

AR®T ARETT

181,316 111,798
13 8,639 9,330
15(a) 3,066 3,578
15(c) 917 382
17 2,006 2,001
2,000 2,000

867 836

14 1,229 348
74,810 57,421

2,617 2,397

6,360 5,979

5 2,830 (2,324)
17 - 1,723
19 279 655
2,986 3,058

5 (852) (329)

5 (1,489) (434)
5 (61) =

5 (864) =

*%

FRHH

KRHAKR

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use
assets and employment benefit expense for the year is included in “Cost of
inventories sold”, “Selling and distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Selling and
distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the employer
to reduce the existing level of contributions.

The impairment of other intangible assets is included in “Other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value for the year is included in “Cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

ARMAEBASRNBRRR —T-_=FFR

FAME BERREBIE EREEER
EUREBRARAX G AGARE REM
2EHERRFOEEFERA] - [HER
R R [TTHRAS]

= FRAETAEHEA A AGAREREME
EREER P [ E R HEFAX ] RI1TER
-

o RSB (ERRET) WES R RARRER
BHEFKFE -

e B BB EREAGSERELEME
ERERTOEMRAS] -

w0 HORTF HE A RRFEN AR AR
Rt 2 B R D 0 A -
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

B AN
BARADFIT

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hf AR®T T ARBTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAERE 15(b) 3,280 472
3,280 472
8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EE EERTHAZRTM

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BB LRI FE QB GHIFE383(1)
@ O QROBMARLR (HEES
M BER) ROIF 2 RENES KT
BARE M) F AT

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T

Fees ik 240 240
Other emoluments: H A Er B

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYER 1,888 1,785

Performance related bonuses FENRR RS 4,057 4,177

Pension scheme contributions BIRSFTEIHE R 111 142

6,056 6,104

6,296 6,344
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

8. EEX -ESRTHAHGM

(#&)
(a) BIAFHITES

RAFERABLIFATEESN

year were as follows: WS
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBT T
Mr. Zhang Jitong (note i) SRAESY ST A& (B aED) - 5
Ms. Cai Tianchen 120 120
Mr. Wang Wei 60 60
Mr. Yu Bo (note ii) RS A (BT in) 60 55
240 240

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2022: Nil).

(b) Executive directors and supervisors

RAREE SEABIIFNTE
EXHMEME A HEN (20225 - ) -

(b) BTEERES

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2 B&X Bk
RENEF HEEd ST EIR R 0 P
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETRE AR%®TR AR¥Tn AR¥Tx
2023 2023 F
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gui Ping Hu EERLE 420 650 - 1,070
Ms. Zhang Yuan RIRZ T 456 2,221 23 2,700
Ms. Zhu Feifei ARMLL 257 219 20 496
1,133 3,090 43 4,266
Supervisors EZ
Ms. Yu Min R 255 423 13 691
Ms. Lu Jiachun BEfE 2T 161 71 19 251
Ms. Chen Xiu Az 139 142 18 299
Ms. Wang Ping ES 3G 199 332 18 549
754 968 68 1,790
V4
MRAEBAEKRNDERAR —ZE_=FFR ]87
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8.

N
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EXE EERTHAZRTM
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (Continued) (b) BTEERES (&)

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration

ge 2H Y BRE
e REWEN  S\E%s  SEfE HMaes
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB(000 RMB000
ARETE ARBTT ARETE ARETT ARET:

2022 20025
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gui Ping Hu HEEHLE - 449 650 35 1,134
Ms. Zhang Yuan TR L - 324 2,520 2 2,865
Ms. Zhu Feffei KRR L+ - 250 216 17 483
- 1,023 3,386 73 4482
Supervisors =
Ms. Yu Min RELL - 266 424 2 710
Ms. Lu Jiachun etz + - 167 72 17 256
Ms. Chen Xiu BHTT - 142 105 16 263
Ms. Wang Ping FEat = 187 190 16 393
= 762 791 69 1622
Note: BEE -
0) Resigned as independent non-executive director on 25 January 2022. 0) 202261 A2 HBHEB L IEAITE
$ °
(ii) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 26 January 2022. (ii) 202241 A 26 HIEZREABILIEH
TES-
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief NAEE HEESRTHAR
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the N0 T[] B A G (T A B A 2o Bk o
year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
and one supervisor (2022: two directors and one supervisor), details of

whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the

remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid

employees who are neither directors nor supervisors of the Company are

as follows:

TEESHFMET
REAFEREESTWNELIREMRAE
ER—FEEQIRNF MBEER—
HER)  HEMFBEH N AT TS
RARFEE  KARBTWA (20224F
MZ)IEEREEN TR FHE TH
FNFEIBIT

2023 2022
2023 2022 %

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYETF 6,473 3,876
Performance related bonuses EREE RS 1,126 1,057
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTEIHE K 32 29

7,631 4962

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

HINEBIA TEEMNIFES MIFTTHRAHK
EaHME THABLNT :

Number of employees

Nil to HKD1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
HKD4,000,001 to HKD6,000,000
HKD6,000,001 to HKD9,000,000

Z % 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000 /%8 7T
2,500,001 78 7T 2 3,000,000 7 7T
4,000,001 7% JT 2 6,000,000 7% 7T
6,000,001 7 7T 2 9,000,000 78 7T

ETIZH
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
1 —
- 1
1 1

ARMAEBASRNBRAR —FT—

= FFR
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FRifeHi
(@ The amounts of income tax expense in the consolidated @ RiecEzkEME2EKEERT

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represent:

MFEHAX S8R

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBEFT

Current BVER
— New Zealand — 4P 6,410 7
6,410 7
Deferred EAE (919) 3,739
Total tax expense for the year NEEHIBR 258 5,491 3,746

The income tax of the Company and its subsidiaries established in
the PRC are subject to the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable
profits as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations of the PRC. New Zealand Income tax is
calculated at 28% of the assessable profits of the subsidiaries
operating in New Zealand. Australia Income tax is calculated at
30% of the assessable profits of the subsidiary operating in
Australia.

ARARIRERFRKZANE A
BB TS B B HR AR 15 P B AR I AT
SRR A KR OIE E W RE R F
E 25% BOE TE TR R BN - PR
BRIZNATRHEZENHB A A
FERTFE R 28% 5T & B AFITE
FT 15 B 1% 7008 K FI) 25 & 38 1Y [ /28
DA ERTAERY30% 5T H o
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FR&% (&)
(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss b)) BARRARERBHMERR M
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the EREEEMNEEBERTEER
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the REBRTEBRNBIERS (EHR)
tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation M ERMERGTENHIER
of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates are as follows: SR MEERERERATERR

ERHENHE/RAT

2023 2023 F
Chinese Mainland New Zealand Australia Total
REXKE i ] BARE @t
RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000
ARETT % AR¥TR % AR®TR % ARETR
Profit before tax BB R 38,252 18,019 1,822 58,003
Taxat the statutory tax rates R H B HERTHIE 9,563 250 5,046 280 547 300 15,156 26.1

Additional deductible HrasmE @b e
alowance forresearchand %7148

development expenses - - (306) (1.7) - - (306) (0.5)
Expensesnotdeductible  ARHIHEZ

for tax 720 1.9 575 3.2 - - 1,295 2.2
Taxlossesand temporary BB BRKER

differences not recognised  EF EE 1,621 42 176 1.0 - - 1,797 3.1
Tax losses utiised from EHARERAEE

prior years WRIBEE (11,904) (31.1) - - (547) (30.0)  (12,451) (214)

Tax credit at the Group's BASBERREHE
effective rate MIEH S - - 5,491 305 - - 5,491 95
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

10. FRrEH (&)

(b)  (Continued) b) (&)
2022 20224
Chinese Mainland New Zealand Australia
PEAE a7k BARIE
RMB'000 % RMB000 RMB000 % RMB000
ARETT % ARETRT b AEBTTT % ARETT
(Loss)/profit before tax Bitan (B8),/FI8 (17877) 8572 (1,199) (10,500)
Taxat the statutory tax rates %7€ 5 Kt BRI HA (4:468) 250 2400 280 (359) 300 (2427) 251
Additional deductible MR 2 o
alowanceforresearchand £ 758
development expenses (177) 10 - - - - (177) 17
Expensesnotdeductible ~ AEHHEX
for tax 57 (03) 553 65 - - 610 (58)
Taxlossesand temporary  FIBBERAER
differences not recognised ~ EHEH 4,79 (268) 793 92 359 (300) 5948 (56.7)
Taxosses utilised from EHRAREBAEEN
prior years RIEEE (208) 12 = = = = (208) 20
Tax credit at the Group's BASBERREHE
effective rate HRER % - - 3,746 47 - - 3,746 (357)
11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

N\
195

EESE R ARTHEZ=2023F12A 31
BIEFEEIREMAEARS (2022F :

&) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic profit/(loss) per share amount is based on
the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
946,298,370 (2022: 946,298,370) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The calculation of basic profit/(loss) per share is based on:

BAAEREREEAEMLE
B, (EE)
ERERNBEEDIZRE AR EREESETE
ANBIEARFERNBE (BB RAFED
17 L 1B IR AN #EE - 39 946,298,370 (2022
F : 946,298370) PBRET & ©

HZE2023FER2022F12A31 BILEE -
NEFWEZEBHEDBITLER -

BRERFE (BE) TR TSI
g

2023 2022
2023 F 2022

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Profit/(loss) 8 (E518)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity AREREXRBEFE
holders of the parent used in the basic W AR EREREE A
loss per share calculation FEAEFE, (EE) 52,602 (14,246)
2023 2022
2023 2022 FF
Shares &7y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FAR &R E A FE,(E18)
for the purpose of the basic profit/(loss) FTE R IR N T 1988
per share calculation 946,298,370 946,298,370
V4

ARMAEBASRNBRRR —T-_=FFR



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2023 202312 H31H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BWERRXRE

Leasehold Furniture
improve- Plantand and Motor

Buildings ments machinery fixtures vehicles Total

& BERXE  HERASR  GARKE hE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTZ  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARMTR

31 December 2023 R2023%128318
At 1 January 2023; RABFIA1A:

Cost A 83,541 8,678 13,331 15,850 11,908 133,308

Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (16,756) (7,368) (9,693) (11,983 (7,434) (53,234)

Net carrying amount FHAE 66,785 1310 3,638 3,867 4474 80,074
At 1 January 2023, RNBEIA1A:

net of accumulated depreciation BHRZHE 66,785 1310 3,638 3,867 4,474 80,074
Additions 5 52 686 329 8 365 1,710
Depreciation provided during theyear ~ AEEFHEN & (Hizke)

(notes) (3,284) (1,244) (848) (1,499) (1,764) (8,639)
Disposals RE (867) - 92) (40) (109) (1,108)
Exchange realignment EiHE - 3 45 7 34 89
At31 December 2023, RABE1NANA

net of accumulated depreciation BARZ:HTE 62,686 755 3,072 2,613 3,000 72,126
At31 December 2023; RABENA3NA:

Cost A 80,899 9,388 12317 14,850 12178 129,632

Accumulated depreciation Zithe (18,213) (8,633) (9,245) (12,237) (9,178) (57,506)

Net carrying amount REFE 62,686 755 3,07 2613 3,000 72,126
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

13. ¥ - BEKRRE (&)

Leasehold Furniture
improve- Plantand and Motor
Buildings NENY machinery ATES vehicles
HEXE RE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
T ARETT ARETT
31 December 2022 R2025128318
At1 January 2022 NEIVREE

Cost A 976% 838 12132 15,500 11,08 144918

Accumulated depreciation ZihE (24700 (5,749) (8833) (10039) (6014) (55,339)

Net carrying amount EAFE 729% 2633 3299 5461 5,194 89,583
At January 2022, RunE1R18 "

net of accumulated depreciation BB ZiTE 729% 2633 3299 5461 5194 89563
Additions =yl 1425 m 1117 DI 74) 3839
Transfer to investment properties (note 14) ~ EEER &N (W 14) (4067) - - - = (4067)
Depreciation provided during theyear ~ AEREEHRITE (Hzke)

(note) (3569) (1,603) (799) (1879 (1.480) 9330)
Disposals RE - = (31) - 39) (66)
Exchange realignment EiHAE - 3 52 7 53 115
At31 December 2022, RANE1NANA

net of accumulated depreciation BHRZiE 66,785 1310 3638 3867 4474 80074
At31 December 2022: RANENANAE:

Cost A 83541 8678 13,331 15,850 11908 133308

Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (16756) (7.368) (9693) (11,983) (7434) (53234)

Net carrying amount REFE 66,785 1310 3638 3867 4474 80,074

V4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYXE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T

Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 BREREE 72,954 60,229
Transferred from owner-occupied property BEFERWEMFE13)#EA

(note 13)

— Cost — KA - 4,067

— Revaluation gains — Bt - 9,006
Fair value losses on investment properties REWMEAABEEE (HiEe)

(note 6) (1,229) (348)
Carrying amount at 31 December M®12A31 BREREE 71,725 72,954
The Group's investment properties consist of two commercial property N ES (B /O I A W) 2 B 3R R B K B A R TR
and three industrial properties in Chinese Mainland. The directors of the HAMER=ZBEIXEME K RESE
Company have determined that the investment properties consist of BESEYENOME B LKRBREE
two classes of asset, commercial and industrial, based on the nature, KWEMHEPIERNERTEMBEE °

characteristics and risks of each property.

The investment properties are leased to the third parties under operating WEMERBKEHEHETE =77 -
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the EBEFENE — P ESH RN BREM
financial statements. FE15¢
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYX (&)
Fair value hierarchy NAREER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRAPAEBEENEN AL EF=
the Group's investment properties: EF I

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using
R2023F12A31 AN D AEHERAUTEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBMIEN BATERE EAFUTEE
HE BWAHE BAHE @
(B—F) (B=JE) (B=FE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR AR¥ETR AR%TrR

Recurring fair value measurement for: &R M AR B2 ¢

Commercial property RIS - - 15,464 15,464
Industrial properties TEYE - - 56,261 56,261
Total st - - 71,725 71,725

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

R02F12A31 BHAAEHERAUTESE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RERMIZN  ERUBRE EATATEHE
WIE PN 67 PN 7
(B—E) (FZ[E) C==)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement for: &R M AR B2 ¢

Commercial property ElEEES = = 15,877 15,877
Industrial properties TEME - - 57,077 57,077
Total st - - 72,954 72,954
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FR EF-EBREF-_ECZATEAAE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: HENER TEEBEASBEHE=E
Nil). (2022 % : &) o

V 4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWZ (&)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of DBEAEAARBERFPE=ENRILER
the fair value hierarchy: SHER

Commercial Industrial
property properties

[2REER7E S TEME
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBEFT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 R2022F 1 A1 B REE 2,630 57,599
Transferred from owner-occupied property BXEXERAWEFT13)EA

(note 13)

— Cost — AR 4,067 -

— Revaluation gains — B 9,006 =
Fair value losses on investment properties REMERAEERE 174 (522)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 and MR2022F 12 A31 B K

1 January 2023 20234F 1 A1 HMERMEE 15,877 57,077
Fair value losses on investment properties WEYHERABEEE (413) (816)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 2023 12 A 31 HREREE 15,464 56,261
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Commercial property

[N RES

Industrial properties

TEME

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent would result in a
significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy
rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the fair value of the investment properties is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the market rent and an

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXRTITBRBARE

Valuation techniques

fh{E R

Market rent

(per sg.m. and per month)
mi5HE
(FAGFHK)

Long term vacancy rate
REZEEX

Discount rate

B3 X

Term and reversion

FHRER

Market rent

(per sg.m. and per month)
Mi%HEE
(BRBFAK)

Long term vacancy rate
REIZEE X

Discount rate

BAIR =

Term and reversion

FHRER

opposite change in the long term vacancy rate and the discount rate.

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

TR ZFEFER

14. REWH* (8)
REYEGEMFERHERMT R EEZH
ABEBEHIOT :

Range or weighted average

EEMETIH
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 €
1.23t0 2.95 12310295
AR¥123TE ARE123702
AR#2955t AR®2057T

12.0%-15.0%
4.6%-5.2%
1.15t0 2.03
ARM115TE
ARY2.037T

12.0%

4.5% to0 9.5%

12.0%-15.0%
4.6%-5.2%

12610 2.03
ARBE126LE
AR 2037T

12.0%

4.5% to 9.5%

mBHEAER N ORD) HEBIRED
£

AREAEZENCORD) - RHEE

T RER R BB AR O ) S
BEYE AR EAERD CEM) © —
ME  REMEH AR EOE DS
THES LB S NRD R EHES
FEERMBRENRERMS( -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

15. LEASES 15. #HE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery,
motor vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of plant and
machinery generally have terms between 1 and 20 years, while motor
vehicles generally have lease terms of 1 year. Other equipment generally
has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the

AEBEARAEEA

AEBRAREERZENSHE R
B oAREREMBFEEBEEHES
4 - BARRIEH — R IER FRIA MR E E W
BHES T HHA0F  MBEZS
T ERIER BT EES HEMA
RIE-HEIMEENHABBEER1E20
FoMAEMHBBEET R 1T - EME
HENABREE A 12@ A AR K& #
AR ENEESE - — WM = - BRIER

MERFKIN - NEE A [ AL E LS

leased assets outside the Group except for prepaid land lease payments,

which are further discussed below: ATHEHERSHBEEE  BEE—F
BERCNE
(@) Right-of-use assets: (a FHEEE:
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the FAREEFTAREENEREE
movements during the year are as follows: REFHMT -

Leasehold Plant and
land machinery Total
HE L i 5 % 2R et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT AREF T
As at 1 January 2022 202241 A1H 5,020 8,054 13,074
Modification of contracts EHER = 29,155 29,155
Depreciation charge EMZ 6 (128) (3,450) (3,578)
Exchange realignment R - 1,334 1334
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31 H 4,892 35,093 39,985

As at 31 December 2022 and #2022 F 12 A 31 H

1 January 2023 }2023F1H1H 4,892 35,093 39,985
Depreciation charge ES W 6 (128) (2,938) (3,066)
Exchange realignment PE W S - 509 509
As at 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 4,764 32,664 37,428
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREAA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities: (b) HEEME:
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during FAHEAGENREERZS W
the year are as follows: N
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBT T
Carrying amount as at 1 January R AT ERREE 35,753 8,870
Accretion of interest recognised during FRNE RN ESIE N
the year (note 7) (PfF5E7) 3,280 472
Payments NN (4,498) (4,078)
Modification of contracts B KMEH - 29,155
Exchange realignment ME S8 628 1334
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 831 BWEREE 35,163 35,753
Analysed into: Pakiiv=1
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTT
Current portion mENEE 4,143 4368
Non-current portion ERE D 31,020 31,385
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 31 to HEBENIE S TR BN A5

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

the financial statements.

TR ZFEFER

WARMFE3 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBERABEA E)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as () RIEZERNEEMREHRAENT
follows:

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEBENE (H:E7) 3,280 472
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEENES L (MiEe)
assets (note 6) 3,066 3,578
Expense relating to short-term leasesand BB HHEE R EMHAE
other leases (included in selling and AR X (GFAHE R
distribution expenses and KGH RS AT )
administrative expenses) (note 6) (FffzE6) 917 382
Total amount recognised in profit or loss A B FER A B & 58 7,263 4,43
The Group as a lessor AEBERBEAA
The Group leases its two commercial property and three industrial AEERBEEHELHEBAEMEAR
properties (note 14) under operating lease arrangements. The terms of BYER=ZIBTEW (iE14) - HE
the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and BR—RERKEAPLPINREBE LA TR
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing BERRTMIETEHESFAR - K
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the EEFARERE KA AR 4463000
year was RMB4,463,000 (2022: RMB4,768,000), details of which are JC (20226 : AR#4,7680007T) * ¥ 15
included in note 5 to the financial statements. BB IS MR ES o
At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by M2023F 124318 "EBRARKEH
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with FRBEEBPIT M NI REEEEHE
its tenants are as follows: EWHRBIREER AT -

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Within one year —FR 4,305 4511
After one year but within two years —FEMF 4,130 3,559
After two years but within three years MEE=F 3,686 2,871
After three years but within four years —FEMF 2,824 2,809
After four years but within five years MEERF 2,824 2,824
After five years AFMNE 7,249 10,079
Total 5 25,018 26,653
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023512 H31H
16. GOODWILL 16. BHE

RMB'000

ARBTT

At 1 January 2022

R2022F1HA1H

Cost DN 57,019

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (25,092)

Net carrying amount BRI HE 31,927
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated impairment 7 2022%F 1 81 BRI A » 1k REHRE 31,927
Exchange realignment ME H 447
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F 12 A31H 32,374
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

Cost DN 57,816

Accumulated impairment Z5FTRE (25,442)

Net carrying amount BREFE 32,374
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated impairment 7202341 A1 BRI - 1Bk 2T RE 32,374
Exchange realignment ME M JE 607
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2023 M 202312 A31 BRI A KR FE 32,981
Cost at 31 December 2023: 2023512 A31 BRI

Cost DN 58,901

Accumulated impairment 25FTRE (25,920)

Net carrying amount BREFE 32,981

V4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. & (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to GHP
cash-generating unit (the “CGU") for impairment testing:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not recognise
any impairment loss in relation to the goodwill of the GHP CGU (2022:
nil). The respective carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the GHP
cash-generating unit as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

GHP CGU GHPIR & EA BN

7 Rl (B R =
BREBEHAEBNEENOET
GHPIR e EA B ([REEEEM]) A
TERERI -

HE20BF1N2ANBIEEE  AEEH
WERGHPIRE ©EA B mERREMA
AEETIE (20226 @ &) ° R2023F &
202F 1231 BH R FGHPIR S EA B
VREENAEERERENT

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBEFT

32,981 32,374

The recoverable amount of GHP CGU has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
Cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below.

For the GHP CGU with a significant amount of goodwill, the key
assumptions, long-term growth rates and discount rates used in the
value-in-use calculation for 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

ZGHPIR S EL B MR U D & BB IE
FRANSAEIEBI AN R F BT KA
BAKIENRSREBATENERE
BEET - BAHUINRE RER T
TEFHE REEITHE -

HREE2SEREANGHPE SEL S
fiL * 2023F K 2022F 12 A1 BERAEE
FTEERRANBRERS  REEER
REEREMT -

HEFERE %)
ENE(AMEE D)

Long-term growth rate REjIE R K
Pre-tax discount rate M ATBA IR X

Sales annual growth rate (%)
Gross margin (% of revenue)

2%-10% 2%-8%
67%-69% 58%-62%
2% 2%
23.2% 21.4%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. & (&)

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Discount rates

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant units.

Long-term growth rate
The long-term growth rates used are based on common industry
practice.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of

the cash-generating units, the discount rates and long-term growth rate
are consistent with external information sources.

TR ZFEFER

AERENR (&)
VAT it 8 32 B 1T i 2R (BRI S 0 3R
R E TR R ATRIE SRR ERE

BEEERNER
RREED R THREEMNEXNEEMRKF
RNEESBZERREFEN —FAME
RO FHENE - ARBHNRERA
RIEHOTISERM A AR -

R =
PRABEIR R AMBRHIA Y RREHE
o B0 R E R

REHERR
PAAEMIERETU—RITEFRSE
% o

BERARSELEMMSEE BREXR
RRERENIEZERKRMETHEERSR
SNEBAE BRIR — 2R °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. EtEREEE

Distribution Customer
Trademarks network Licence relationships Total

BE PHBRE Bk EFRH% At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®TR AR®TR ARE®TZR

note (b) note (b) note (a)
Bt (b) B (b) M (a)
31 December 2023 R2023F 128310
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of 202351 B 1 HRIRKA -
accumulated amortisation e S & 4,221 812 44 - 5,077
Amortisation provided during FAFREH (fiste)
the year (note 6) (1,676) (330) - - (2,006)
Exchange realignment ERTIEE 8 3 1 - 12
At 31 December 2023, net of R2023F12A318
accumulated amortisation and MR 2518 85 RORE
impairment 2,553 485 45 - 3,083
At 31 December 2023; R2023F12H318 :
Cost B%N 21,893 3,423 1,080 1,485 27,881
Accumulated amortisation and Bt EERRE
impairment (19,340) (2,938) (1,035) (1,485) (24,798)
Net carrying amount EmFE 2,553 485 45 - 3,083
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. HthBEEE (&)
Licence and
Distribution health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates  relationships Total
Gl DR AR REHE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
note (b) note (b) note (a)
P 2 (b) Fit & (o) Bt 5 @)
31 December 2022 R202%F12A318
Costat 1 January 2022, net of 202281 A1 HERKA -
accumulated amortisation s 2512 7,188 1,132 262 155 8,737
Amortisation provided during FRsHEEH (MsEe)
the year (note 6) (1652) (325) - (24) (2,001)
Impairment during the year (note 6) R {EL (P 7£6) (1369) = (221) (133) (1723)
Exchange realignment s 54 5 3 2 64
At 31 December 2022, net of R2022F 12318
accumulated amortisation and M 2E# 8 LR E
impairment 4221 812 44 - 5077
At 31 December 2022: R02F128318 :
Cost B% 21498 3,360 1,060 1449 27,367
Accumulated amortisation RErEHELRE
and impairment (17.277) (2,548) (1,016) (1,449) (22,290)
Net carrying amount REFE 4221 812 44 - 5077
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) Impairment testing of customer relationships
The LN CGU recognised an impairment loss of RMB133,000 in relation to customer
relationships in the year ended 31 December 2022.

Since the Group has made adequate provision for customer relationships in 2022, no
impairment loss was recognised in relation to customer relationships during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

(b) Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations in 2016 are regarded as
having indefinite useful lives because the products with the trademarks are expected
to generate net cash flows indefinitely. The licence acquired as part of the business
combination in 2016 is regarded as having indefinite useful lives because the licence
term can be renewed annually and is expected to generate net cash flows
indefinitely. The trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are allocated to

the LN CGU for impairment testing.

The net carrying amounts of other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

allocated to the LN cash-generating units are as follows:

17.

H

e

(a)

(b)

BREE (&)

EFBRBENR
BE2NF1N2AJNBILEFE  INRSESE
BNERAARFPFARAENREEBRAR
#£133,000 7T ©

AR AEER 2025 K F AR IRT R B
B HE20B3F1N2ANBLEFEFELEFE
EPRARNBERRERSE -

HitbBRE A FHNBEEENRERR
2016 F1E RIS A OF — 28 0 BT AR EE B9 B R 18
EREGERNERFY ARERHRER
BRI EERAMELFRDIT - 2016 F(ER
EBAG—HoMRBHFTENRRE
BEBAEREY AR EASEEN
NG ERAMEEFRER - AHER
ERAFHNEERFAENIDETINES
BB AMERERI

DPETINRSELAFMMNEMCABERE
RERNETEENRIZEDNT

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Trademarks g 90 88
Licence BT Al & 45 44
135 132

The values of the trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are assessed
annually by using the relief from the royalty method calculated based on a five-year
cash flow projection approved by senior management. The fair values of the
trademarks and the licence were equal to the future royalty savings resulting from

ownership of the assets.
The Group recognised an impairment loss of RMB1,590,000 in relation to the

trademarks and licence of the LN CGU in the year ended 31 December 2022 (2023:
Nil).

\
208

EEEREAFHNARERFITESFR
AR FHEERBENITTETHE » f5E
DENEEREEERHENDIEFRERE
TR - ERFARENAREENEREE
EEN R RETREREA -

REE202F 128318 LEFEE  AEERE
REAINESCELEBNEERFAIELRN
BT AR ¥ 1,590,000 7T (2023 4F © ##) o
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B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

18. INVENTORIES

18. FE

2023 2022

2023 2022 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R AREF T

Raw materials R A48 29,641 29,407
Work in progress TE & 229 412
Finished goods BUAK 78,461 45179
Goods merchandise KB 530 274
Total FEby 108,861 75,272

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. E5 BWFIH

2023 2022

2023 20225

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBT T

Trade receivables Z 5 IR 35,505 30,858
Impairment BB (2,994) (2,674)
Net carrying amount FREVHE 32,511 28,184

In general, the entities in the Group have no credit period granted to the
retail customers, and invoices would be due once they have been issued.
The credit period offered by the Group to its distributors is generally 30
to 90 days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

ARMAEBASRNBRRR —T-_=FFR

mEMS ARENEEBTRTZER
FEEH —KHEABRANASIN - K
SERETHOHEENEEN —RAB30X
ENXR-FREEZETH R ANE
fho ERNEXMARAKRENE Z R
REERZZNREFPAR  AREHRE
BEXEEETRER AEELEREE
2 FEMGRIR B SR IS A (R 3 an S EL A
FEER - HHREHARRE -
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B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

19. E5 RBWFIE (&)

RBERRZBEZ AR RNGBRERS
HE 5 EBRIRMNBRE ST T

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Within 1 month TE A A 28,136 14,078
Over 1 month but within 3 months 1MEA=3EA 3,578 11,739
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3EAZETEF 643 1,983
Over 1 year iBiE 1 154 384
Total @z 32,511 28,184

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBETT

At beginning of the year F1 2,674 2,361
Impairment losses accrued (note 6) REFtREEE (HiEe) 279 655
Amount written off as uncollectible AT E i 258 - (371)
Exchange realignment Rk 4 29
2,994 2,674

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

RERS BRRABBEBREEETRED
i ARt EEREEER - BEXTE
REFEUEEEANZ AT, 5 A
A (AN EmBER - P BRI R
FIARERFELEMEERRZANRK
BHE)NBPEBETE - ZtERBR
BMEMEER  ERRERNHREAH
ARNEBEEE - BATKR AR
REGRETRANAERAIEER - — R
MmE - BEHRKFIBENEIEE—F R
BAZ R 0R BITT/AE) B T LAMEH o
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B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

19. E5BWFIE (&)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TR AEEFARBEBTENE

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

Current

IR

SRBFIANEERBRMA

7A2023F12A31H

Past due
A

Less than 1to3 Over

1 month months 3 months

1EAUA 1388 3fBANE

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit losses

As at 31 December 2022

BHEEERE

BEREE

BHEEER

4.2%
19,487
812

Current

BIHR

9.9% 15.8% 50.3% 8.4%
11,572 3,481 965 35,505
1,146 551 485 2,994

2022412 A31H

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit losses

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

B EBAS

HEREE

BHERER

TR ZFEFER

4.0%
14,658
579

Past due

Less than 1to3 Over

1 month months 3 months

1E A AR 3MEA A E
8.8% 11.4% 55.4% 8.7%
12,873 2,006 1,321 30,858
1,135 228 732 2,674
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B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. ANRE B RHEMEKRR

RECEIVABLES b |
2023 2022
2023 F 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Deposits and other receivables & KHE b FEYGRIA 5,238 4,799
Prepayments TE{T RIE 10,015 10,939
Value-added tax recoverable AU Bl 1 (B B 1,084 288
Right-of-return assets REEEE 49 44
Total wEt 16,386 16,070

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

B A & E B B SORE © FE AR A
PR RN B R I T HE )RR B

JE W TR IA -

21. HEeRBEEEY

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETIT
Cash and bank balances R & RIBTTA 104,580 57,462
Time deposits TEHATF 5K 13,176 17,279
Subtotal INEE 117,756 74,741
Less: Restricted cash W XREIER e (200) (1,350)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 117,556 73,391

214
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B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

21. BEeRBESEEY (E)

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

2023 2022

2023 2022 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®F ARBFIT

Denominated in RMB AAR®BEHE 35,444 32,627
Denominated in NZD AR PR T AT E 42,115 30,166
Denominated in HKD LA TTEHE 2,146 27273
Denominated in AUD LUBITEHE 3,237 6,008
Denominated in USD LASETTEHE 34,547 2,242
Denominated in EUR AR TTETE 67 75
Total WBEt 117,556 73,391

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. As
at 31 December 2023, the restricted cash included an amount of
RMB200,000 (2022: RMB1,350,000) which was frozen by the People’s
Court due to lawsuits

ARMAEBASRNBRRR —T-_=FFR

ARBIIFATERLBIERMBER - R
i AR R B K FE SN B IR AR e
B EERNEEERE ARERE
BRRBREIIEXBNRITEARE
HBSEMER -

RITHE S REEBRITERARIZEH
FERFE -BHEHEFEREETRAY
R BE—HZ2=#A BUARAEE
WENERFIR & Hsk 0 WIRBAREHEHE
HAEETE - RITEBR M BERBETERT
BERAEGEERNPIWEENLENIR
17 M2023F12A318 ' XBHIELE
FEHERRAEARZRRENSEARE
200,000 7T (2022 4F : A% 1,350,0007T) ©
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B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. BEZENRE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RBERRNE S RN KA (REEH
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: H) R ST T -

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Within 1 month TE A A 32,184 10,541
Over 1 month but within 3 months 1MEA=3EA 201 9,907
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3EAZETEF 2 361
Over 1 year iBiE 1 760 719
Total @z 33,147 21,528

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the credit terms are BSRNFEAREREER K A30
normally between 30 and 90 days. 290K °

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HttENREREGTER

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Accrued payroll FEETE A 16,419 15,743
Contract liabilities A’ @) 11,288 13,923
Other payables H i FE < R IE (b) 4,601 5,274
Refund liabilities BRAEE 3,862 4,752
Other tax payables E e RIE 2,127 1,409
Total et 38,297 41,101
Notes: Mzt :

(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @) AHEEFBIT :

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARET T
Short-term advances received from customers BRI E TIPS EE 11,288 13,923
(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing. (b) HiEMFELETS -

\
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31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

24. PROVISION

24, &

2023
2023 &

RMB’000

2022
2022 %
RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

At 1 January M1A18 774 740
Increase in discounted amounts arising from ~ B& &5 i i@ 25 M 38 hn ~ AR IR %8

the passage of time 24 22
Exchange realignment TE i 2 13 12
At 31 December M12A31H 811 774
GHP, a subsidiary of the Group, has a restoration obligation under a REE—FENEBARGHP REMEME
property lease agreement. mEBEERELL -

25. DEFERRED TAX 25, ELEHIE

(@  Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated @ RERN: TEHRETBRAEXER

statement of financial position and movements during the year

are as follows:

™~

Write-down Impairment

MECHBEEURESFB M0

Lease of of trade Accrued Taxable
liabilities  inventories  receivables expense loss Total
BESEW
HESE HMAFE REHE RHEX ERBEER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARMTT ARMTRT AR¥TR AR%TxR
31 December 2023 R2023512 4318
At 1 January 2023 R2023%E1/18 9,838 427 529 1,331 - 12,125
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to ~ IAERIBZS (3NBR),/ T A
profit or loss during the year FIRERIE (209) 125 16 270 - 202
Exchange realignment i 5 A% 174 13 n 37 - 235
At 31 December 2023 2023 12A31R 9,803 565 556 1,638 - 12,562

ARMAEBASRNBRRR —T-_=FFR
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B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25, EAEBIE ()
(@)  Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated @ RERN: EHEETBRAEXER
statement of financial position and movements during the year REERBEEENREBF BTN
are as follows: (Continued) T (8&)

218

Write-down  Impairment
Lease of of trade Accrued Taxable

liabilities inventories receivables expense loss Total

HERE MWAFE FERE RHRAX  EREER 5t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTT ARETR ARETL AREBTL ARBTT AR

31 December 2022 R202412A318
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1A1A8 2485 1,051 534 1421 3485 8976
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to I RIIBZS (3NBR) /=T A

profit or loss during the year RRE B 7,085 (618) (12) (108) (3420) 2927
Exchange realignment B 5 A 268 ©) 7 18 (65) 22
At 31 December 2022 20226128318 9,838 47 529 1331 - 12125
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated b) RERN G ELHEMERIAKRER
statement of financial position and movements during the year RECEHREBEREBFIBOT :

are as follows:

Fair value Fair value

adjustments  adjustments

Right-of-  arisingfrom arising from
use investment  acquisition of
assets properties  subsidiaries

RENE WBKELR

Eil EEH
EREEE AAEAR  AAERE 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR ARETR AR®Tx

At 1 January 2023 RABF1ATH 9,665 4,291 75 14,031
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss RENGABRM

during the year ELHIE (717) - - (717)
Exchange realignment EHAE 155 - (1 154
At 31 Decermber 2023 Ra3E12 317 9,103 4,291 74 13,468
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B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

(b)

26. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated (b)
statement of financial position and movements during the year
are as follows: (Continued)

25. JEEHE (&)

RER EEAPHRRNKRER
HEEH BB ERESHHBFNT
(&)

Fair value Fair value
adjustments adjustments
Right-of- arising from arising from
use investment  acquisition of
assets properties subsidiaries
RENE WERBRA
B EE
EREEE QAAEEE AAESRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARET:
At 1 January 2022 R202F1A18 2242 2,039 555 483
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profitor loss A E R,/ (5T A) BEM
during the year ELHIE 7,155 - (489) 6,666
Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive RNk H o 2 A MK
income during the year BRI - 2252 - 2252
Exchange realignment AR 268 = 9 277
At 31 December 2022 R202%12 4318 9,665 4291 75 14,031

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB143,869,000 (2022: RMB188,805,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets of RMB35,967,000 (2022: RMB47,201,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

AREBRPBEAENRISERA
R #143,869,0007T (20224 : AR
#5188,805,0007T) M —ZEHF R
FIER - LA S R R E SR B s Al o
A £ fE SR BT 18 A R ¥ 35,967,000 7T
(202245 : AR #47,201,0007T) B
BREERBEE  HEEKXA
R—BEBRSEEENHER
Al BV ERBAEEERERRT
i ) FA R R SH R 75 B 48 o

26. fRA
i gl

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTIT

Issued and fully paid: EBITREBHAR
946,298,370 (2022: 946,298,370) 946,298,370 A% (2022 F : 946,298,370 A% )
ordinary shares TiER 94,630 94,630
V4
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

27. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 139 to 140 of the financial statements.

28.

218

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain companies in the
PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax
determined under the PRC accounting standards to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, before profit distributions are made. The
statutory surplus reserve fund is non-distributable and may be
used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issues by way of
paid-up capital.

Capital reserve

The amounts represented the balance of the credit amount arising
from the excess of the par value of the shares from the paid-in
capital contribution.

Other reserve

This resulted from the acquisition of non-controlling shareholder.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an
owner-occupied property to the investment properties carried at
fair value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions:

During the year, the Group did not have any non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in respect of lease
arrangements for plant and equipment. (2022: right-of-use assets
of RMB29,155,000; lease liabilities of RMB29,155,000 in respect of
lease arrangements modifications for plant and equipment).

27. #&1E
AEERAFTERBEFENREESSE
RE SR B IS HE S 139 F 140 HHO AR
AERBHEZR -

28.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EERRREE

REBEFEDER  PERAETA
AAEFELFED KA - ASEE
TREFESE EREENRD
BHNEBREEATRBERES -
AEBRBRFERBRE NI DI - A H
P H B 1R A B R AT A AE
HEAREETT -

EXRFE
1HRE BRI B AR R Ak
DEERNERSRER -

H it

U BB SF IR AR A R T EE A ©
EEEMEAE
BEELFREARSEEEN
MERBEREREBEAAEBIRZ
BREWMERMESL -

RERTRERME

(a)

FEFBRERS :

RAFE BEBEREENEE
ZHEME - A% EYETMFE R
BEERTEEABENIERESAE
QORF - EHEERBEHNEER
BEemins ERAEEEARYE
29,155,000 : HEBBE AR
29,155,0007F) ©
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31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2023

(b) BMEFHREZD

28. ZERERERME ()

Lease
liabilities

HESE

RMB’000
ARBT T

At31 December 2022 202212431 H 35,753
Interest expense FMEER 3,280
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREL (4,498)
Exchange realignment M H 628
At31 December 2023 2023512 A 31 B 35,163

2022
Lease
liabilities
RMB'000
ARBTT
At 31 December 2021 R2021 12 A31 H 8,870
Modification of contracts A RHEET 29,155
Interest expense FEER 472
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREL (4,078)
Exchange realignment ME W 1334
At 31 December 2022 M20224%12H31H 35,753

V4
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B ISR EE

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

28. FERERERM T (F)

(0 HERESHRHAE

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBTT

Within operating activities LE RN 917 382
Within financing activities BB EE A 4,498 4,078
Total BEt 5,415 4,460

29. COMMITMENTS

The Group had no contractual commitments at the end of the reporting
period (2022: Nil).

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:

(@  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

29. AIE

SR [0 o & BRI 48 & 49 AR (2022
FE)

30. EBAHE
B AR B 75 SR % EL 205 S B 3T S b
A EE RN AEE N EEH S ETIATR

@ AEBTBEEEASNFH:

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBFIT

Basic salaries and bonus HEAEE MIEAT 7,857 5,181
Social insurance and housing fund ek RkEEAER 161 165
8,018 5,346

\
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B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31. REFEINEMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBERRNSEN e T AREER
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 3
2023 2023 fF
Financial assets SREE

Financial
assets at
amortised cost Total

B AT

MEmEE # et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®ET R

Trade receivables B 5 R IR 32,511 32,511
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERIE - EBe Rk

deposits and other receivables HEMEWRIENSMEE 5,238 5,238
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFED 117,556 117,556
Restricted cash ZRRERE 200 200
Total et 155,505 155,505
Financial liabilities =R

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total

B AT

MEma s #t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Trade payables =) ANEeE 33,147 33,147
Financial liabilities included in other payables & A E b F& {5 5018 & FE 7T & FB

and accruals NEEBaE 4,601 4,601
Total et 37,748 37,748

V4
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31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
2022

Financial assets

31. REHEATHEMT A (&

2022 F
ERMEE

==
)
m! )

Financial

assets at
amortised cost Total

T8 SR AN T
R & & E T
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Trade receivables 2 5 E WA 28,184 28,184

Financial assets included in prepayments, STATENFIE  Ee Rk

deposits and other receivables HMEWFIEN S mEE 4,799 4,799
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFLEFEY 73,391 73,391
Restricted cash EEHRR S 1,350 1,350
Total HEt 107,724 107,724

Financial liabilities

THEE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
R SHRAR T
NEeRBE #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTTT
Trade payables 2 5 eI 5 IE 21,528 21,528
Financial liabilities included in other payables &t A EEAth i £ ZUIE &
and accruals EArEANSREE 5,274 5274
Total et 26,802 26,802

N\
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B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically to analyse
and formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to market risk,

including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk. As the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s exposure
to market risk is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group's risk
management objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising the
potential adverse effects of these risks on the Group by closely
monitoring the individual exposure as follows:

(a)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is
mainly based on past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.

BRAABEBRHARAT —Bo=FEH

2. SRl EE

ZER B0 AT AR E R R B IR BROR Mk
SR EFGEHRTERE O
Ko BT HE i bA i 3R AN 5% [ P T S O T 5
Rk BREEERR RBESRR -
SRR EFXRER - dARARBES
RAAREEE SO T SRR EFR R
EKF  AEBIWEEBEAITERE
B TEAESE R A% - AEENERE
BERELBRREZAENEBEIEE
ATEIERR - K F R AN R
VEENNEE

(@) FERMR
AEBEEENBZREERINS
ZHETRZ - AKBZRRR
PMEEREREREGRETEREZ
BEFHRARSEEERERF - It
S AREE R B EE R WGRIAS
f B 7K 5 B T B 1032 AR AL B 30 D
ERX-HRWIFARBLEESEN
MINEEERFENR S KRERE
EEZTENFE AEH
TEREEEGRNR -

BAMOREREESE
TRERRINZAJNBENRAEE
FERR (EEBERBABREE
B BRIEFBBEBSHALEN
BNA] R M E &R A] ) 1S H A
FEEEEREAEERBRH O KR
FARBEEDHE -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 32. e RiERERE (&)
(a) Creditrisk (Continued) (@) FERME &)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BAM O RFEREERSDE (HE)
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial Fr25 Rt & ENREA
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee BEREMERSHNNEERREKOD
contracts.
As at 31 December 2023 720235 12H31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
RHEE
i} 2HRHEESR

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
F-RER HE-RER FZER E97 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AR%®TR ARBTRT ARBT:R

Trade receivables* B 5 R+ - - - 35,505 35,505
Financial assets included in AR
prepayments, other receivables Hib IR R
and other assets — Normal** HtAENSREE
—E&* 5238 - - - 5,238
Restricted cash — Not yet past due XRHRS
— HARH 200 - - - 200
Cash and cash equivalents — Not ReRRSZEY
yet past due — AR 117,556 - - - 117,556
Total @t 122,994 - - 35505 158,499
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Creditrisk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 December 2022

32. EREKRERE

FEERE (&)
BAMORERBES 8 (F)
72022128311

(a)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
BHEER
E#E rHRHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-BE F-RE FzZER H97 @ar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables* B SRR - = = 30,858 30858
Financial assets included in FTATBRHE
prepayments, other receivables and Hin K HIEK
other assets — Normal** HEENSREE
— & 4,799 - - - 4799
Restricted cash — Not yet past due XBHHRE
— HAREH 1,350 - - - 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents — Not ReRAEZEN —
yet past due A8 73,391 - = = 73,391
Total st 79,540 - - 30858 110398

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes

19 to the financial statements.

*%

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

(b) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

ARMAEBASRNBRRR —T-_=FFR

(b)

* WAL BB R ETRER
MESEKFIRM S - EREEER
B AR B 75 R MY R 19 B R ©

= FTATENFUR - Bt EUGRIR R E At
BEMSREEEY REHNEES
HETECEERA VS ERIAR
BRE AR RERERERIER]

REE S @R
AEBOBRRTEREZNE R
BHRBESFR URETHE
ERZENBR WHERER A
MREHEBRRGEIEZSREE
RAMEFEERE  UENE
REIRBESH R -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

N\
228

(b)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
financial liabilities and lease liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

32. RERERE ()

Total

contractual
Carrying undiscounted

amount

cash flows

BERAREH

REE
RMB'000
ARETT

Asat31December2023  A2023%F12H831H

Reng

RMB'000

ARBTT

(b)

On demand

ARETT

REE S @ (H)

TRFNAKECRABREE
BERTARMBHABER - TX
DRESHABMNRBRRSR
ERE ZETRAGBRHEER
BINREAEE AN KK
EEHsE-2MABENREER
BHZIHI B TR EE K H BEE ©

Within
one year
—FR

RMB000
ARBTT

Over
one year

—FHE

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000

Lease liabilities HEAaE 35,163 61,617 - 4,363 57,254
Trade payables B SRR 33,147 33,147 - 33,147 -
Other payables H b FE 508 4,601 4,601 4,229 372 -
72,911 99,365 4,229 37,882 57,254
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31R
Lease liabilities HEAE 35753 65,033 - 4,580 60453
Trade payables Y AN 21,528 21,528 = 21,528 -
Other payables H b &R 5274 5,274 4477 797 -
62,555 91,835 4477 26,905 60,453
Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial () EMIAEAARERAAREBEEZER
instruments
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash ERENRRERREEEY -
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets B EWMIE B S ENRIE -
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial FFATERNFRIE - Re R H M E K
liabilities included in other payables and accruals. The differences RENTHEE StARMER
are immaterial since the fair values are mainly equal to their HREREFERANSRAGHNA
carrying amounts. AE - BRAREBEABLELERE
FREE  WEBAETERX -
Foreign currency risk (d) MERE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 61% (2022:
45%) of the Group's sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst approximately 62% (2022: 80%) of costs were
denominated in the units’ functional currencies. The Group also
has certain bank balances denominated in NZD, USD and HKD.

REBEAZR HEROINER -
B8 R B B LA A8 & BB AL T B B U
NN EBEEMES - ALE
SHE R 4961% (2022 4F : 45%) A
EH S E KL EMNINAEERE AN
K EZ7] - T 4962% (2022 4 :
80% ) HY A 7 LA AH B8 B8 7 ) g B M
20 - REBNMERS TAMAA
BT © ETCKBTTEHERRTI TSRS o
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d)

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates against NZD, USD, AUD and HKD, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax (arising from
EUR and RMB denominated financial instruments) and equity (due
to changes in the fair values of forward currency contracts).

2023
If NZD weakens against RMB
If NZD strengthens against RMB

If USD weakens against RMB fMETEARERE
If USD strengthens against RMB £t 5 A REFE
If AUD weakens against RMB BT 5 ARKEEE
If AUD strengthens against RMB i 87T 5 A REFE
If HKD weakens against RMB BT ARKERE
If HKD strengthens againstRMB /& 7T A REFAE
If EUR weakens against RMB BT S AREEE
If EUR strengthens against RMB BT A REFAE
2022 2022
If NZD weakens against RMB MAFTEE T ARKEE
IfNZD strengthens against RMB  fR &t FE B 7T 7 A REEFHE
If USD weakens against RMB WETREARKERE
If USD strengthens against RMB £t X A REFE
If AUD weakens against RMB BT ARKEE(E
If AUD strengthens against RMB 87T 5 A REFE
If HKD weakens against RMB WA TR ARKEEE
If HKD strengthens against RMB i 7L i A REEFHE
If EUR weakens against RMB HET AR (E
If EUR strengthens against RMB i BR T i A REEFHE
* Excluding retained profits

—E-—FER

2023 &

WARETEARERE
AR AREAE

32. TRIABREIE ()

(d)

Increase/

(decrease) in

RMB rate

ARBER

EFH (T )

(1%])
1%

(1%)
1%

(1%)
1%

(19%)
1%

(1%)
1%
(19%)

1%

(1%)
1%

(19%)
1%

(19%)
1%

(1%)
1%

0 EE L B ()
TREIEMAEEBEERT T
BHOBERT RBEEPRARE
RAAMIT - XxT BRIRkET
HIE RS IR AR B B W AN R E R
BATE R OREUET R ARKE
ENSBTA) RERNHRE (A
REHERSRARERZS) -

Increase/
(decrease) in
in equity*
=M
(R D) *
)
AR¥T T

Increase/
(decrease) in
loss before tax
BRI B 18
2,/ ()
RMB’000
AR¥T R

- (1,002)
- 1,002
(499) -
499 -
- (10)

- 10
(24) -
24 -
@ (903)

4 903

©) =

3 —
(13) ©)
13 6
(25) =
25 -

* T EIER B
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 32. e RiERERE (&)
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIZEEPs
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to RE B JNE ¥ B iR E /5 A
pledged bank deposits and bank balances carried at prevailing K B2 B RITFER KRBT
market rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as e RS MENERR - A -
these bank balances are all short-term in nature. ARZERITEREIBE TS -

AR RN STy 2 E S

(f) Capital management H EBEXERE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to AEEEREB2ERNBERAR
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and EAREE FHELERE N RERS
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business BREALEIRFREBRETE
and maximise shareholders' value. BRREERAL -

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEEEBEHERER WERE
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk KERSZ\ICRBEEERR M
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the EERHAE - BEFHFABRER
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to g AEET] AR MRRIR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. B mRFEERRNKEITHR
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital 2N 82 B A X AE{A] SN EB BE SN B B AR
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or ZRIRR - &L E2023F 12 A31 H
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 N202F 12 A31HIEFEE » BAR
December 2023 and 31 December 2022. EENERE  BURSRRETHEZS -
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AEBFEREEASGL X (BER
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. The Group's FRERR A AR E AN INE S FRE)
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio between 10% and 30%. Net ERER AEENBEREREE
debt includes lease liabilities, trade payables, other payables and BEL RN T 10%ZE30% ° &
accruals. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods BFEREHERE BHEMNK
were as follows: 15 A ENRIBERESER © 3]

ERRNEERBLRNT

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5

12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T

Lease liabilities (note 15) MEA A (fHE15) 35,163 35,753
Trade payables (note 22) B 5 e A (Mar22) 33,147 21,528
Other payables and accruals (note 23) H e E ke & B (ffiE23) 38,297 41,101
Net debt BT 558 106,607 98,382
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &} A &) A A E(EHEZE 378,069 323,800
Capital and net debt BEARMERFE 484,676 422,182
Gearing ratio BEABHX 22% 23%
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33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has been no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group.

34.

ARMAEBSRNDABR QA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of the financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BRI

33. {REHIBREIE
AEBY EE AL EE -

34. AR EHMBARR R

RBEHR  BEARAFHRRK

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 £
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 2,051 3,049
Investment properties KEYZE 15,464 15,877
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARIKE 151,192 151,192
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 168,707 170,118

CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 4,837 2,037
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 2,109 1,964
Due from subsidiaries JE Uk B /B8 A B 308 227,220 216,034
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUIA - 12 & M E b fE Uk 71008 2,518 10,398
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEY 32,512 32,838
Total current assets REEERE 269,196 263,271
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE

Trade payables B Z N RIA 360 936
Due to subsidiaries JFEAST BT /BB 2 B 3R 1E 104,127 139,465
Other payables and accruals Hith et sRIB R ST E 19,674 17,126
Total current liabilities ME)B BB 124,161 157,527
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 145,035 105,744
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERADERE 313,742 275,862

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred taxes liabilities REFIBEA E 2,251 2,251
Total non-current liabilities FERBABERE 2,251 2,251
NET ASSETS EEFE 311,491 273,611

TR ZFEFER
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34, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34, AR BB BEMRRIEK ()
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

EQUITY =

Share capital A& s 94,630 94,630
Other reserves H A 216,861 178,981
Total equity B 311,491 273,611
Note: B &E -

A summary of the Company’s other reserves is as follows: RABNEMBEFERELNT -

Statutory Asset
Capital surplus revaluation Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses Total

EEEER BEEEM

e N ## % Rt &8 Mgt
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTE ARBTT AR®TT ARETZ

At 1 January 2022 202241 A18 544,223 47315 101 (409,559) 182,080
Total comprehensive loss for the year N2 1B 4258 = = 6,755 (9,854) (3,099)
At 31 December 2022 2022124318 544,223 47,315 6,856 (419,413) 178,981
At 1 January 2023 202351710 544,223 47,315 6,856 (419,413) 178,981
Total comprehensive profit for the year 4F P 2 [ | B 48 58 - - - 37,880 37,880
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31 B 544,223 47,315 6,856 (381,533) 216,861
35. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 35. HAELSSHEHRE
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for HEMBHREARAEEE N 2024 E3 826
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024. H o R 35 ) 3% o
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFPBEE

sk AE TR EELMHRRILLEED (HE
R)MAKESIAEFBRFREZEENE
E - BELSFERESEEHIIMT -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and re-presented as appropriate, is set

out below.

RESULTS

ES

Year ended 31 December

BZ12ABLEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194F 2020 2021 20224 2023 F
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB00OO RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT AR®TR
REVENUE Wz 322613 296,525 252,325 274,851 563,959
Cost of sales $HE AR (165,775) (125,821) (113,522) (114,856)  (184,302)
Gross profit EF 156,838 170,704 138,803 159,995 379,657
Other income and gains Hofth A B i as 8,673 12,735 15,094 7,910 8,474
Selling and distribution expenses S5 R & F X (185,436) (132,898) (105,984) (108603)  (249,962)
Administrative expenses TEFX (85,187) (77,571) (70 217) (63,924) (72,222)
Other expenses HhF (72,841) (15,857) (10,110) (5,406) (4,574)
Finance costs BLE A (3,601) (1,275) (685) 472) (3,280)
Share of profits of a joint venture DIE—REERENE - - - - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX B%‘féﬁf |,/ (&8) (181,554) (44,162) (33,099) (10,500) 58,093
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisfi (%), #He (13,104) (5,443) 1392 (3,746) (5,491)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REEFIE/(E8) (194,658) (49,605) (31,707) (14,246) 52,602
Attributable to: HBER
Owners of the parent BRRER A (194,658) (49,605) (31,707) (14,246) 52,602
Non-controlling interests 3H & - - - - -
(194,658) (49,605) (31,707) (14,246) 52,602
V4
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Five Year Financial Summary

L FEHBEHRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERFERES
INTERESTS

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

20194 20204 2021 4 2022 2023 F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETRT AR%¥TR

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 542,720 449,731 390,112 436,987 505,419
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (131,570) (87,368) (59,868) (113,187)  (127,350)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEIERS R = - - _ _

TOTAL st 411,150 362,363 330,244 323,800 378,069
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